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CORPORATE PROFILE

DNENH

OVERVIEW

We are the leading and a rapidly growing home meal products
brand in China. We offer a variety of ready-to-eat, ready-to-heat,
ready-to-cook and prepared ingredients, with a focus on at-home
hotpot and barbecue products. With a carefully curated product
portfolio and an extensive network of community-based stores,
we enable consumers to enjoy meals at home with tastiness,
convenience and affordability. Leveraging our robust supply
chain and production capabilities and a nationwide network of
retail stores, we offer a wide variety of home meal products under
the Guoquan Shihui (B RE) brand, serving diverse dining
scenarios.

We are devoted to developing products under our proprietary
brand name carrying the Guoquan Shihui logo. As the leading
one-stop home meal products brand in China, we are well
positioned to capture the significant growth potential in China’s
home meal products market. We cater to different dining
scenarios underpinned by high quality food ingredients that have
an immense potential for creating new and diverse products. Our
product portfolio comprises eight categories including hotpot
products, barbecue products, beverages, solo-dining meals,
ready-to-cook meal kits, fresh produce, western cuisines and
snacks.

We have established a store network primarily comprising
franchised stores. Under our franchise business model, we derive
substantially all of our revenue from the sale of our products to
franchisees, who open and operate franchised stores under our
brand and sell our products to consumers. We do not charge or
rely on franchise fees.

We have also been developing online sales channels including our
Guoquan APP, WeChat mini-program as well as on popular social
commerce platforms such as Douyin. In addition, we partner with
third-party food delivery platforms, such as Meituan and Ele.me
to deliver our products to consumers. We achieve highly extensive
consumer reach by providing both online and offline shopping
options. Leveraging the highly efficient management and
operation of our supply chain and our digitalized management
system, we are able to ensure product quality and safety, as well
as achieve high operational efficiency from food production to
retail sales.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

DA

OUR VISION

Our vision is to become the go-to brand for dining at home in
China.

OUR MISSION

Our mission is to source quality food ingredients globally and
offer diverse, convenient, high-quality and value-for-money home
meal products in a one-stop shop manner to meet consumers’
diverse needs under different dining scenarios, from urban
centers to the most remote areas of China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEER

BOARD
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEER
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China Citic Bank Corporation Limited Shanghai Honggiao
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DEFINITIONS
B

‘Annual General Meeting”
[FERRRE ]

“Annual Report”

[ ]

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles” i
[AEER ] [EE]

“Associate(s)”

R YN

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[E=g]

“Board of Supervisors”

B2 |

“Buyue Ertong”

[ &R

“Chengdu Quanyi”
[AER 2 |

“Chengming Plant”
[EH LR

“CG Code”
[T
“China” or “PRC”
[HE

“Chongging Langyao”

[EEHRE ]

“Companies Ordinance”

A ESH

“Companies (Winding up and
Miscellaneous Provisions)

Ordinance”

[RA] OB R ARG 151 )

“The Company” or “Guoquan”

[ARE K[ #RE

the annual general meeting will be convened by the Company on June 27,
2024 (Thursday)
ARBRZZEZNFAAZT+H (EHM) BRNFERERE

the annual report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023
ARRBE_Z-=F+-_A=+—HILFEZFERS

the amended Articles of Association of the Company adopted and came in
effect on December 21, 2023
RARR B =F+ A+ — BERMAALE R LIETT AR ERR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARRIMAE TR E

the board of directors of our Company

ARRERE

the board of supervisors of our Company

NSRS

Shanghai Buyue Ertong Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(EErHMRAMZEREGELEZ(ARAER)), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on April 18, 2019
LETOMABEREAREX(ARER)  R-ZE-NFOA+N\BRESD
BlEETMRZNEREBRE

Chengdu Quanyi Food Co., Ltd. (FX#Z2mRMABRAR]), a limited liability
company incorporated upder the laws of PRC on June 16, 2009 ‘
KEZRmBEMARAT RZZTNFASATABREPEEEAMKIOER

NG|

one of our three self-operated production facilities that engages in hotpot
soup base production

BA=RE2LERENET K - LENREHEE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules

ERRAMERC FRE M B T A

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of the Annual
Report only, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

PEARKANE - iAFEREME TREEE - RAREE

Chongqging Zhaoying Langyao Growth Phase Il Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EEMHEmRARK R _HREREESE
BOEBRAE)), a limited partnership incorporated under the laws of the
PRC on September 23, 2020
EETHAmRPBAR_HREREESCERLE(BRER) RZTZFAN
A=+ =HREBEHBEEERIMR I BRE B

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EREDIE622F(RATED) EARHEET » 7k A B AL 5 g2k

the Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

?{éiﬁﬂ%w%(@ﬂ (B 88 SR TR G 801 ) (BEARHERT ~ MRS A Rt
A2

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (SABR & (L/E)RHBERAF), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on July 11, 2019
(formerly known as Guoquan Supply Chain (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (3B {LFEHE
(E®)BRAT])), and was converted into a joint stock limited company in the
PRC on February 23, 2023, and the H Shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2517)
WERG(LE)ROHBBRAF  RZT—NFELA+T—BREREERRK LD
BEREEAR (AEREHER (8 BRAR) YR TE_=F_A=-+
=A ?EP Bl AR BERAT - EHRNEBB A ER B/ (RHR
2517
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Company Law” or
“PRC Company Law”
[REPEI K HRBIRRDE]

“connected person(s)”

[BEEAL

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ R

»

“Director(s)

[E%]

“Domestic Unlisted Shares”
MERER EmkG |

“Famous Wealthy”

[Famous Wealthy ]

“Generation One”

[ Generation One |

“Generation Pi HK”

[ Generation Pi HK |
“Global Offering”
[2BREE ]

“Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us”
[AREE 5 )

“Guoquan Industry”
BB 2]

“Guoxiaoquan EM”

[/ E e ]

“Guoxiaoquan Tech”

[/ BB

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF# A REMBE A ALX), as
amended supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(PEARKEMBRRE) GETEHERT - TS AE b5 H 8 20)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LR R TR E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and,
strictly in accordance with such meaning, includes Mr. Yang, Mr. Meng,
Mr. Li, Guoquan Industry, Guoxiaoquan EM and Guoxiaoquan Tech; and
“Controlling Shareholder” shall mean any one of them

BEEEE LTRAME FZANRBL R RKIEZSRE  BFBEE Rk
£ FEAE - BEEE W BOE RB BRI - BTERKRR | EEGME
RERAL

director(s) of our Company

KRBES

ordinary shares in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are not listed on any stock exchange

ARABEATFREEARE1.00TMALBEIMEMZESF RS LT EBKR

FAMOUS WEALTHY LIMITED, a limited liability company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong on October 25, 2019

FAMOUS WEALTHY LIMITED * R=ZZ—AF+AZTHBREEEEZMK
AR AT

Generation One Holdings Ltd, a company incorporated under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands on December 24, 2018

Generation One Holdings Ltd * R=Z— /\F+=F =+ AR & B E 25t
SRR AT

GENERATION PI HK INVESTMENT LIMITED, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong on November 6, 2019
GENERATION Pl HK INVESTMENT LIMITED * R=ZZ—hF+—AXNBRES
PEEBIFEMBC LBV B R AR

The Global Offering of an aggregate of 77,360,400 H Shares, including
8,557,600 H Shares issued by the Company pursuant to the partial exercise
of the Over-allotment Option

PIREFEE A 77,360,400 RHAR - BFEARRAIRIBEL Y TEBRERRERITH
8,557,600 B HA%

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of
its subsidiaries, as the context may require)

ARFREWB AR (KRAEME - EARRREEA-FKAZHHBLRR)

Guoquan Industry (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (SREIE % (L&) AR A A), a limited
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on November 10, 2021 and
one of our Controlling Shareholders

BEEL(LE)BERAT R-2——F+— B +ARETBE @SR TS
BRAR - REMZERERZ —

Shanghai Guoxiaoquan Enterprise Management Center (Limited
Partnership) (E)&#/NEREERFOL(BRAE)), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on August 1, 2019 and one of our
Controlling Shareholders

FERNERERERD L (BRER)  RZT-hFN\A-RREPEEET
MR ERAEBEE - BERMHERIKR 2 —

Shanghai Guoxiaoquan Agriculture Technology Service Center (Limited
Partnership) (_E/&#i/NEEZERH RGP L (BRER)), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on August 1, 2019 and one of our
Controlling Shareholders

LEm D EERERERBTO (ARAR)  R-Z-AFN\A-BREPEE
FEAMKZMERERBEE - REMOEZERRR 2 —



DEFINITIONS
B=

“H Share(s)”
[HA% ]

“Heyi Plant”
[F— T

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
[&%]

“Hong Kong dollars,” “HK dollars”

or “HK$”
[T

‘Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or

“Stock Exchange”

[ BB AP | 2k FH@‘%S&F)?J
“IFRS(s)”

[ BB Bt T s 2 R

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[ E=7]
“Listing”

[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[ ETREAT]
“Listing Rules”
[ ERAl
“Model Code”
[(ERZE<FRI) ]

“Macau”

[HRFT |

“Mr. Li”
(4]

“Mr. Meng”
[FEAE]

“Mr. Yang”

1554
“Prospectus”

[T ERE]

overseas listed shares in the share capital of our Company with nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are traded in HK dollars and are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Zéi F;HEZJSEPH&@E/\Eﬁ%.ooﬁﬁ’\ﬁ%%tﬁ%@ BT EER  WREE
B3R PR L

one of our three self-operated production facilities that engages in beef
processing

BA=RBEEERBHEP - - LEFANT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEBEBSITHR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EEEEEEET

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited .
EEMARIMERAR  BREERZSNEEMERAFTNZEMB AR

International Financial Reporting Standards, all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accountlng Standards Board (“IASB”)

RerElREe ((ARSTEAEES ) BHNERVBRSER - e
P E R B R B 7 5 2R - BIBR &R ([ERRE =T 2ER ) RpkE

to the best of the Directors’ knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, any entity or person who is not a connected person of our
Company within the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
RIEL—VERERNEILEEMM  FFARFBEALHEMNERSIAL  AF
EHRBIPRIE T &R 8=

listing of our H Shares on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
HARR BB AT EIR £

the date on which dealings in our H Shares first commence on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange is November 2, 2023
AATHBRREBBZ A L R AR EENES - A—E-=4F+— A=A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (as amended from time to time)

FEMARSHARARES AR (ERBET)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
under the Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
ETARRIERCIC LT BT AESEITREAR HNETHETAD

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H BRI RIT TR

Mr. Li Xinhua (ZfiR##), one of our Controlling Shareholders
FIRESLE ﬁzﬁﬁ’ﬁ RARE > —

Mr. Meng Xianjin (f5£#), an executive Director and executive vice president
of our Company, one of our Controll mg Shareholders

mEESTE  ARFMITEERATRIAE - BAMERERZ —

Mr. Yang Mingchao (#583#8), the chairperson of the Board, an executive
Director and chief executive officer of our Company, one of our Controlling
Shareholders

HAEELE ARFESR  PITEEREFRTE  RAOWERERZ —

the prospectus of the Company dated October 20, 2023 in connection with
the Hong Kong Public Offering
AARHBA—T - =FTA-THRNAEBEEE A RAEENERER

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Reporting Period”
[ HAf |

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[ARE ]

“SFC”
e

“SFO”

[ &7 N B g fEp ]
“Share(s)”

[t

“Shareholder(s)”
[R5 |

“SKU”
[SKUJ

“Subsidiary(ies)”
(Mg A

“Supervisor(s)”

(=]

“Wanlai Wanqu Plant”

[FRAETR

“opr
[%]

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

the period from January 1 2023 to December 31, 2023
—E-=f—f-HE-T-—F+-A=+—AHY

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

R AR

Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

SRRSRAEERERZE®

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BB ADIZ571 5 (BB LA GETEET - BRI R R EH)

ordinary shares in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each
RRABIRAFFREEARE1.007TH T B

holder(s) of the Share(s)
LSESTEDN
stock keeping unit

RIMFEEM

has the meanmg ascribed to it in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance

BB R RMEDIE 16 GATHE T 3% sl R

member(s) of our Board of Supervisors

EEEKE

one of our three self-operated production facilities that engages in meatball
production

BA=RE2LERENET - EEANEE

per cent

Elkepsd



CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EERYA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., | am
pleased to present the Annual Report of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2023 to the Shareholders.

Despite of the challenging economic environment in 2023, the
Group has established an extensive network of one-stop home
meal products retail stores in 31 provinces, autonomous regions
and municipalities across China. As at the end of 2023, the Group
had 10,307 retail stores. In addition to the offline physical stores,
the Group also provided consumers with convenient shopping
experience by developing various online sales channels, including
our Guoguan WeChat mini-program.

Leveraging on its digital capability, the Group has acquired
a deep understanding of consumers behavior, constantly
enriched the diversity of our product portfolio catering to the
evolving consumer demands and preferences through close
collaboration with our suppliers and R&D center. In addition, the
Group regularly launched region-based products customized
for local markets to diverse consumer preferences in different
geographies. A total of 339 new SKUs were launched in 2023.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB6,094.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 15.0% over the corresponding period of 2022.
However, the Group managed to further improve its profitability
through efficient management of its supply chain and the
continuous enhancement of its operational efficiency. In 2023,
the Group recorded gross profit of RMB1,350.9 million and
gross profit margin of 22.2%, representing an increase of 4.8
percentage points from 17.4% over the corresponding period
of 2022. The Group achieved net profit of RMB263.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.3% over the
corresponding period of 2022. The adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS
measure) for the year ended December 31, 2023 was RMB318.0
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.8%.

Based on the Group’s operating performance, the Board will
recommend at the forthcoming annual general meeting the
payment of final cash dividend of RMB0.0521 per Share (inclusive
of tax), totaling to approximately RMB143.1 million for such
purpose.

EHNEMRR

RAEUREABRR (L8 BHBRAT
EEORRUNERMASRAEEHRE"
—=E+ A=+ BULFERS

BE_T=FHLBRETMIE - A%
Ef2E31[EE  BREREEMEYT
BAN—URERCHERERTEMERN
HBoBEZT=FK AKENTEME
HENTI10,307R - BRTHRTEEMIEN
SN REBINABRESEG LHERS
BIRREME N EFE  REBERMHERE
HEEY SR o

REAEEMNE TN BHAVRZIEHEHE
BEMNTA RAREERERHBERLER
A THLZERMES @ LUnRTE
FBEEFZ KRR o 1o - NEBETH
HEEwmBHERSCER  URETE
WM TREEERIL - RZTEZ=FEF -
HEE T 3391E#FTSKU ©

BHE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE &
EEERWBABAREKG,004.1EEBT &
ZEC_FRMADHI15.0% AT - RE
ERAHEENRNERE  UKEEMEN
SERF - FEATEENBR THE—FHM
B MZEZ=FE  AEERBEREMNAA
R#¥1,35098 87T EMER22.2% » =
S FRAMI7A%RATLEE LT -
AEBERFNEAARK263.48ET
BT FREPIEML.3% c HET =
—F+ A=+t —HIEFERNERAZFFE
(EEIBR B ks ERIET2) RARMES18.0
BET ALER23.8% °

ERAEENZELIEN  EF2BEN/KE
TTHFERRAS LEFRERARSBE
BRAR®0.05217T (B8) « HEHRERS
BEREBNARE1431BET °

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—E==FER

11



12

CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ESRIE

Looking ahead, we will continue to develop our growth strategy
focusing on brands, products and channels to further consolidate
our market leadership. By digitally empowering the upstream
supply chain as well as the downstream franchisees supported
with multiple dining scenarios and omni-channel, we are
dedicated to providing consumers with tasty, convenient and
affordable meal products.

Finally, | would like, on behalf of the Board, to express my sincere
gratitude to all our staff for their endeavors and dedication
over the past year, and also to all our customers, Shareholders,
franchisees and suppliers for their dedicated support and
assistance made to Guoquan.

Yang Mingchao

Chairperson of the Board, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

March 28, 2024

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HREEKRE

OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Omni-channel sales network

The Group has established the largest one-stop home meal
products retail store network in China. The Group’s extensive
nationwide store network with wide geographic coverage
contributed to enhancing brand awareness and was also
conducive to generating consumer insights and thereby improving
the Group’s responses to the rapidly changing market trends
across different regions. The density of store network improved
the efficiency of logistics and transportation. Moreover, the
Group’s retail stores provided consumers with both online and
offline shopping options, achieving highly extensive consumer
reach.

Despite the challenging and uncertain economic environment in
2023, the Group’s retail store network continued to expand. As at
December 31, 2023, the Group has a total of 10,307 retail stores
in 31 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities across
China.

The table below sets forth the total number of franchised stores
and self-operated stores of the Group as of the dates indicated.

ERXBRUMBRR
SREHEME

=

AREBR PR BT T RAH — U ERKIZER
EREMTEMERE - AEEEMEEN
PIEREBERZILE - BRI MR
HEFMHBERR  tMEHAKEE TR
@ RF B TIS BB RIE - PIERG
MZERS TYRMEBERE o s - K
SENTEMESEEERHER LG TEY
EE - BREZNREERE -

BE T = FHLBERIE T MK EA T
EMl - ASBENTEPIERKDATER
K eRZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H  £TEH
231 E%E - BREREEMH*AE10,307
REEME -

TREHNAEBEEEFAR B HE 0PI E A
BEPIERE -

As of December 31,

BEt-A=t-H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EC-F
Number of Number of

stores % stores %

PR B % PIEEE %

Franchised stores nesJE 10,300 99.9 9,216 99.9
Self-operated stores SIS 7 0.1 5 0.1
Total st 10,307 100.0 9,221 100.0
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HEERREE

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown by channels in
amounts of the Group for the periods indicated:

TREINFAIRBRAREZREE DNE
an 5 E A B BEAA

Year ended December 31,

BEt-A=+t—-HLEE

2023 2022

—E-=F g
Amount % Amount %
&8 % ok} %

(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)

(ARETTT - BAERIN

Sales of home meal products  SHEEREHRERER

and related products RERER
Sales to franchisees HE FINERE 5,365,567 90.3 6,476,687 91.8
Other sales channels"” HipgERE 574,951 9.7 582,087 8.2
Total e 5,940,518 100.0 7,058,744 100.0
Note (1): Other sales channels primarily include (i) sales to enterprise customers, MEE() . EMiERETEREONETERE (B

including food wholesalers, supermarkets, restaurants and other
enterprises; and (ii) direct sales to end consumers.

The franchise business model contributed significantly to
the increase of the Group’s revenue, market share and brand
recognition. The Group believed the effective and systematic
management of our franchisees was critical to the success
of our business. The Group considered each franchised store
a conveyance of our business philosophy and brand image.
Therefore, the Group valued each of our franchisees beyond
merely as a business partner, but also as a teammate who
was committed to our business philosophy and motivated to
grow our brand and store network with us. The Group strived
to continuously support and empower our franchisees while
providing comprehensive training for franchisees and their
employees in terms of both store operations and business
development, to help our franchised stores succeed.

The franchised stores are managed by the Group’s regional
management teams. The regional management teams provide
support and guidance for franchisees with respect to market
development and store operating strategies, among others.
With the support of the Group’s headquarters and management
by our regional teams, the Group is able to empower and serve
franchisees more efficiently and effectively to drive their sales
growth, and in turn our revenue.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
EBCEKRREE

To empower franchisees and facilitate their sales growth as
well as further expand consumer reach and offer more flexible
shopping experience, the Group has also developed multiple
online sales networks including the Group’s Guoquan APP,
WeChat mini-program, third-party food delivery platforms as
well as on popular social commerce platforms such as Douyin.
In 2023, through livestreaming and posting of related short-form
videos for Guoquan’s products on its multi-level Douyin accounts,
the Group gained a total exposure of over six billion times.
Through the spread of popular social media commerce platforms,
the Group interacted more with consumers.

The Group’s membership program built close online and offline
connections and engagement with consumers and fostered
2023, the number of the
Group’s registered members reached approximately 27.9 million.

consumer loyalty. As at December 31,

The Group continued to enhance the prepaid cards program. The
value stored in prepaid cards for the year ended December 31,
2023 was approximately RMBO0.72 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 18%.

Home meal products brand and product portfolio

The Group’s business philosophy is centered on providing
convenient, high quality home meal products with great value-
for-money to consumers. This caters to consumers’ heightened
cost-consciousness and demand for taste and quality when
choosing home meal products, as dining at home become an
increasingly frequent consumption scenario.

The Group is committed to enhancing the efficiency of at-
home food preparation. Our home meal products that are
mainly ready-to-eat, ready-to-heat, ready-to-cook products or
prepared ingredients provide consumers with an efficient and
easy way to prepare a meal at home, regardless of their levels of
cooking skills. Home dining products aim to strike the balance
of nutrition, taste, hygiene and efficiency. The Group’s product
offerings conveniently meet consumers’ diverse dining demands
in a one-stop shop manner, encompassing hotpot soup base,
condiments, meatballs and paste, meat, vegetables, beverages,
pots and grills, etc.

A MBRWRERLHEERE - ARE—
FRABREBERELRHEBENEDR
B AKETHARTZEREHERS &
EREENMBEAPP - 5/ N EF - E=F
SNEFEARRITHREBF & (WEEF) o
“EoCFE BEZEMANAERRET
B EMAE BRI - B
EHBIBOOEX - BBARITHERBEHFENE
B AREEHEEERY TEAENES) -

AEBEBBEEE /\%Efﬁki%iﬁﬁ’]
BRERETHENEDY  BRHBELIA
B -R-_ZF_=F+-_A=1t—H A%H
WEMEEMBEINN279BER - A&E

MEMRTAN RS - BE_T_=Ft—
A=1t—RHLFE BENRBEFEBRENHA

R¥E&7 21870 R EFA18% o

HE - BEEREEE ﬁ%&o%%&
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MBS T EEERREREMER
EGBEIEEAEARTE T ERTENY
=k o
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HEERREE

The Group has created a diversified product portfolio in terms of
both product categories as well as the consumption scenarios
it serves. Consumers can create different combinations of our
products to serve their taste preferences and eating habits. As
at December 31, 2023, the Group’s product portfolio comprises
eight categories including hotpot products, barbecue products,
beverages, solo-dining meals, ready-to-cook meal kits, fresh
produce, western cuisines and snacks.

Leveraging our profound consumer insights and R&D efforts, the
Group constantly enriched the diversity of our product portfolio
catering to the evolving consumer demands and preference
through close collaboration with our suppliers and our R&D
centers. The Group was customer-driven and adopted a C2F
approach with respect to our product development. Based on
the Group’s regular consumer surveys, consumer feedback and
market trend analysis, the Group would launch new products
and upgrade existing products from time to time. The Group also
regularly launched products for local markets catering to diverse
consumer preferences in different geographical areas. The Group
launched 339 new SKUs in 2023.

Streamlined supply chain management and operation

We operated under a streamlined and highly efficient supply
chain from production facilities to third-party central warehouses
and further to retail stores, eliminating redundant intermediate
parties in the supply chain, thereby optimizing cost to offer
affordable products to franchisees and consumers. Partnering
with third-party providers, we achieved next day delivery from
third-party warehouses to stores for most orders. Moreover, the
Group’s nationwide retail network generated a large demand from
consumers across China, giving rise to large scale procurement
needs which has given us the ability to negotiate with suppliers
from a position of strength, allowing us to secure high quality,
consistent products at competitive costs.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
EBCEKRREE

The Group’s supply chain system also contributed to the high
quality and safety of our products with cost advantages. The
Group has maintained a stable, mutually complementary
relationship with upstream suppliers. Adopting a one-product-
one-factory model, the Group has strategically acquired food
ingredient production capabilities to achieve stronger control over
the production and supply of our staple products. As at December
31, 2023, the Group had three food ingredient production plants,
Heyi Plant (f1—I /&) for the production of our beef products,
Wanlai Wanqu Plant (ARAELIRE) for the production of
meatballs, Chengming Plant (BBALR) for the production of our
hotpot soup base products, and had made investments in one of
our suppliers, Daixiaji (i2i&72) for the production of our shrimp
paste products, in order to have better control of the production
and supply of our major products. The Group’s long-term stable
relationship with suppliers and control over the production of our
staple products further ensured the supply of high-quality food
and great value-for-money to consumers.

The digitalization of the Group’s supply chain comprising
production, procurement, warehousing, and logistics allowed us
to monitor the supply and demand dynamics from procurement-
end to store-end and closely monitor our inventory level, enabling
highly efficient management of our entire supply chain. By
tracking and processing orders received from stores across
the country through our supply chain system empowered by
digitalisation, the Group was able to communicate with our
upstream suppliers in advance to ensure timely availability of
products for all of our stores. As at December 31, 2023, the Group
leveraged 15 digitalized central warehouses across China in
cooperation with third-party warehousing and logistics providers,
achieving swift circulation of products through digital stock and
barcode management.

AEBHHERERTFRE T AEEERDN
BE  RERKAEE - REEE I HE
BEYTREBEMNER - EBRXMERD
BRRE  ARBEABERBENRY EZED
MEAREEEEEMmNEERFEREREM
BRI c RZTB_=F+_-_A=+—
B AEBEBEE=ERMEER AEET
MERSN[M— T/ - EEARNERN R
EAETR I REENBEMERDNERT
B Wt EERBEMMSERE T AKE
BVE R — R R R MRAD | - PARE fF szl
AEBETEEMWEERHERE - NEEEE
EERBREANRIBEEBRANENEE
TEEMNEEEE  E—TBETAKH
ANFEEEHERERMAFIESEET

o

AEENHEER AL (BREE KB -2
fi# B Dim ) i A 5= [ B 5 i {E BR B 3m B P JR
mHFEBRETESE  UBRYEEAKHE
MEERFE  EMEREAREREHEE
MR ERE  BEANEENBR TR
FESE XA B MM EIE R B 2B B HPIIEART
B AREERESIRATE DR ERER - U
ERAEEAAPIENERRSHE - R =
Z=F+-A=+—HB AEEHEE=FH
RENAEERAE  BEEMTE16E
B P REE  BEBFLEENETE
BEER T EMNRERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—E==FER

17



18

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HEERREE

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Expand and deepen the omni-channel sales network to further
direct reach to consumers

The Group plans to strengthen the depth and breadth of its
offline store network by deepening market penetration in regions
already covered, expanding the store network to new regions, and
covering more cities in the PRC with more diverse store types.
The Group also plans to further develop its online sales platforms
including third-party food delivery platforms, Guoquan APP,
WeChat mini-program and Douyin, enhance its all-in-one stores
initiative to upgrade its brick-and-mortar stores into offline-
to-online hubs and satellite warehouses to provide a seamless
shopping experience, and expand the offered product portfolio
beyond the constraints of retail space of physical stores. After
consumers place online orders, products will be shipped to the
nearest offline stores for pickup by consumers. This mutually
empowering offline-to-online integration and the additional
function of offline stores as satellite warehouses would thereby
drive the increase of online and offline store sales, and in turn the
revenue.

Moreover, the Group will continue to cultivate more
entrepreneurial franchisees by encouraging existing franchisees
to open more franchised stores, and develop their regionally
integrated operations as a long-term business. The Group
also plans to propel franchisees’ sales growth and cultivate
entrepreneurial franchisees by continuously expanding to
more product categories, upgrading its product portfolio, and
developing more online leads. Going forward, the Group will
continue to optimize its internal training system and strengthen
franchisee and store manager organizations to facilitate the
sharing of management experience amongst them, thereby
continuously improving store performance.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
EBCEKRREE

Continually extend to more consumption scenarios to further
cater to consumer needs

The Group aims to create a more diverse product portfolio by
actively expanding its product categories and combinations to
meet consumers’ needs with different consumption scenarios and
dining habits, thereby generating more revenue and increasing
the Group’s market share. The Group will continue to explore
campsite dining as a new consumption scenario, especially for
the Group’s barbecue products, to further expand its scope of
business to fulfill campsite dining needs in a one-stop manner.
Leveraging its strong supply chain capabilities, the Group plans
to explore additional sales channel to enterprise customers and
strengthen the regional supply chain of home meal products
to provide more regional meal products and cater to consumer
needs.

Strengthen our R&D capability and upstream supply chain to
expand product offerings to reinforce core competitive edges of
products

The Group intends to enhance its R&D capability, enrich its
product offerings and create tasty, convenient and value-for-
money specialties. To this end, the Group plans to increase
investment in R&D centers and continue to collaborate with
upstream suppliers to improve its R&D and innovation capability.
The Group intends to optimize and upgrade its existing products
by continually adjusting its production processes according
to consumer feedback. The Group plans to develop more new
products including developing more products with localized
features to meet local preferences. For its core products such as
beef and lamb, meatballs, shrimp pastes and hotpot seasoning,
the Group will continue to adopt its one-product-one-factory
strategy to achieve economies of scale and increase its cost
advantage. The Group plans to further integrate its upstream
resources and source quality food ingredients through investment
in or partnerships with selective and qualified Chinese and
overseas food suppliers who have market potential and can
achieve synergy with the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HEERREE

Enhance digitalization to continuously increase overall
operational efficiency and revenue

The Group also plans to further enhance procurement
and fulfillment management platforms to better enable
synchronization of inventory turnover data and inventory
management. This will also enable the accurate monitoring of
product demand and freshness, thereby lowering fulfillment costs
and reinforcing product quality control. The Group will continue
to advance the development of its membership system and grow
its membership base through precision marketing and optimized
membership benefit program. The Group will also strengthen
its insights into consumer behavior to offer the most suitable
marketing, services, and products, thus increasing members’
activity and stickiness.

Continue to enhance our brand image and marketing efforts to
increase consumer reach and stickiness

The Group will further invest in brand building and marketing
to reinforce brand awareness, and increase brand recognition,
reputability and consumer loyalty. The Group will further deepen
its consumer reach through high-profile TV commercials, offline
advertisements, community group buys and social commerce
platforms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

The following table sets forth the consolidated financial
performance of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023
and comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2022.

TREVAEEREZE T -_=F+-_A=
+T—HUEFEZREUBEEAREEE
TE-—F+ A=+ —HIEFEZHE®R
o

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—-BLEFE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

RMB RMB

in thousands in thousands

AR®T T ARBT T

Revenue WA \ 6,094,104 7,173,457

Cost of sales SHERAR (4,743,163) (5,924,496)
Gross profit EF 1,350,941 1,248,961
Other income and gains, net E MU A Rk F 58 104,915 121,460

Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDR (578,820) (624,577)

Administrative expenses THAX (497,235) (403,686)

Other expenses HAhFI 52 (8,652) (2,968)

Finance costs BB AR (5,432) (2,564)

Impairment losses on financial assets TRIEERERBE (2,292) (4,584)
Profit before tax BRE% A0 A5 363,425 332,042
Income tax expense FriSHifx (100,023) (91,060)
Net profit for the year ER BRI 263,402 240,982

Net profit attributable to T AL FFE

Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ =N 239,636 229,907
Non-controlling interests R i 23,766 11,075

REVENUE

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue breakdown by
nature and channel in absolute amounts and as percentages of
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022

and 2023:

PN
TRBINEE_E_—_FR_T_=F+=
A=+ BHUEFEAREBRREE RRBEE D
MU A BB - B S BEREARAET D
FITR

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+-ALFE

2023 2022

—EC-=HF —E-—
RMB’000 % RM/B’OOO %
ARBT % AREF T %

Sales of home meal products SHEEREHRERER
and related products RiEREER 5,940,518 97.5 7,058,774 98.4
Sales to franchisees RN HEE 5,365,567 88.1 6,476,687 90.3
Other sales channels HiHERE 574,951 9.4 582,087 8.1
Service income PR WA 153,586 2.5 114,683 1.6
Total wat 6,094,104 100.0 7,173,457 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

The Group’s total revenue decreased by approximately 15.0%
from RMB7,173.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022
to RMB6,094.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Revenue from sales of home meal products and related products
accounted for the majority of the Group’s total revenue,
representing 98.4% and 97.5% of the total revenue in 2022 and
2023, respectively. Such revenue decreased by approximately
15.8% from RMB7,058.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to RMB5,940.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2023, mainly due to the significant impact from the domestic
and international economic situations in 2023, as well as the
temporarily increasing in the number of consumers going out for
dining as the epidemic subsided. Service income increased by
approximately 33.9% from RMB114.7 million for the year ended
2022 to RMB153.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, mainly due to the increase in the number of

December 31,

franchised stores of the Group.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales decreased by approximately 19.9% from
RMB5,924.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB4,743.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly
due to the decrease in the cost of inventories sold as a result of
the decrease in product sales volume.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit increased by 8.2% from RMB1,249.0 million for the
2022 to RMB1,350.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023, the gross profit margin improved
from 17.4% for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 22.2% for
2023, mainly due to the better
cost control ability brought by the advantages of scale and the

year ended December 31,

the year ended December 31,

additional gross profit generated by the development of new
products and the upgrade of the original products, as well as the
increase in the proportion of self-production after the acquisition
of the factories.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE SR

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Other income and gains, net, decreased by 13.6% from RMB121.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB104.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly due to the
decrease in unrealized fair value gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, mainly representing our wealth
management products and unlisted convertible redeemable
preferred shares.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 7.3% from
RMB624.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB578.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly
due to the decrease in revenue, partially offset by the increase in
selling and distribution expenses of the acquired factory.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by 23.2% from RMB403.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB497.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly due to
the increase in the Group’s listing expenses and the increase in
administrative expenses for the acquired factory during the year.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a profit before
income tax of RMB363.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2023, representing an increase of approximately 9.5% from
RMB332.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense increased by approximately 9.8% from
RMB91.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB100.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, mainly
due to the increase in the Group’s taxable income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE S

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit increased by
approximately 9.3% from RMB241.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to RMB263.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The Group’s net profit margin increased from
3.4% for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 4.3% for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

NON-IFRS MEASURES

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial information
prepared and presented in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), the Group has also
adopted adjusted net profit and adjusted net profit margin (each
a non-IFRS measure) as additional financial measures. Adjusted
net profit refers to net profit for the year adjusted for: (i) share-
based payment expenses; and (ii) listing expenses. Listing
expenses refer to the expenses relating to the global offering of
the shares of the Company (the “Global Offering”) completed by
the Group in 2023. Adjusted net profit margin is calculated by
dividing the adjusted net profit for the year by the total revenue
for the relevant year.

The Group uses unaudited non-IFRS measures as additional
financial measures to supplement the consolidated financial
information and to assess the Group’s financial performance by
eliminating the impact of certain non-recurring items that the
Group considers to be non-indicators of the Group’s business
performance. Other companies in the industries in which the
Group operates may have non-IFRS measures that are different
from those of the Group. The use of non-IFRS measures poses
limitations as an analysis tool, you should not regard such
measures as being independent of, or a substitute for, the
analysis of the Group’s results of operations or financial position
as presented in accordance with IFRSs. The Group’s presentation
of such non-IFRS items should not be regarded as an inference
that the Group’s future results will not be affected by unusual or
non-recurring items.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of adjusted net
profit and adjusted net profit margin (non-IFRS measures) for
the years indicated to the most directly comparable financial
measures measured and presented in accordance with IFRSs (i.e.
net profit for the year and net profit margin for the year).

TREIINPIRFE L ARFNERER
EFNBE GERERMBRELERFTE) BR
BEERMEREENFTERERRERA
L B 15 ET B 1R (BNF % AR M A
BE) MR o

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=t—-HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AREF T
Net profit for the year FRFHNHE
(as reported under IFRSs) (IR SR EEA25HR) 263,402 240,982
Adjusted for: RPA TR IBFE -
Share-based payment expenses ARG (D BERER A A - 4,604
Listing expenses WX 54,570 11,199
Adjusted net profit for the year FRKAREFE
(non-IFRS measure) (FEEIPR B 5 sR 5 2ERIGT &) 317,972 256,785
Net profit margin e IDE RS
(as reported under IFRS) (IR R BIRR B 5 35 2RI 2 5R) 4.3% 3.4%
Adjusted net profit margin L eI Ve s
(non-IFRS measure) (GEBIBR M S S RIET 2) 5.2% 3.6%
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBEEREFER

For the year ended December 31, 20283, the Group’s cash
generated from operating activities was RMB678.3 million, as
compared to RMB285.3 million for the year ended December 31,

2022.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits amounted to RMB1,263.3
2022, as compared to RMB1,935.7
2023, comprising long-term bank

million as at December 31,
million as at December 31,
deposits of RMB453.9 million, cash and bank balances of
RMB1,417.6 million and restricted cash of RMB64.2 million.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounted to RMB80.3 million, comprising non-
current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of RMB8.1
million and current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of RMB72.2 million. This represents a decrease of 16.0% from
RMB95.6 million as at December 31,
denominated in RMB and bear interest at fixed rates. The Group

2022. All borrowings are

has not implemented any interest rate hedging policy.

The Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its daily liquidity
management and capital expenditure requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at December 31, 2023, the net asset value of the Group was
RMB3,378.8 million, as compared to RMB2,689.6 million as at
December 31, 2022. The net asset value as at December 31,
2023 mainly comprised current assets of RMB2,875.3 million,
non-current assets of RMB1,776.4 million, current liabilities
of RMB1,167.9 million and non-current liabilities of RMB105.0

million.

As at December 31, 20283, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were mainly denominated in RMB and HK$. As at December
31, 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly
denominated in RMB.

The Group’s gearing ratio (gearing ratio equals total interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities and total equity attributable
to owners of the parent at the end of the year, multiplied by
100%) decreased from 4.9% as at December 31, 2022 to 3.3% as
at December 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RISK

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to cash
and bank balances, bank borrowings. The Group considers that
the overall interest rate risk to be insignificant. The Group has
cash at bank in foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to
foreign exchange risk. The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against foreign exchange risk. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of foreign exchange rates and will take prudent
measures to minimize the currency translation risk.

INVENTORIES

The inventories of the Group decreased by 31.3% from
RMB1,047.4 million as at December 31, 2022 to RMB719.5
million as at December 31, 2023. Due to the lower sales volume,
inventory turnover days increased from 50.8 days in 2022 to 68.0
days in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The trade receivables of the Group decreased from RMB134.3
2022 to RMBb54.3 million as at
December 31, 2023. The trade receivables turnover days
increased slightly from 3.9 days in 2022 to 6.0 days in 2023.

million as at December 31,

TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payables of the Group decreased from RMB577.5
2022 to RMB457.3 million as at
December 31, 2023. The trade payables turnover days increased
from 23.4 days in 2022 to 39.8 days in 2023.

million as at December 31,

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had pledged property, plant
and equipment amounting to RMB220.4 million and right-of-
use assets amounting to RMB89.1 million for its interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of our capital management are to
safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support our business
and maximize equity holders value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, we may adjust the dividend payment to equity
holders, return capital to equity holders or issue new shares. We
are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEES®R DN

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB41.3 million, which were mainly used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures for the period from the Listing Date and up to December
31, 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
INVESTMENTS IN CAPITAL ASSETS

As at December 31, 2023, save as disclosed herein and
the Prospectus, the Group did not have plans for material
investments and capital assets.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EERSAEEAEERE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao (BB &%), aged 53, is our founder,
chairperson of the Board, executive Director, chairperson of the
Nomination Committee of the Board and chief executive officer.
He is primarily responsible for the overall business strategies and
operations of our Group.

Mr. Yang founded our Group in January 2015 and has been
working in our Company and our certain subsidiaries, including
Henan Guogquan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (A/FE$RRE
HIEBEIREERAR)) since January 2015, where he has been
working as the chairman; our Company since July 2019, where
he has been serving as the director; Shanghai Guogquan Shihui
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (E/EBBRIERESEAR
‘A 7]) since June 2020, where he has been serving as a director;
Luyi Heyi Meat Industry Co., Ltd. (B2 M —AZEHFRAF]) since
August 2021, Luyi Chengming Food Co., Ltd. (BE2EEBARMER
A a]) since November 2022 and Guoquan Huanhuan Food (Hubei)
Co., Ltd.((BEEE R mOAIL) BRAF]) since January 2024 where
he has been serving as the chairman.

Mr. Yang received a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from
Zhengzhou University (B8 KE2) in the PRC in June 1994.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEE EENEREEAERE

Mr. Meng Xianjin (Z5%#E%E), aged 43, is our co-founder,
executive Director and executive vice president. He is primarily
responsible for the market development and store management
of our Group.

Mr. Meng co-founded our Group with Mr. Yang in January
2015, and has been working in our Company and our certain
subsidiaries, including Henan Guoquan Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (UM RBEHEEEIEERAF) since
January 2015, where he has been serving as a vice president;
Zhengzhou Guoquan Shihui Network Technology Co., Ltd. (EBJH
B REMEEHIE AR A R]) since February 2017, where he has been
serving as the director; Shaanxi Guoquan Shihui Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (BREAMBEREREEEBR AT since
August 2019, where he has been serving as the director; Beijing
Guoquan Shihui Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (Jt ZRER
[EREEIEAMRAA]) and Nanjing Guoquan Shihui Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (A RMEREMEEERR AR since
August 2019, where he has been serving as the supervisor; and
our Company since October 2019, where he has been serving as
the Director.

Mr. Meng is currently studying in the China Chain Enterprise CEO
Training Program (R EIEHE M2 CEO #HEETE]) at the Lifelong
Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/8325 A&
BB B,

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

BRERE 435 RRMWBEEIBA -
WTESHREBRER - AELETBRENRN
SENTISMEMPIYEEIE o

HEAR-FT-RAF - AEBEERRAIZ
AEE - W—BHAEANEEREMNE THIE
RAMER  BEE-T—RAF— AREDT
MmEHEREREARAREER B =F
—tEF - AREEEMNRABRESERRE
RAFBIESE: B NF )\ AREEIKRA
HERERXEERARARES B -FT—
NENAREFILERBERERXEREAR
RANERABEREREEEBRAAE
= BT NFTAREEARRES -

HEEBRMER EEXBRBREHE SR
& B BlE $H (b S CEOMHE T BIERAZ -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EENEREEAERE

Mr. An Haolei (£ %t 4E), aged 39, is our executive Director and
vice president. He is primarily responsible for the capital market
and IT department management of our Group. Mr. An joined our
Group in July 2018 as vice president and has served as executive
Director and vice president since March 2020. He currently serves
as a director at several subsidiaries within our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. An served as a general manager in
Zhengzhou Anzhong Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
(BN ROEEIEFHRNERAT]) from January 2012 to May 2015,
and a general manager in Henan Kangzhiyuan Trading Co., Ltd. (A
R ZREE AR A R]) from May 2015 to July 2018.

Mr. An obtained a junior college diploma in mobile Internet
application technology (%) & B JE A 1lT H %)
University of China (BIRFAE) in January 2024.

in the Open

Ms. Luo Na (2 t), aged 42, is our executive Director and vice
president. She is primarily responsible for managing the product
chain of the Group.

Since March 2017, Ms. Luo has been working in our Company and
our certain subsidiaries, including Henan Guoquan Supply Chain
(i HmEE e E I AR A A]) since March

2017 and our Company since July 2020, where she has been

Management Co., Ltd.

working as the director of product center; Luyi County Wanlai
Wanqu Food Co., Ltd. (BEHAKAERMBARAR), Luyi Heyi
Meat Industry Co., Ltd. (BEBHM—ANEARAF]) since August
2021 and Guoquan Huanhuan Food (Hubei) Co., Ltd ($BB&E & @
CH1E)BFRAR]) since January 2024, where she has been serving
as the director.

Ms. Luo obtained a junior college diploma (through
correspondence course) in business and corporation
administration in Henan Normal University (i F 5 A2) in the
PRC in July 2023.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yi Jiayu (REKF %k 4), aged 42, has been our non-executive
Director since October 2019. He mainly participates in evaluation
and approval of business plans, strategies and major decisions of
our Group through the Board.

Mr. Yi has approximately 15 years of experience in investment
and management. From September 2014 to November 2017, Mr.
Yi worked at CICC ALPHA (Beijing) Private Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (F&FFILR)REREESEERFR A A).
Since 2018, Mr. Yi has been working in Shanghai Buhuo Private
Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BT XAEE S
B APRAF]) with his current position as a partner.

Mr. Yi graduated from Shandong Jianzhu University (LLEREER
&) in the PRC with a major in computer science and technology
in July 2004. He further obtained a master’s degree in computer
application in Beijing University of Chemical Technology (3t ®{t T
X&) in the PRC in July 2008.
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Mr. Zeng Xinghai (B &S % %), aged 46, has been our non-
executive Director since August 2022. He mainly participates in
evaluation and approval of business plans, strategies and major
decisions of our Group through the Board.

Mr. Zeng has extensive experience in financial management and
investing. Mr. Zeng worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian
Shenzhen Branch (EZEXKEFR R FTEISEIEATREIISFT) from July
2001 to September 2010. From October 2010 to May 2013, Mr.
Zeng served in China Merchants Fund Management Co., Ltd. (48
AELEEAERAF]). From October 2015 to July 2017, Mr. Zeng
worked in CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (FRiR&
BZRR ORI B R A E]). Since August 2017, Mr. Zeng has been
working in CMB International Capital Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (FRRBEBEEXRER(RINERA

position as a managing director, engaged in private equity

) with his current

investment business. Since July 2016, Mr. Zeng has been the
legal representative of Shenzhen Hongshu Growth Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (RIIAIIKNRIEEEEBR A
in private equity investment business. From December 2022 to

A]), engaged

March 2024, Mr. Zeng served as a director in Shenzhen Aiper
Intelligent Co., Ltd. (RIITITLREEERIFTBRAE]). Mr. Zeng has
been a director of Allsaints Music Group Corporation Limited
since April 2023. Mr. Zeng has been a director of Beyond Power
Limited since August 2023. Mr. Zeng has been a director of Aiper
Global PTE.LTD and Aiper Inc since January 2024.

Mr. Zeng has been a non-practising associate of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FREFM&:tATitH =)
(CICPA) since February 2011, and a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) ((FFF ARSI AE)
since November 2008.

Mr. Zeng obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial management
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (&8t
RE) in the PRC in July 2001, and an MBA degree in finance
and strategy from Rotman School of Management, University of
Toronto in Canada in June 2015.
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Mr. Liu Zhengzheng (%I$#8%), aged 32, has been our non-
executive Director since September 2023. He mainly participates
in evaluation and approval of business plans, strategies and
major decisions of our Group through the Board.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in the capital market. From
November 2014 to March 2017, Mr. Liu worked in Henan Jiarui
ORI EERRERRAF]). From April 2017
to March 2023, Mr. Liu served as the board secretary of Henan
Huahuaniu Dairy Group Co., Ltd. CAREMEEFILEEBRHBRA
Al), primarily responsible for its initial public offering. Since April

Investment Co., Ltd.

20283, Mr. Liu has been working as a manager in the securities
K BRAE],

a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:

AL
2R mf

department in Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. (=
002216), primarily responsible for the information disclosure and
investor relationship management. Since August 2023, Mr. Liu
has been the board secretary of Suanquan Food Co., Ltd..

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in Finance from Henan
University of Economics and Law (R F B A& BUEARE) in the PRC in
July 2018 and a master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from
University of London in United Kingdom in November 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong (GEEM%L4E), aged 49, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2023, and the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee of the Board and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board and providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business and operational management of the
Group.

Mr. Zeng has extensive experience in finance and investments.
Mr. Zeng worked at Bank of China’s New York Branch (FFBISR1T4]
#95377) from February 1999 to July 2005 with his last position as
a vice president in the Corporate Banking Department. He joined
J.P.Morgan (EERARBIZEIRTT) in July 2005 as an equity analyst
of the Equities Research Department before moving to the
investment banking department covering financial institutions.
From August 2008 to September 2022, Mr. Zeng worked at
Greenwoods Asset Management Hong Kong Limited (EME&
EEEEBEAERAT]), a private fund manager focusing on the
management of Greater China investments, with his last position
as the partner and chief executive officer. Mr. Zeng started and
served as the chairman of Arcadia Fund Management Group
Asia Limited (RIEESEREBEMARAT) in December 2022
to be focused on investments into listed and to-be-listed Asian
companies. He is also a director of its parent company, Arcadia
Fund Management Group Limited (BISEESEREBBRAR),
and its affiliated company, Arcadia Fund Management GP Limited
(RIEESERLBARABRLA).

Mr. Zeng has been a holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) designation ($FaF& @5 #7EN) since 2003. And he is a Vice
Chairman and a non-executive director of the Chinese Mainland
Committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association (HKVCA) (BB BIENILBEREHS).

Mr. Zeng graduated from Wuhan University (B2 KXZ) in the
PRC with a major in International Finance in July 1995, and then
studied in the International Finance program at the Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China (B AR RITHIZT A ER)
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Zeng graduated with a Master of Science
degree in Accounting & Finance from the London School of
Economics (LSE) in United Kingdom in August 1998, where he
received the Robert Fleming scholarship.
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Ms. Yu Fang Jing (BBBEEEZ t), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Board. She is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board and providing strategic advice
and guidance on financial management and internal control of
the Group.

Ms. Yu has professional legal experience in Hong Kong capital
market for almost 20 years. From August 2003 to October 2010,
Ms. Yu worked in the Hong Kong and Beijing Offices in Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer LLP (& m{Z2EME A1), with her last position
as a senior associate. From February 2011 to April 2018, Ms. Yu
worked in the Beijing and Shanghai Offices in Clifford Chance LLP
(B B4R EZRIETEPT) with her last position during the above period
as a partner. Ms. Yu then served as a partner in the Hong Kong
Office of Tian Yuan Law Firm from September 2019 to February
2021, and as a partner in the Hong Kong Office of Paul Hastings
LLP (E&ERMEISAN) from March 2021 to November 2022. From
December 2022 to March 2024, Ms. Yu served as an in-house
counsel and a managing director in Mont Avenir Capital Limited

(REZBARAT).

Ms. Yu has been a member of the law society of Hong Kong
since 2006 and she was qualified as a solicitor of Hong Kong in
December 2005.

Ms. Yu obtained the bachelor’s degree in Law from University of
New South Wales in Australia in January 2002.
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Mr. Li Jianfeng (ZE8IIE5E4E), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board and providing strategic advice
and guidance on financial management and internal control of
the Group.

Mr. Li has over 15 years’ experience in the catering industry. He
has been working in China Hospitality Association (the “CHA”)
(P EERJE#E) since July 2006. From July 2006 to February
2013, Mr. Li worked as the project manager in the celebrity chef
working committee of the CHA, and was primarily in charge of
daily work in the office. From February 2013 to February 2014,
Mr. Li served as the deputy director in the training department of
the CHA, primarily responsible for hotel catering training. From
February 2014 to March 2022, Mr. Li worked in the hot pot special
committee of the CHA with his last position as the secretary-
general, and was primarily responsible for affairs in the hot pot
sector. Since January 2023, Mr. Li has served as the deputy
secretary-general of the CHA and the director of the Southwest
Office.

Mr. Li obtained the professional qualification certificate of senior
Chinese chef (level 1) (R ZFIRD = AR LA (—AR)) granted by the
Hubei Provincial Vocational Skills Appraisal and Guidance Center
in the PRC (Hit BB FEEZEEHEE A1) in July 2010.

Mr. Li obtained the undergraduate diploma in biological
engineering from Chengdu University (B&BKXE) (formerly known
as Chengdu College (B #2Fx)) in July 2006.
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Mr. Shi Kangping (FMEEEF %), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and the
chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board and providing strategic advice and guidance on
financial management and internal control of the Group.

Mr. Shi has over 20 years’ experience in accounting and
finance. From January 2002 to July 2005, Mr. Shi worked in
CEEK B R TR ETEFT) with his last
position as consulting department manager. From July 2007 to
September 2011, Mr. Shi worked in Microsoft Corporation (%),
a company listed on NASDAQ (Nasdag: MSFT), as a global finance

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (&

manager. From September 2011 to December 2016, Mr. Shi
worked in Baidu, Inc. (BEEEKH AR 2 R]), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (9888.HK) and on NASDAQ (Nasdag: BIDU),
with his last position as the director of its financial planning and
analysis department. From December 2016 to December 2017,
Mr. Shi worked as the chief financial officer at Ping An Healthcare
and Technology Company Limited ((FZEREEBEREABRAR]),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1833.HK).
From February 2018 to November 2020, Mr. Shi was the chief
financial officer of Maoyan Entertainment (J#AR#R£%), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1896.HK). From
November 2020 to June 2022, Mr. Shi was the chief financial
officer of Waterdrop Inc. (KA R]), a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE: WDH). From December 2018 to July
20283, Mr. Shi served as the independent non-executive director
of Life Concepts Holdings Limited (4E/EBE 4R ABR A
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8056.HK).
Since June 2022, Mr. Shi has been serving as the chief financial
officer of Terminus Technology Group Co., Ltd. (iFETE BRI EE) in
charge of financing, and accounting affairs.

Mr. Shi has been a Chartered Professional Accountant of Canada
since August 2000.

Mr. Shi obtained the bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Tsinghua University (BZEAXZ) in the PRC in June 1998, and a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Michigan in the United States in April 2007.
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Zheng Min (#8Z 1), aged 43, is our Supervisor and
chairman of the board of supervisors who is responsible for
supervising the performance of duties by the Directors and senior
management of the Company. Ms. Zheng joined our Group in
January 2017 as an operating director responsible for franchisee
management and has served as the Supervisor since December
2019. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zheng worked as a regional
manager in Zhengzhou Guoguo Catering Management Co., Ltd. (Zf
MIEFHEREIEBLR A A]) from August 2004 to March 2012.

Ms. Zheng is currently pursuing a junior college diploma in
business administration in the Open University of China (Bl R
AE) in the PRC.

Ms. Xue Hong (B8 1), aged 45, joined the Group in January
2015 and currently serves as the deputy financial director of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xue worked in FUREN
Group Pharmaceutical Limited Company (#{_ #3t E=E B LG R N
A]) from January 2008 to May 2014, with her last position held as
a financial manager.

Ms. Xue graduated from Zhengzhou University (Z8MAXE%) in the
PRC, with a bachelor’s degree in accounting. Ms. Xue obtained the
qualification of intermediate accountant in the PRC in May 2006.

Ms. Zhang Yifan (JRE L L), aged 35, is our Supervisor who
is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Ms. Zhang
joined our Group in August 2019 as the chairman assistant
and has served as the Supervisor since February 2023. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Zhang served as an editorial reporter
in Zhengzhou TV Station (ESJNEKRE) from October 2011 to
July 2019. Also, she is concurrently serving as a director of a
subsidiary within our Group.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in broadcasting and
hosting arts from Zhongyuan University of Technology (/R T2
B) in the PRC in July 2010.

E=S

BBt 435 ARRIEEREEEE
& ABREBARREERSAEEEBRIT
BENBERLSE BLLtR-_T—+F—AM
AREERTLERE  BENEHER -
BEZZE—NGF+-ABRETES - AR
EEF BrtR -_TEZNFN\AE_F—
TFE= AEEINGREEREEFR AR TR
HAET2 o

BLTENETEBEZARARRETLEE
BAREXR

BBt 455 R-ZE—RhF—ANMAK
B BEARFINBRIRE - MAKREE
Al BZ TR _EENF-AE T —F
TATHRECEEEEBEERAR &
BETHRNL AP FGAEIE -

HETRERPESNAS  BERHST
Bl BER-TTAFAARGHES
BEHEEL -

RENZL 35 ARAIESE BEE
BEARAREERSREERERTBRENER
Lo RETHRZZE—NFNAMALEE
FEEENE BE-ZT-_=F_ AREF
BEE o MAKRKER  RETHR_FT——F
FTAEZE-NFLAABMEREHEED
HEWRE b AAEE—RHHBARMNE
%o

REEIR-_T-—ZFTFLAREFHEPRIES
PrE g B REMEXELEMN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Bo=EER

39



40

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEE EENEREEAERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For details of the biographies of Mr. Yang Mingchao (158 B 5T 4),
Mr. Meng Xianjin (T 7Ei# % 4), Mr. An Haolei (Z/&& % %) and Ms.
Luo Na (%22 L), please see “Directors” in this section.

Mr. Wang Hui (ERESE4), aged 39, is our Board secretary and
joint company secretary of our Company. He was also appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in February 2024.
Mr. Wang is responsible for managing the overall financial and
capital market related work.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in September 2020. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Wang worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian
(L EESKBHP KRG RTHAISEEFT) from September 2006 to August 2014
with his last position as an audit manager. From August 2014 to
May 2015, Mr. Wang worked in Bayer (China) Limited (FFE (FH)
BRARAD. From June 2015 to August 2016, Mr. Wang worked in
Covestro Polymers (China) Co., Ltd. (BLR2BIEE M (R R)BR A F)).
From September 2016 to September 2020, Mr. Wang worked as a
financial director in YANG’S DUMPLING Enterprise Management
Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (NMEARIGEERER(-8)E
R A R]).

Mr. Wang has been a Certified Public Accountant of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FREIsEM&tAiHE)
(CICPA) since December 2009 (currently non-practising).

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics and
applied mathematics in East China University of Science and
Technology ((ERE T A2) in the PRC in July 2006.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Hui (EEE%4) was appointed as a joint company
secretary of our Company with effect from October 2023. For the
biographical information of Mr. Wang Hui, please see “Senior
Management” in this section.

Ms. Ho Yin Kwan (fif#&& £ 1), was appointed as our joint
company secretary with effect from October 2023. Ms. Ho has
extensive experience in corporate secretarial field and has been
providing corporate secretarial services to listed companies
incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas. She is a vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited which
is principally engaged in the provision of company secretarial
services, and has assisted in discharging company secretarial
responsibilities in various companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Ho holds a bachelor’s
degree in business and finance from the University of Portsmouth
and a master’s degree in corporate governance from the
Open University of Hong Kong (currently known as Hong Kong
Metropolitan University). She is also a member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

GLOBAL OFFERING

On November 2, 2023, the H Shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. The Prospectus is available at the website
of Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the
Company (www.zzggsh.com).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are the leading and a rapidly growing home meal products
brand in China. We offer a variety of ready-to-eat, ready-to-
heat, ready-to-cook and prepared ingredients, with a focus
on at-home hotpot and barbecue products. We are devoted to
developing products under our proprietary brand name carrying
the “Guoquan Shihui” logo. Our product portfolio comprises
eight categories including hotpot products, barbecue products,
beverages, solo-dining meals, ready-to-cook meal kits, fresh
produce, western cuisines and snacks. With a carefully curated
product portfolio, strong supply chain capabilities and a retail
network of franchised stores across the country, we provide
consumers with a wide variety of tasty, convenient and affordable
home meal products under the Guoquan Shihui ($3B R [#) brand,
serving diverse dining scenarios.

We have also been developing online sales channels including our
Guoquan APP, WeChat mini-program as well as on popular social
commerce platforms such as Douyin. In addition, we partner with
third-party food delivery platforms, such as Meituan and Ele.me
to deliver our products to consumers. Online and offline shopping
options achieve highly extensive consumer reach. Leveraging the
highly efficient management and operation of our supply chain
and our digitalized management system, we are able to ensure
product quality and safety, as well as achieve high operational
efficiency from food production to retail sales.

For further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal
activities, please refer to the sections headed “Chairperson’s
Statement”, “Business Review and Outlook” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” in the Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Company’s performance during the Reporting
Period, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and analysis using the Company’s financial key
performance indicators for the Reporting Period are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in the Annual Report. Main risks and uncertain factors faced
by the Group are set out in section headed “Major Risks and
Uncertainties” in this report. The future development of the
Company’s business is discussed throughout the Annual Report
including in the sections headed “Chairperson’s Statement”,
“Business Review and Outlook” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in the Annual Report. The Group complies with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations, including the
Environmental Protection Law, the Cleaner Production Promotion
Law, and the Law on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution and other. Additional details regarding the
Company’s performance on environmental and social-related key
performance indicators and policies are provided in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Policies
and Performance” of this report. Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” of this report. The Company’s key relationships
with its employees, customers and suppliers and others that
have a significant impact on the company and on which the
Company’s success depends are provided in the “Relationship
with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the
Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, to the best knowledge
of the Board, the Group has complied in all material respects
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial position,
results of operations, and business prospects may be affected by
a number of risks and uncertainties relating directly or indirectly
to the Group’s business. Some of the major risks that we face
include: (i) Awareness, recognition and popularity of our brand,
whether in our existing markets or new markets, are pivotal to
the success of our business. Any negative impacts on our brand
or reputation, or failure to effectively promote our brand, could
adversely affect our business and results of operations; (ii) Our
business is affected by changes in consumer tastes and dining
preference, which we may not be able to anticipate and identify in
a timely manner or at all. Our efforts in developing, launching and
promoting new products, and diversifying our product and brand
portfolio may not be successful, which may expose us to the risks
of extra costs and expenses; (iii) Any failure by us, our franchisees
or our suppliers to maintain effective quality control systems of
our products could have a material adverse effect on our brand
reputation, business and operations; (iv) Our extensive store
network primarily comprises franchised stores that are operated
by franchisees. Our results of operations are largely subject to
the performance of the franchised stores. We cannot control and
may not be able to effectively monitor the operations of these
franchised stores or maintain our current relationship with the
franchisees; (v) We rely on third-party warehousing and logistics
providers to store and deliver our products to our stores, and
risks associated with warehousing and logistics may adversely
impact our reputation, business and financial performance; (vi)
Our revenue growth in the past was largely attributable to the
rapid expansion of our store network. We cannot assure you that
we will maintain our store network or successfully implement
our expansion plan in the future; (vii) Our development strategies
may not achieve the expected goals in the near term, or at all;
(viii) We operate in a highly competitive and fast-changing market
and may lose our market share if we fail to compete successfully;
(ix) If our suppliers do not deliver quality food ingredients and
raw materials at competitive prices or in a timely manner due
to deteriorated relationships with us or insufficient production
capacity, we may experience supply shortages and increased
procurement costs, (x) We may experience reduction in our
production capacity due to force majeure events, mechanical
failures, or utility shortages, which may have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations; and (xi) We may not be able to maintain an active and
expanding member base.
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Please refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors” of the
Prospectus for other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We believe environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters
are essential to our continuous development. We are committed
to integrating ESG criteria into our daily business activities. We
have been, and will continue to be, committed to sustainable
corporate development by focusing on areas such as product
quality and safety, consumer service, compliance employment,
environment protection and public responsibility.

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company,
prepared in accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules, is set out on pages 100 to
185 of the Annual Report.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had a total of 2,045
employees. In 2023, the total employee benefit expenses arising

from the Group amounted to RMB463.4 million.

The Group recruits employees primarily by way of headhunting,
referrals, on-campus recruiting programs and recruitment
websites. The Group recognizes the importance of training
its employees to enhance their technical skills and overall
capabilities. The Group provides a comprehensive training system
to enhance the technical skills and management skills of its
employees in practical areas.

The Group is dedicated to providing fair and equal opportunities
to its employees, and has formulated detailed career
development and promotion plans covering all levels of
employees, and conducts regular performance assessments.
The salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees are
determined with reference to the market and the individual’s
qualifications and competence, and performance bonuses and
other incentive systems are established, which are paid based
on the performance of individual employees and the overall
performance of the Group’s business. Employees who have made
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business are recognized
and encouraged with a competitive remuneration policy.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended December 31, 20283, the proportions of
the revenue from the top five customers of the Group and the
proportions of the purchases from the top five suppliers of the
Group were both less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term goals. The Group maintains a good
relationship with employees, customers and suppliers. During
the Reporting Period, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, customers and/or
suppliers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on
pages 193 to 295 in the consolidated financial statements in the
Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group’s for the last four financial years is set out on page 296 in
the Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend
of RMBO0.0521 (tax inclusive) per ordinary share, equivalent to
an aggregate amount of RMB143.1 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The proposed final dividend shall be declared
in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars to the holders of H shares.
The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be converted
from RMB at the average exchange rate of RMB to Hong Kong
dollars as published by the People’s Bank of China for the five
business days prior to the forthcoming annual general meeting
and the final dividend payable to the holders of Domestic
Unlisted Shares of the Company will be paid in RMB. If such
profit distribution plan is approved by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on June 27, 2024 (Thursday), the final
dividend will be paid no later than August 29, 2024 (Thursday),
to the Shareholders whose names are listed on the register of
members of the Company on July 9, 2024 (Tuesday).
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The Company will not be liable for any claim or dispute over the
withholding mechanism arising from any delay in, or inaccurate
determination of the status of the Shareholders.

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently do not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. The Board and the Company may declare dividends after
taking into account our results of operations, financial condition,
cash requirements and availability and other factors as it may
deem relevant at such time. Any declaration and payment
as well as the amounts of dividends will be subject to our
constitutional documents, applicable PRC laws and approval by
our Shareholders. Future dividend payments will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries
in China. PRC laws require that dividends should be paid only out
of the profit for the year calculated according to PRC accounting
principles, while the calculation of distributable profits under
PRC GAAP is different from the calculation under IFRS in certain
respects. PRC laws also require our subsidiaries to set aside part
of their net profit as statutory reserves, which are not available
for distribution as cash dividends. Distributions from our
subsidiaries may also be restricted if they incur debt or losses,
or in accordance with any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may
enter into in the future.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on November
2, 2023 (i.e. the Listing Date) by way of a global offering of the
H Shares. Pursuant to the Global Offering, an aggregate of
77,360,400 H Shares, including 8,557,600 H Shares issued by the
Company pursuant to the partial exercise of the Over-allotment
Option were issued to the public at a price of HK$5.98 per H
Share. For further details, please refer to the Prospectus and the
announcements of the Company dated November 1, 2023 and
November 27, 2023, respectively.

ST AT R 5 10 R BE B By T O 33 AR T
JE T I B fa] 2= 8 3 8 (0 AU I 0
M%E  AREHEIEE -

EEQY TANBEMRREAERRAERE
RS -

IR EBUR

HPEAYBEMELEENREER - EF
ERARNAKEEBRMANKEEE - W5
AR REFRMABESAREAEZRA
ERSHENEMCARRERRE - £FE
TR ER AR BB £ AR B FINERX
1~ B e BDAR DA R FIR R B0 L P
IR o RABRBIR S 77 # BUR R e 2 P9 0
TENERRESKRENES - PEDAE
BE - EERRTPEESAENFENFR
FBFIRMBE - MEAR S ERTHA
2 TR A B B0 RT3 B B R B 5 e o 2B R T RO R
BHEETHTHEAMTR - PEOERTRER
FIE B 8 72 B 28 S B B0 0 M B 8 08 A T
B MASERRERETIR ° fWE R
@R IREHLER - ARBEHEMILRK
PIEV P B A B R R AT BERT SV ERTTIE B R E
ok H At 175 5% B0 (L ARV BR Il ME AR - BIJ2K B 24P
BB X B0 0 K 7 AT BE B RR I

RRBEMERERAR

BROR—ZZE=_=F+—A=H8 (BN LmAHH)
AR IREBEEHRN TN LT - B
SIRESE - 54£77,360,4000%HAX (BIEAR L
AIA B 1T B AL AR M 3 1THY 8,557,600
BEHRY) BIR S HAR5.08 B THEREITT
NR o BAE—FHE  FL2HAREER
AABIBBHARNAZE-_=F+—F—HBXK
—EC=F+ At tEHNAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Bo=EER

47



48

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

From the Listing Date to December 31, 20283, the Group has
gradually used the proceeds from the initial public offering for
the intended purposes set out in the Prospectus. The aggregate
net proceeds from the Global Offering, after deduction of the
underwriting fees and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$448.7 million.

As at December 31, 2023, the Group has utilized approximately
HK$19.8 million of the proceeds in aggregate for the intended
purposes set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 4.4% of
all raised funds, and the remaining unutilized proceeds are
approximately HK$428.9 million. For details, please see the
following table:
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net amount Unutilized net
Net proceeds utilized during amountasat  Expected timeline for

% of total net from the the Reporting December 31,  fully utilizing unutilized
proceeds  Global Offering Period 2%23 net amount
z
LB ERBE gt 3
MIEBED AR BEHE +t=A=t-H HADAEE
B FHE EREAEE HABARE FANEEEARHE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BE#ETL) (REETL) (RE#ETL)
Construction, investment or acquisition 25% 12.1 0 1121 Onor before December
of plants 31, 2027
i BEAYE TR S
=+—Hzal
Upgrade and expand our existing plants 15% 67.3 0 67.3  Onor before December
and production lines 31,2027
REBEREEROARRIER S
=+—Hzal
Open and operate our self-operated 40% 179.5 0 179.5  Onor before December
stores 31,2027
FRREEEEE S
=+—HgzAl
Build product R&D centers as well 10% 44.9 0 449 Onor before December
as upgrade and purchase related 31,2027
equipment
RRERPER LUK S S
FBMBERARE =t+—A%zH
Working capital and general corporate 10% 449 19.8 25.1  Onor before December
uses 31,2027
nBEeNM—RARBE Bk o
=t+—A%zA
Total 448.7 19.8 428.9
@zt

The balance of the proceeds of the Global Offering will be utilized
in the manner disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not conducted any
other equity fund raising activities during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.
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MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at December
31, 2023 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements in the Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual
Report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2023 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated

financial statements in the Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2023, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company or any of its

subsidiaries.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the Group’s reserves during the
2023 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.

year ended December 31,

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2023, the Company had distributable reserves
of RMB179.2 million.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the year ended December 31, 20283, there were no

debentures issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

Save for the Global Offering, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of Company for the period from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association or under the laws of the PRC being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Board was not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to any Shareholders by reason of their holding securities of the
Company.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the Group’s pension scheme for the year ended
December 31, 2023 are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Annual Report.

DONATION

The Group’s charitable donations for the year ended December
31, 2023 amounted to approximately RMB3.5 million.
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LIST OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As of the date of this report, the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors are as follows:

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao
(Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Meng Xianjin
Mr. An Haolei
Ms. Luo Na

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yi Jiayu
Mr. Zeng Xinghai
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng (effective from September 8, 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong

(effective from October 20, 2023)
Ms. Yu Fang Jing

(effective from October 20, 2023)
Mr. Li Jianfeng

(effective from October 20, 2023)
Mr. Shi Kangping

(effective from October 20, 2023)

Board of Supervisors

Ms. Zheng Min
Ms. Xue Hong (effective from April 3, 2024)
Ms. Zhang Yifan

Note: (1) Mr. Li Hong Kai resigned as a non-executive Director with effect

from September 7, 2023.

(2) Mr. Zhang Boyuan resigned as the employee representative
supervisor with effect from April 3, 2024.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the four independent non-executive Directors as at the date
of the Annual Report, are independent having regard to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A biographical detail of each of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management are set out on pages 29 to 41 in the Annual
Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

From April 3, 2024, Mr. Zhang Boyuan ceased to be the employee
representative supervisor of the board of supervisors of the
Company.

The Board announces that, Ms. Xue Hong (E£38) (“Ms. Xue”),
was elected as an employee representative supervisor at the
employee representative meeting of the Company held on April
3, 2024. The Company has entered into a service contract with
Ms. Xue in her role as an employee representative supervisor. The
term of office of Ms. Xue has been commencing from April 3, 2024
and will end on the expiry of the term of the first session of the
Board of Supervisors.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated April 3, 2024.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wWERm (L&) ROBRATA

BAFHTESHIMRER

RAREEESEIIFNTESRE TR
A3 2B MR - WRE E™
RANES1GFEB L M ERRA  HEAX
FHREH  MEBIENTEEHRBEILA

TEE EEkm
RE29BE41H ©

REBEANBBEHNASF

H

EEREERFEEED

RRELEA T _WNFMA=—HETHE
EARPEFEEBRITRREERS -

EFxesh BBt (BN -_2=
MEEmMA=HELXR TH&I&%«%KA 25
BTRRESE - ARFCHEZERITRG
AR AEEEBRIARES B - BExL
WEMBE T _MFMA=-AREEE—EE
EZeEHERRL -

EREZHIE  FR2HARRAHAR-F=
MEMA=BHRE -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of our Directors has entered into service contracts with our
Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts
comprise (a) a term of three years which is equivalent to the term
of the Board; and (b) termination provisions in accordance with
their respective terms. Our Directors may be re-appointed subject
to Shareholders’ approval. The service contracts can be renewed
pursuant to our Articles of Association and applicable rules.

Each of our Supervisors has entered into a contract with
our Company. Each contract contains provisions relating to
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, observation of
our Articles of Association and resolution of disputes by means of
arbitration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and Supervisor has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

None of the Directors and Supervisors waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments throughout the year ended December 31, 2023.

Details of Directors’ and Supervisors’ remuneration for the year
ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report,

Save as disclosed in “Related Party Transactions”

for the year ended December 31, 2023 and as at December 31,
2023, there was no transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party to and in which a Director, Supervisor or any entity
connected with any of them has or had at any time during that
period, in any way, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, at no time during the
2023
had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any

period from the Listing Date and up to December 31,

material contracts with the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any material contacts been entered into for
the services provided by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended December 31, 2023 has any
rights been granted to any Directors to enable them to benefit
from the purchase of Shares or debentures of the Company, and
no arrangement has been entered into by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or holding companies or subsidiaries of the

olding company whereby the Directors have access to the rights

of any other legal entities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the formulation
and review of the remuneration policies and plans for the
Company’s Directors and senior management, and is accountable
to the Board, to whom the Remuneration Committee reports
on its work. The Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics, decides the emoluments of the
Directors.

None of the Directors and Supervisors and the five highest
paid individuals received any emolument from the Group as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and
the five highest paid individuals for the year ended December
31, 2023 are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 20283, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SF0”)) as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register required
to be kept under the section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Interests in the Company

Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Number of class of issued share
Name Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held® shares (%) capital (%)
ARSI HERITRE
R4 IR AE R mEmREN
BEN BABDE BAED
®E BRAAEER ERnE RHEBE (%)™ (%)
Mr. Yang Mingchao®® ® © Domestic Unlisted Interest in controlled 881,420,916 92.85 32.08
Shares corporations
BHBEEYOE BNR WG REEEENER
H Shares Interest in controlled 417,182,699 23.20 15.18
corporations
Hi&% REEEE NS
Mr. Meng Xianjin®® Domestic Unlisted Interest in controlled 881,420,916 92.85 32.08
Shares corporations
dAESR LS BNRETRG REEEENES
Mr. Zeng Xinghai® H Shares Interest in controlled 166,360 0.07 0.01
corporations
DEGEEO HA% REEEE NS
Notes: BIRE -

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,747,360,400 Shares in
issue comprising 949,301,924 Domestic Unlisted Shares and 1,798,058,476
H Shares as at December 31, 2023.

All interests are long positions.

Guoquan Industry is owned to 55.61%, 37.07% and 7.32% by Mr. Yang
Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua, respectively. Mr. Yang
Mingchao and Mr. Meng Xianjin are therefore deemed to be interested in
the 881,420,916 Domestic Unlisted Shares held through Guoquan Industry.

Guoxiaoquan EM is owned as to 80% by Mr. Yang Mingchao as its general
partner. Guoxiaoquan Tech is owned as to 44.09% by Mr. Yang Mingchao
as its general partner. Therefore, Mr. Yang Mingchao is deemed to be
interested in 331,595,457 H Shares and 85,687,242 H Shares converted
from Domestic Unlisted Shares held through Guoxiaoquan EM and
Guoxiaoquan Tech, respectively.

On July 16, 2019, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua
entered into a concert party agreement which was supplemented on March
1, 2023, pursuant to which Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua have agreed
and confirmed that during the period starting from July 16, 2019 to the
date when they cease to be our direct or indirect Shareholder, they have
acted and will continue to act in concert in respect of the management
and operations of our Company by aligning their votes in accordance with
Mr. Yang’'s decisions when exercising their rights as Shareholders of the
Company prior to December 2021 and as shareholders of Guoquan Industry
since December 2021 when their direct interests in the Company were
reflected at the level of Guoquan Industry. Therefore, under the SFO, Mr.
Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua are deemed to be jointly interested in the
Shares held by Mr. Yang in Guoquan Industry.
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(6) Zhuhai Growth and Win-Win Venture Capital Fund (Limited Partnership) (&
HTRREBAIZEREES (BRER)) is managed by Shenzhen Hongshu
Growth Investment Management Co., Ltd. (CRIIAL IR RITEBIRARA ),
which in turn is held as to 60% by Mr. Zeng Xinghai. Therefore, Mr. Zeng
Xinghai is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Zhuhai Growth and
Win-Win Venture Capital Fund (Limited Partnership) under the SFO.

2023, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31,

or deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2023, so far as was known to, or could be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by, the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the following persons/entities in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO (the interests
and/or short positions in the Shares, if any, as disclosed in this
paragraph are supplemental to those disclosed in relation to the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company):
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Approximate

Approximate

percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Name of Number of class of issued share
substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%)™ capital (%)
EHRBRER HERTRA
R A3 BRAEHY BEREN
HEMN BABAL L EOER
TERFER R R EEEE RAEE (%) (%)
Mr. Li Xinhua® Domestic Unlisted Shares Interest held jointly with 881,420,916 92.85 32.08
other persons
Ey e BRA ETRA s ALFAFENER
Guoguan Industry Domestic Unlisted Shares Beneficial owner 881,420,916 92.85 32.08
WEEX BRA ETRR BEalAA
Guoxiaoquan EM H Shares Beneficial owner 331,595,457 18.44 12.07
WNERE HIR BEalAA
Famous Wealthy" H Shares Beneficial owner 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
Famous Wealthy® HI BRBEAA
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
Fund V L.P.% corporations
IDG China Venture Capital HI& REEEER R
Fund V L.P.®
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
Fund V Associates L.P.® corporations
IDG China Venture Capital HI& REEEER R
Fund V Associates L.P.“
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
Fund GP V Associates Ltd.“ corporations
IDG China Venture Capital HI& REEEER R
Fund GP V Associates Ltd.
Ho Chi Sing® H Shares Interest in controlled 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
corporations
Ho Chi Sing® H& REBZERNER
Zhou Quan® H Shares Interest in controlled 228,378,866 12.70 8.31
corporations
Zhou Quan® HE& REEZERNER
Chongging Langyao® H Shares Beneficial owner 192,733,774 10.72 7.02
EEHRC HIR ERBEAA
CMB International Capital H Shares Interest in controlled 194,231,143 10.80 7.07
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.® corporations
BEEREREE (R BRRAY  HER REEEER R
CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) H Shares Interest in controlled 194,231,143 10.80 7.07
Co., Ltd.® corporations
BR2EER ORI ERAF HIR REEEENER
CMB International Capital H Shares Interest in controlled 194,231,143 10.80 7.07
Corporation Limited® corporations
BREREBERDFC HI& REEEER R
CMB International Capital Holdings  H Shares Interest in controlled 194,231,143 10.80 7.07
Corporation Limited® corporations
BRERSRERERAR HIR REEEENER
China Merchants Bank Co., H Shares Interest in controlled 194,231,143 10.80 7.07
[td.® corporations
BEFTROHERATO HP& REEEER R
Chengdu Quanyi® H Shares Beneficial owner 176,162,237 9.80 6.41
K2R HP& EnfEBA
Sanquan Food Co., Ltd.® H Shares Interest in controlled 176,162,237 9.80 6.41
corporations
Z2RRROARAF Hfx REEEENER

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Name of Number of class of issued share
substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%)™ capital (%)
EHRBRER HERTRA
R A3 BRAEHY BEREN
HEMN R BABA
TERFER R &5 BRtE RAEE (%)™ (%)
Generation One"” H Shares Beneficial owner 138,747,342 772 5.05
Generation One” Hi% EnlEA
Vision Knight Capital (China) H Shares Interest in controlled 138,747,342 7.72 5.05
Fund I, L.P.?) corporations
Vision Knight Capital (China) i REEEENER
Fund Il, L.P.?
Vision Knight Capital (China) H Shares Interest in controlled 138,747,342 7.72 5.05
GPII, LP.? corporations
Vision Knight Capital (China) i REEEENER
GPIl,LP.?
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd."” H Shares Interest in controlled 138,747,342 772 5.05
corporations
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. " HAR RREEBNER
VKC Cayman Il Ltd.” H Shares Interest in controlled 138,747,342 7.72 5.05
corporations
VKC Cayman Il Ltd.? HAR REEEENER
Wei Zhe® H Shares Interest in controlled 186,770,880 10.39 6.80
corporations
HEe Hix REEEENER
Generation Pi HK® H Shares Beneficial owner 102,426,380 5.70 373
Generation Pi HK® HAR ERBEAA
Generation Pi Investment Ltd.? H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.73
corporations
Generation Pi Investment Ltd. © HEE REEEE R R
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.? H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.78
corporations
GenBridge Capital Fund |, L.P.¢ Hik REEE R ER
GenBridge Capital Fund | H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.73
GP, Ltd.® corporations
GenBridge Capital Fund | HAR REEEENER
GP, Ltd.©
Joyous Beats Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.73
corporations
Joyous Beats Limited® HP& REZEER R
JD.com Investment Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.73
corporations
JD.com Investment Limited® H& REEZERER
JD.com, Inc.® H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 373
corporations
JD.com, Inc.® Hi% REEEE R R
GenBridge Capital Partners, H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 373
Ltd.® corporations
GenBridge Capital Partners, i REEEENER
Ltd.(g)
Li Mao Chun® H Shares Interest in controlled 102,426,380 5.70 3.73
corporations
Li Mao Chun® Hik REEZERER
Cheuk Hiu Kwong® H Shares Spouse interests 102,426,380 5.70 373
Cheuk Hiu Kwong® HR ffEes
Buyue Ertong!® Domestic Unlisted Shares Beneficial owner 56,527,432 5.95 2.06
AHME BRA ETRA ERBEAA
H Shares Beneficial owner 56,527,432 3.14 2.06
& ERBEAA
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Name of Number of class of issued share
substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%) capital (%)
EHREER HERITRA
R A3 BRAEHY BEREN
BFEW R L EOER
TZRRER R R BRME RAEE (%) (%)"
Shanghai Buhuo Private Equity Domestic Unlisted Shares Interest in controlled 56,527,432 5.95 2.06
Investment Fund corporations
Management Co., Ltd.(® BRA ETRA REEEENER
FETEAEESBTEERARO H Shares Interest in controlled 56,527,432 3.14 2.06
corporations
HP& REEEENER
Li Zhujig"o Domestic Unlisted Shares Interest in controlled 56,527,432 5.95 2.06
corporations
Zhgeoonn BRA ETRA REEEENER
H Shares Interest in controlled 140,870,534 7.83 5.13
corporations
H& REEEENER
Notes: BdaE -

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,747,360,400 Shares in
issue comprising 949,301,924 Domestic Unlisted Shares and 1,798,058,476
H Shares as at December 31, 2023.

All interests are long positions.

Guoquan Industry has been owned to 55.61%, 37.07% and 7.32% by Mr.
Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua, respectively since its
establishment.

On July 16, 2019, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua
entered into a concert party agreement which was supplemented on March
1, 2023, pursuant to which Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua have agreed
and confirmed that during the period starting from July 16, 2019 to the
date when they cease to be our direct or indirect Shareholder, they have
acted and will continue to act in concert in respect of the management and
operations of our Company by aligning their votes in accordance with Mr.
Yang Mingchao’s decisions when exercising their rights as Shareholders
of the Company prior to December 2021 and as shareholders of Guoquan
Industry since December 2021 when their direct interests in the Company
were reflected at the level of Guoquan Industry. Therefore, under the SFO,
Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua are deemed to be jointly interested in
the Shares held by Mr. Yang Mingchao in Guogquan Industry.
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Famous Wealthy is owned as to 94.61% by IDG China Venture Capital
Fund V L.P., which in turn is controlled by IDG China Venture Capital Fund
V Associates L.P. IDG China Venture Capital Fund V Associates L.P. is
controlled by IDG China Venture Capital Fund GP V Associates Ltd. which
in turn owned as to 50% by Ho Chi Sing and Zhou Quan respectively.
Therefore, under the SFO, each of IDG China Venture Capital Fund V L.P.,
IDG China Venture Capital Fund V Associates L.P., IDG China Venture Capital
Fund GP V Associates Ltd., Ho Chi Sing and Zhou Quan is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Famous Wealthy.

CMB International Capital Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (FRREIEE
NEZ(FY)BRAT) controls 0.79% of Chongging Langyao and 0.05% of
China Merchants Bank Growth No. 3 Investment (Shenzhen) Partnership
(Limited Partnership (GBIREKEESWRICE (R ERBEE(BREE)) (‘CMB
Growth”) which held 1,497,369 H Shares. CMB Financial Holdings
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (FBREFIZEACRINEBRAF) controls 99.95% of CMB
Growth and 100% of CMB International Capital Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CMB International Capital Corporation Limited which in turn
owned as to 16.80% by CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited and 83.20% by CMB
International Capital Holdings Corporation Limited. CMB Wing Lung Bank
Limited and CMB International Capital Holdings Corporation Limited are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Therefore, under the SFO, each of CMB International Capital Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., CMB
International Capital Corporation Limited, CMB International Capital
Holdings Corporation Limited and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chongging Langyao and by
CMB Growth under the SFO.

Chengdu Quanyi is owned as to 98% by Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. (=& &
f&HEMRAF]), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Therefore,
under the SFO, Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Chengdu Quanyi.

Generation One is owned as to 95.45% by Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund
II, L.P. which in turn controlled by Vision Knight Capital (China) GP II, L.P.
as general partner. The general partner of Vision Knight Capital (China) GP
I, L.P. is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of VKC
Cayman Il Ltd. VKC Cayman Il Ltd. is wholly owned by Wei Zhe. Therefore,
under the SFO, each of Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund I, L.P., Vision
Knight Capital (China) GP II, L.P., VKC (China) GP Il Ltd., VKC Cayman II Ltd.
and Wei Zhe is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Generation
One.

Wei Zhe is deemed to be interested in the 48,023,538 H Shares held by
Suzhou Yizhong Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&M E
HEIEEEABLEERAR)) through Suzhou Weitelixin Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (BRI 4R B EERBR A R).
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(10)

Generation Pi HK is a wholly owned subsidiary of Generation Pi Investment
Ltd. which in turn owned as to 90.51% by GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P. is controlled by GenBridge Capital Fund | GP,
Ltd. which in turn owned as to 50% by Joyous Beats Limited and 50% by
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.. Joyous Beats Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of JD.com Investment Limited which is wholly owned by JD.com,
Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange and NASDAQ. GenBridge
Capital Partners, Ltd. is wholly owned by Li Mao Chun. Cheunk Hiu Kwong is
the spouse of Li Mao Chun.

Therefore, under the SFO, each of Generation Pi Investment Ltd., GenBridge
Capital Fund I, L.P., GenBridge Capital Fund | GP, Ltd., Joyous Beats Limited,
JD.com Investment Limited, JD.com, Inc., GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.,
Li Mao Chun and Cheuk Hiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Generation Pi HK.

Buyue Ertong is wholly owned by Shanghai Buhuo Private Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (/BT RIL.BEESEEBMRAE]) which inturn is
held as to 74.25% by Li Zhujie. Therefore, under the SFO, each of Shanghai
Buhuo Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Li Zhujie
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Buyue Ertong.

Buhuovc Platinum Limited held 54,784,911 H Shares and wholly owned
by Buhuovc Limited Partnership. The general partner of Buhuovc Limited
Partnership is Buhuovc Inc. which ultimately controlled by Li Zhujie through
his directorship held in Buhuovc Inc.

Shanghai Buhuo Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (E
BARLEEESEBIEBMRAF) is a general partner of Wuhan Renzhe Buyou
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BE{Z&TERIER
BABNEAERA)), Huzhou Bugi Zhigi Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) GBI T 88 2 B2 iEIC E A B E(BRER)) and Buyue
Ertong which held 3,993,027 H Shares, 25,565,164 H Shares and 56,527,432
H Shares respectively. Li Zhujie owns 74.25% interests in Shanghai Buhuo
Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.

Therefore, under the SFO, Li Zhujie is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Buhuovc Platinum Limited, Wuhan Renzhe Buyou Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership), Huzhou Bugi Zhigi Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Buyue Ertong.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, the Directors

were not aware that any persons/entities (other than the

Directors and chief executive of the Company) had any interests

or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would

require to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are required,

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register

kept by the Company.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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SHARE SCHEME

As at December 31, 2023, the Company did not adopt any
employee share schemes, share option schemes or restricted
share unit schemes.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

As at December 31, 2023, the Company did not enter into any
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the issuance
of shares by the Company or require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the issuance of shares
by the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group entered into
the following continuing connected transactions, certain details
of which are disclosed in compliance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company entered into the following continuing connected
transaction with a connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and the transaction was conducted in accordance with the
agreed terms.

1. Procurement of beef and lamb products

Parties: Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shengxian”) and the Group

Principal terms

On October 16, 2023, the Group entered into a procurement
framework agreement with Shanghai Shengxian (the
“Procurement Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
our Group agreed to procure beef and lamb products,
such as whole sirloin steak, thinly sliced snowflake beef
and thick sliced marbled beef, from Shanghai Shengxian
for a term commencing on the Listing Date and ending on
December 31, 2025, subject to renewal by mutual consent.
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Subject to the terms of the Procurement Framework
Agreement, the Group will enter into specific agreements
or place purchase orders with Shanghai Shengxian to
set out specific terms and conditions. The consideration
payable by the Group under the Procurement Framework
Agreement will be paid at the time and according to the
method to be agreed in specific agreements or purchase
orders.

The terms are to be no less favorable to our Group than
those for transactions between our Group and Independent
Third Parties under the same conditions.

Reasons and benefits for the transaction

Shanghai Shengxian is a stable and reliable supplier of
our Group. We established business relationship with
Shanghai Shengxian since November 2020. In addition, the
Directors consider that the quality and quantity of beef and
lamb products offered by Shanghai Shengxian can satisfy
our commercial needs, especially the quality standards
and the research and development of new products.

Information on Shanghai Shengxian

Shanghai Shengxian, a company owned as to over 30%
by Mr. Yang Ran (). Mr. Yang Ran is a supervisor of
Luyi Heyi, a significant subsidiary of our Company, and
therefore Shanghai Shengxian is a connected person of our
Company at the subsidiary level.

Transaction amount

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the actual
transactions between the Group and Shanghai Shengxian
amounted to RMB108 million.

Annual caps

Annual caps of the transactions contemplated under the
Procurement Framework Agreement for the three years
ended December 31, 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB110
million, RMB110 million and RMB110 million, respectively.
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Waiver Application for Non-Exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

For the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
highest applicable percentage ratios relating to the transaction
contemplated under the Procurement Framework Agreement are
more than 1% but less than 5% on an annual basis. Accordingly,
the transactions are subject to the announcement, reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are exempt from the circular (including the opinion of
the independent financial adviser) and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
are expected to continue on a recurring and continuing basis,
the Directors consider that compliance with the announcement
requirements abovementioned would be impractical and unduly
burdensome, and would lead to unnecessary administrative costs
to us.

Accordingly, we have applied to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has granted us a waiver from
the announcement requirement in respect of the aforesaid non-
exempt continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.105 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that the signing and execution of the
specific agreements under the above continuing connected
2023 were in
compliance with the pricing principles for such continuing

transactions for the year ended December 31,

connected transactions.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31,
2023, none of the other related party transactions or continuing
related party transactions set out in note 37 to the financial
statements constitute a disclosable connected transaction
or a disclosable continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules from time
to time in respect of the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions.
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ANNUAL REVIEW CONDUCTED BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 and 14A.71(6)(a) of the Listing Rules,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above
non-exempt continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions had been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

ii. on normal commercial terms or better to the Company;
and

iii. in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

CONFIRMATION FROM THE AUDITOR

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 and 14A.71(6)(b) of the Listing Rules,
the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the continuing connected
translations and the auditor has reported the factual findings on
these procedures to the Audit Committee.

The auditors of the Company had informed the Board and
confirmed that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions:

were approved by the Board;

ii. were entered into in accordance with relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

iii. did not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the
Prospectus.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended December 31, 20283, none of the Directors
or their respective close associates had interests in a business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or is likely to
compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the

Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance to
protect the Directors of the Company against any potential losses
arising from his/her actual or alleged misconduct. During the
year and up to the date of as this report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was
or is being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25%
of the Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing
Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant subsequent event which may affect the
Group occurred after the Reporting Period and up to the date of
the Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’, Supervisors’ and relevant employees’ (i.e. employees
who may have inside information about the Company) dealings in
securities of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all the Directors
and Supervisors, and each of them confirmed that he/she has
complied with the required standards of dealing as set out in
the Model Code for the period from the Listing Date and up to
December 31, 2023.

No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by the
relevant employees of the Company were noted by the Company
for the period from the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2023.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including a review of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

AUDITOR

For the year ended December 31, 2023, Ernst & Young has
served as the auditor of the Company. The financial statements
contained in the Annual Report have been audited by Ernst
& Young. The auditors of the Company will retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
auditors of the Company have not changed since the Listing Date

and up to the date of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on June 27, 2024 (Thursday), the notice and circular of
which will be published and despatched to the Shareholders who
requested the printed copy in due course.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from June 24, 2024 (Monday) to June
27, 2024 (Thursday), both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s headquarters
and principal place of business in China at Room 802, No. 3 Lane
187, Xinghong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC (for holders
of Domestic Unlisted Shares), or the Company’s H share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (for holders of H shares) not later than 4:30
p.m.ondJune 21, 2024 (Friday), for registration.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from July 4, 2024 (Thursday) to July 9, 2024
(Tuesday), both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
headquarters and principal place of business in China at Room
802, No. 3 Lane 187, Xinghong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
PRC (for holders of Domestic Unlisted Shares) or the Company’s
H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (for holders of H
shares) not later than 4:30 p.m. on July 3, 2024 (Wednesday), for
registration.

By order of the Board

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
BERR(LS)ROBRAR

Yang Mingchao

Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
March 28, 2024
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EEE®E

During the Reporting Period, in compliance with the relevant
requirements set out in the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Articles of Association and Rules of
Procedures for the Board of Supervisors of Guoquan Food
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,

diligence and dedication, all members of the Board of Supervisors

and abiding by attitude with honesty,

of the Company performed the duties and obligations of

Supervisors, independently perform its supervisory and
monitoring duties to protect the interests of the Shareholders,

which promoted the normal operation of the Company.

WORKS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors held three meetings and the
details are as follows:

The “Proposal on Election of the Chairman of the First Session of
the Board of Supervisors of the Company” was considered and
approved at the first meeting of the first session of the Board of
Supervisors held on February 20, 2023.

9 proposals, including the “Proposal on the Issuance of H Shares
and Listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange of the Company”
were considered and approved at the second meeting of the first
session of the Board of Supervisors held on March 11, 2023.

The “Proposal on the 2023 Interim Financial Statements (for
the six months ended June 30, 2023)”
approved at the third meeting of the first session of the Board of

was considered and

Supervisors held on September 11, 2023.
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COMMENTS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
CERTAIN MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2023

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board
of Supervisors adhered to the principles of fidelity and
accountability to all Shareholders and duly performed their
duties and works according to the relevant requirements set
out in the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Articles of Association and Rules of Procedures for the Board of
Supervisors of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the regulatory compliance and operation,
financial condition, use of proceeds and internal control, etc. of
the Company through attending shareholders’ general meetings,
board meetings and onsite inspections. The Board of Supervisors
has arrived at the following opinions:

The Board of the Company has achieved standardized operations,
reasonable decisions and legal procedures, and has earnestly
implemented the resolutions passed at the general meeting;
no action in violation of laws and regulations or the Articles of
Association, or to the prejudice of the interests of the Company
and Shareholders taken by the Directors and senior management
of the Company in performance of their duties was found. The use
of proceeds is in compliance with the relevant laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association, and is not detrimental to the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The financial
structure of the Company was healthy and standardized, and a
relatively complete internal control system has been established,
which complies with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association without violation of any laws and regulations.
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In the coming year, the Board of Supervisors will continue
to arduously perform its supervisory and monitoring duties
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders honestly and
diligently, and promote the sustainable development of the
Company.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
BERR(LS)REBBRAR

Zheng Min

Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
March 28, 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the code provisions of CG Code as
set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance.

Save as disclosed in the report, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions of the CG Code for the period from
the Listing Date to December 31, 2023. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The culture of being “modest”, “pragmatic”, “down-to-earth”
and “other-oriented” has been guiding our development and
commitment to providing tasty, convenient and value-for-money
product to people all over the country. Our business model
revolves around serving others in the best possible way we can.
We are devoted to satisfying the diverse needs of consumers and
providing convenient and pleasant consumption experiences
while ensuring product quality and safety. Our employees are the
indispensable link between us and our suppliers, franchisees,
store managers and consumers, forming an integral part of
our corporate culture. We are committed to the continual
development of talent, integration of management, employees
and franchisees into our training system, which promotes
equal conversations and knowledge sharing. We have also been
diligently providing comprehensive support to empower and
cultivate our franchisees to promote their business growth and
success. Moreover, our management team also places great
importance in serving the society and have been actively involved
in environmental protection, charitable contributions, disaster
relief, and community support.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board consists of 11
Directors comprising 4 executive Directors, 3 non-executive
Directors and 4 independent non-executive Directors as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao
(Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Meng Xianjin
Mr. An Haolei
Ms. Luo Na

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yi Jiayu
Mr. Zeng Xinghai
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong
Ms. Yu Fang Jing
Mr. Li Jianfeng
Mr. Shi Kangping

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section of “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of the Annual Report.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023 up
to the date of the Annual Report, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board of the directors.
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the four independent non-executive Directors as at the date
of the Annual Report, are independent taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, and senior management
has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) with any other Directors,
Supervisors, and senior management.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions, and monitors business
and performance.

The management, including executive Directors, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-
to-day operations of the Group. They meet regularly to review
the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-
ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and act in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2023 which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements
of the Company on a going concern basis. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor on the
financial statements of the Group are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in the Annual Report.

BOARD MEETING AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year. At least 14 days’ notice of all
regular Board meetings is given to the Directors who are given the
opportunity to include other matters in the agenda of meetings.
For other Board meetings, at least 3 days’ notice is given to the
Directors in advance. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and relevant information are dispatched to all Directors
at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the related documents
and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code provides that Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. As the Company was only listed on the Stock
Exchange on November 2, 2023, only three Board meetings
have been held by the Company since the Listing Date and up to
December 31, 2023.
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The attendance records of each Directors at the Board meetings
for the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023 are set
out as follows:

SEEELTMHHRBRE_TS=_=F+=A=
+—HIHHENESFE R L RLEHIW
T

Number of Board

meetings Attendance
attended/eligible rate of
to attend Board meetings
HE SERHE
BEBRE ggBlE=s
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yang Mingchao 15 BARR S A 3/3 100%
Mr. Meng Xianjin RIS 3/3 100%
Mr. An Haolei IEERE 3/3 100%
Ms. Luo Na 2+ 3/3 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yi Jiayu KRFHE 3/3 100%
Mr. Zeng Xinghai & @i S 3/3 100%
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng 245 %4 3/3 100%
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong BN A 3/3 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing Bl 2+ 3/3 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng FRESLAE 3/3 100%
Mr. Shi Kangping MER T A 3/3 100%
No general meeting has been held by the Company during the B FmHE#EZ_ZE_=F+_-_HA=+—H

period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023.

As the Company’s Shares were only listed on the Stock Exchange
on November 2, 2023, for the period from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2023, no meeting was held by the chairman with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors. The Company expects the chairman to at least
annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors in accordance

with Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code going forward.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors was appointed to the Board pursuant to
the respective letters of appointment for a term of three years
subject to the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.
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None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
other than the contracts/letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The nomination committee of the Company is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, and making recommendations
to the Board on appointment, re-election, and succession

planning of Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing. During the
period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company were
assumed by one person, Mr. Yang Mingchao, who was mainly
responsible for the strategic decisions of the Company. The
Board believes that, in view of his experience, personal profile
and his roles in the Company as mentioned above, Mr. Yang is the
Director best suited to identify strategic opportunities and focus
of the Board due to his extensive understanding of our business
as our chief executive officer. The Board also believes that
vesting the roles of both chairperson and chief executive officer
in the same person has the benefit of (i) ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group, (ii) enabling more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning and execution of strategic
initiatives of the Board, and (iii) facilitating the flow of information
between the management and the Board for the Group. The
Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairperson of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate
by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

PR BN A SR EAE A M B A BRI AR
BAENIERMER R —FREMLA HE
ERIEMBAXEE OXERERIN) 86
%/ EEERIN

RT  BEEREBREFNEFMAEINA
AER - ARAFRREZECAARNESS
AR YREENRE R LTI
FAE=GRNEE -

FEEBRSTHAER
RIBEREEARTANTARIEC.21G - £
FHEEZSTHRAENAGEERY - TEH
Fl—ABE - TREKSTHRAE ZFEHR
BN TREABREL AT - X E
MHHE-_ZT_=F+_A=+—HHH "
ARREFEIRAESTRABHGAE
FE—AEE  EFZHEARFNBER
R BEREE EXNHLR BAABRER
FRERAKRABNAE  BIERBRERITE
BREEHRMOEBEREZN TR  HEE
ERECHMNBBERENEEFEEHNNE
Z-BEENARR AR -ABEEFES
FHATENABENR)ERARENER
%E’M@§$éﬁﬁﬁ&@&MLﬂ§m
B R B M MATERS B - R(iDRERSE
EEREREEE ZHNEERN - %%Qﬁ
RAE - BARHNESEEETYERTS
18 MUt ZRBREE AR RS %L%E&mﬁ
HEEBRRE - BEFEHEEEASEERE
A& #EERNTZREEHEREEES
SIFEARNFERFHTENAEDRA -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERERE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the responsibilities and obligations of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Company and
such induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors to ensure
that he or she has a proper understanding of the operation
and business of the Company and full awareness of Directors’
responsibilities and obligation under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are also updated from time to time on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

2023, the Directors
received the following trainings and updates (covering corporate

During the year ended December 31,

governance, Listing Rules and other listing related regulations):

ESNFREERRR

ERESCREMEMAESIXT - ATAREF
REFNBENED BRREFHERZE
RER  BRERBEEERARRERE 2%
ABXHTEREEETREZERESR
RHNRETERES  URFREHEARF
MEERXGEEEN TR Yxn THRE
MARREEAEERER TNETREELSE
& o

BESTITRHEZLHRALEMERE
ERENRNER - NERETRESHR
HEEERERNER

BE_T_=F+_A=+—HULFE &
FSEEIUATNEIREH OREREER - £
MR R EA EHARRER)

Type of
Trainingh°t

Directors =2 IEF A=
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yang Mingchao HRRBI LA A B
Mr. Meng Xianjin S A, B
Mr. An Haolei TR E A, B
Ms. Luo Na m At A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yi Jiayu KRFIAE A, B
Mr. Zeng Xinghai E.,\/tf‘ﬁi A B
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng BUSFEF A A B
Independent non-executive Directors BAUFHTES
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong DR A A B
Ms. Yu Fang Jing ARTIE 2+ A B
Mr. Li Jianfeng FaliE A B
Mr. Shi Kangping MR A A B
Note: BHEE
Types of Training EIER
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to briefings, seminars, ~ A: LIEFIRE - BEETRAGR  Hog &
conferences and workshops FERIIEY
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and B: FREMEEIERG - |E - BT S RIEET
relevant publications )
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees and has
delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. All the Board committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The terms of
reference of Audit Committee has been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The primary
duties of Audit Committee are, but not limited to, to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, the internal control and risk
management system of the Group, to oversee the audit process
and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Shi Kangping, Ms. Yu Fang Jing and Mr. Li Jianfeng, all being
the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shi Kangping is the
chairman of Audit Committee.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 2, 2023, for the period from the Listing Date to
December 31,2023, the Audit Committee held one meeting and
the work performed by the Audit Committee was summarized as
follows:

(M reviewed the engagement letter of the external auditors,
as well as their plans, reports, management letter, fees
and involvement in non-assurance services;

(2) engaged Ernst & Young to provide non-assurance services
to the Company and confirmed that the non-assurance
services provided by Ernst & Young will not have any
potential impact on its independence;

(3) other duties and powers authorized by the Board of the

Company.
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The attendance records of each committee member are set out

BELREEREMLFLEHIIMT -

below:
Number of
committee Attendance
meetings rate of
attended/eligible committee
to attend meetings
HiE SEBUE
ZE2EBRY ZESERHER
Mr. Shi Kangping it e 1/1 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing i+ 1/1 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng =l 3o 1/1 100%

The Audit Committee also held one meeting during the period

from January 1, 2024 to the date of the Annual Report. The work

performed by the Audit Committee was summarized as follows:

M

reviewed the consolidated annual financial statement of
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the
opinion and report of independent auditor;

reviewed the independence and audit scope of the
independent auditor, and reviewed and discussed the risk
management and internal control system and financial
reporting matters of the Group, reviewed the annual cap of
existing continuing connected transactions, and processes
and the re-appointment of the auditors;

engaged Ernst & Young to provide non-assurance services
to the Company and confirmed that the non-assurance
services provided by Ernst & Young will not have any
potential impact on its independence;

other duties and powers authorized by the Board of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the

auditor for 2023 and recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as the domestic auditors of the Company for 2024 in
the PRC and as the overseas auditors of the Company for 2024,

subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 2, 2023, the Audit Committee only met with the
external auditor of the Company once during the period from the
Listing Date to December 31, 2023. From the year 2024 onwards,
the Company will make sure that the Audit Committee will meet
with its external auditor at least twice a year as required under
code provision D3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code. The terms of reference of Remuneration
Committee has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and recommend to
the Board the policies governing remuneration and other
benefits paid by us to our Directors and senior management
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives as
well as to research and formulate the assessment standards
of and evaluate the Directors and senior management, study
and formulate the remuneration plan for the Directors and
senior management, regularly monitor the reasonableness and
appropriateness of levels of the remuneration and compensation
of the Directors and senior management, make recommendations
to the Board and supervise the implementation of the
remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Zeng Xiaosong, Ms. Yu Fang Jing and Mr. Li
Jianfeng, all being the independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zeng Xiaosong is the chairman of Remuneration Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023,
the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and the work
performed by the Remuneration Committee was summarized as
follows:

(1) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of senior management members.
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The attendance records of each committee member are set out

BEREEREMLFEHIIMT -

below:
Number of
committee Attendance
meetings rate of
attended/eligible committee
to attend meetings
HiE SEBUE
ZE2EBRY ZESERHER
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong BEENSTAE 2/2 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing i+ 2/2 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng =l 3o 2/2 100%

The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting during the
period from January 1, 2024 to the date of the Annual Report.
The work performed by the Remuneration Committee was

summarised as follows:

(1) reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Board;

(2) formulated and advised the Board on the remuneration
packages for directors and senior management members
of the Company;

3) made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members;

(4) reviewed the performance of duties by the Company’s
directors and senior management members and conducted

performance appraisals and evaluations;

(5) other matters authorized by the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision
B.3.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference of Nomination
Committee has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of Nomination
Committee are, but not limited to, to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or reappointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive; and to review the corporate governance policies and
practices of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The Nomination Committee would review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy in achieving the
objectives set for the benefits of the Company.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Yang Mingchao, being the executive Director, and Mr.
Zeng Xiaosong and Mr. Shi Kangping, both being the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang Mingchao is the chairman of
Nomination Committee.
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As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 2, 2023, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
2028.
The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the period

during the period from the Listing Date to December 31,

from January 1, 2024 to the date of the Annual Report. The work
performed by the Nomination Committee was summarized as
follows:

(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

(2) assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(3) reviewed the Nomination Policy;

(4) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

(5) reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices
of the Company;

(6) other matters authorized by the Board.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes the importance of corporate governance
and is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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As (i) there has been discussion among the Directors on the
relevant matters prior to the Listing Date; and (ii) the Company
was only listed on the Stock Exchange on November 2, 20283,
which is less than two months away from December 31, 2023,
there was no meeting convened by the Board since the Listing
Date and up to December 31, 2023 for the purpose of code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held one meeting on March 28, 2024 to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code, the Model Code and
the disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report
during the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2023.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company have adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the
high standard of corporate governance. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve diversity of our Board
through the consideration of a number of factors when selecting
candidates to the Board, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity and length of service. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at the Board level, including gender
diversity, as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage and enhancing its ability to attract,
retain and motivate employees from the widest possible pool of
available talent.
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The Company have taken, and will continue to take, steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including
but not limited to the Board and the senior management levels.
The Board is satisfied with the gender diversity of our employees.
Two female Directors, namely Ms. Luo Na and Ms. Yu Fang Jing,
were appointed with effect since July 2020 and October 2023
respectively. Going forward, we will continue to work to enhance
gender diversity of the Board. The Board will take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members from time to
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for appointment of Directors. The Company will also
continue to ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in
due time to ensure gender diversity of the Board. The Group will
continue to emphasize training of female talent and providing
long-term development opportunities for the female staff. For
details on the Company’s gender ratio in the workforce (including
senior management), its measures for gender diversity across
the workforce (including senior management) are set out in the
Company’s environmental, social and governance report in the
Annual Report.

The Directors range from 32 years old to 53 years old, and
consists of different nationality including Chinese and Australian.
The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including overall management and strategic development, quality
assurance and control, finance and accounting and corporate
governance in addition to industry experience relevant to our
Group’s operations and business. They obtained degrees in
various majors including engineering, economics, and business
administration.

The Board is responsible for reviewing the diversity of our Board.
As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Board
will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. We will also disclose in our corporate
governance report a summary of the Board Diversity Policy
together with information regarding the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The Company has also adopted policies and procedures for
nomination and election of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”).
The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria and procedures for
selection and performance evaluation and provides guidance to
the Board on the nomination and appointment of Directors. The
Board believes that a clear selection process facilitates corporate
governance, ensures the continuity of the Board, maintains
the leadership of the Board, and enhances the efficiency and
diversity of the Board. Both the Nomination Committee and the
Board can nominate candidates for Directors. When evaluating
the suitability of recommended candidates and their potential
contributions to the Board, the Nomination Committee may
refer to certain selection criteria such as integrity, professional
qualifications and skills, knowledge, experience, commitment and
related contributions. The Nomination Committee shall report the
evaluation results to the Board on the appointment of suitable
Director candidates and provide relevant recommendations to
the Board to make decisions and formulate a general election
plan which should be proposed at the general meeting for the
Shareholders’ approval.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company has established the mechanism to ensure
independent views and input are available to the board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive directors. Further, independent
non-executive directors will be appointed to the Board
Committees as required under the Listing Rules and as far as
practicable to ensure independent views and input are available.
The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to
the nomination and appointment of independent non-executive
Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the independence
of independent non-executive Directors to ensure that they
can continually exercise independent judgement. No equity-
based remuneration with performance-related elements will
be granted to independent non-executive Directors. Last, a
Director (including independent non-executive Director) who has
a material interest in a contract or arrangement shall not vote or
be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving the
same.
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The Company also established channels whereby independent
non-executive Directors can express their views in an open
and candid manner. The Company may also engage external
professional firm for seeking advice when necessary.

Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries,
performance-related bonuses, pension scheme contributions and
other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management for the year ended December 31, 2023 was
approximately RMB15.9 million. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023 are
set out in note 9 to the financial statements in the Annual Report.

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management is determined with reference to their respective
time commitment and responsibilities and performance of the
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Group. Remuneration paid to the Directors, Supervisors and #%  EZNSHEEENMEESE W0
senior management of the Company by band for the year ended ' :
December 31, 2023 is within the range below:
Number of
Individuals
Range of remuneration e EE AE
Between RMBO and RMB1,000,000 TFARKEOTE AR 1,000,0007T 8
Between RMB1,000,001 and RMB2,000,000 AR 1,000,001 E ARE2,000,0007T 3
Between RMB2,000,001 and RMB3,000,000 NF AR 2,000,001 L& ARES,000,0007T 4
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BMEARIME

Mr. Wang Hui and Ms. Ho Yin Kwan were appointed as the joint
company secretaries of the Company with effect from October
2023 and are responsible for overseeing the company secretarial
work of the Group. The primary contact person of Ms. Ho Yin
Both Mr. Wang and
Ms. Ho’s biographical details are set out in the section headed

Kwan at the Company is Mr. Wang Hui.

“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management-
Joint Company Secretaries” in the Annual Report.

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, both Mr. Wang Hui and Ms. Ho Yin Kwan
confirmed that they have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended December 31, 2023.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’, Supervisors’ and relevant employees’ (i.e. employees
who may have inside information about the Company) dealings in
securities of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all the Directors and
Supervisors, each of them confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards of dealing as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2023.

No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by the
relevant employees of the Company were noted by the Company
for the period from the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining sound systems of risk management
and internal controls in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company and also reviewing
the effectiveness of such systems on an ongoing basis and
annual basis. The Board has established a risk management and
internal control system in accordance with the requirements of
the CG Code, which is responsible for independently reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company (covering financial, operational
and compliance controls), and continuously monitoring and
reviewing the effectiveness of its operation once a year. The
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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Features of Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company has established the risk management and internal
control system, comprising the Board, the Audit Committee,
the Board of Supervisors, the management of the Company,
the Internal Audit and Supervision Department and other
departments, pursuant to the CG Code in a bid to guarantee that
the Company has sufficient resources, employee qualification
and experience, training courses and relevant budgets in terms
of the risk management and internal control. All the departments
of the Company are the first line of defense in respect of the
risk management and internal control, the management of the
Company is the second, and the Internal Audit and Supervision
Department is the third. The Board is ultimately responsible
for the establishment and refinement of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and the effective
implementation of the risk management work. The Board is the
top decision-making organ of the risk management and internal
control of the Company.

Structure and Function of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Company reviews the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control each year, assesses the major issues under
control based on internal control elements such as internal
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and internal supervision, and optimizes the risk
management system.

The Company’s internal control system is formed on the
framework of internal control set by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO
Committee). The Company developed a top-down structure for
risk management organization, under which the Board makes
decision about risk management and internal control, the Audit
Committee and Internal Audit and Supervision Department carry
out supervision work, and the management and all departments
secure and control the effective implementation of decisions.
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Business departments and functions of the Company are the first
line of defense for risk management and internal control, which
are responsible for identification, assessment and management
of risks within business scope to ensure adequate internal
control on effective risk management and hold responsibility
for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls; the
management is the second line of defense, which is responsible
for formulation, improvement and supervision over major
policies, procedures and standards of the Company based on the
Company’s strategies, as well as monitoring the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control activities of the Company,
and providing the affirmation of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system to the Board, to support
the Audit Committee fulfilling its risk and supervision functions;
the Internal Audit and Supervision Department is the third line
of defense, which is responsible for assessing and reviewing
the effectiveness of policies and procedures relating to the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and
reporting to the Audit Committee and Board on the assessment
and audit results. The Audit Committee will make independent
assessment on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and make reports and
proposals to the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval of the policies and
procedures made by the management, holds the ultimate
responsibility for the establishment and refinement of the risk
management and internal control system as well as the efficient
implementation of risk management work, and plays the role
as the highest decision-making body of risk management and
internal control system.
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Mechanism and Implementation of Risk Management and
Internal Control

2023, with identification and
assessment of risks, the management implemented the policies

For the year ended December 31,

and procedures and also engaged in the design, implementation
and supervision of appropriate internal control measures to
reduce and control relevant risks. As of the date of this report,
the management reported to the Audit Committee on the
assessment results, while the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of internal control system and made
their recommendations to the Board. The Board reviewed and
discussed with the management on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company
pursuant to the provisions of the Code, so that the management
will maintain and operate the sound system in compliance with
the established procedures and standards. The Board believes
that the existing internal control and risk management system
is adequate and effective and there is no material mistakes and
weakness on risk supervision.

The Company will constantly improve the risk management
policy and procedures, clarify the structure, responsibilities
and authorities of risk management, identify the major risks
obstructing the realization of objectives and keep all risks
under control. The Company will ensure that the achievement
of operation goals, the improvement of operational efficiency,
reliability of financial reports and compliance with the national
laws and regulations.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

. is required to disclose inside information as soon as
reasonably practicable in accordance with the SFO and the
Listing Rules

. conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on

Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the SFC
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. For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside
information in accordance with the Listing Rules and
SFO, the Group has aroused the awareness to preserve
confidentiality of inside information within the Group and
send blackout period and securities dealing restrictions
notification to the relevant directors and employees
on a regular basis as needed, strictly comply with the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the SFC in June 2012

. the Group has prohibited unauthorized use of confidential
or inside information

Whistleblowing Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers
and suppliers) with guidance and reporting channels on reporting
any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group
directly addressed to the designated person.

No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material effect on
the Group’s financial statements or overall operations for the year
ended December 31, 2023 has been discovered.

Anti-corruption Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-corruption Policy. The Anti-corruption
Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance
framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the specific
behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and business
partners must follow to combat corruption.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically
to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the

industry best practice.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided
by Ernst & Young to our Group during the year ended December
31, 2023 was approximately as follows:

2 B 32 B

BHE—_Z-=F+-_A=+—HUIFE %
XEEHRI B PT M AL B R R M IEEET
R EBNT

Amount

o}

RMB

Type of Services JiEvE Rl AR
Audit services Fi R 2,850,000
Non-audit services FEEET RS 168,000
Total #et 3,018,000

Note: Non-audit services mainly include the consultancy services for ESG reporting.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual

reports, announcements and circulars.

The Annual General Meeting of our Company provides opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The chairperson of the Board Committees of our Company will
attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions. The auditor will also attend the Annual General
Meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintains a website of the
Company at www.zzggsh.com, where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. The implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
are reviewed on an annual basis. Channels for Shareholders
to communicate their views on various matters affecting the
Company and steps to solicit and understand their views are
considered to be sufficient and effective.

By reviewing the Shareholders’ communication channels as
explained above, the Board is of view that the Shareholders’
communication policy adopted by the Company has been
effectively implemented during the Reporting Period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10%
or more shares of the Company, at the date of deposit of the

requisition.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The Board shall reply in writing regarding
the acceptance or refusal to convene an extraordinary general
meeting within 10 days upon receiving the request in accordance
with the requirements of the laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association. If the board of directors agrees
to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice of such
meeting shall be issued within 5 days after the resolution of
the board of directors is passed. If the Board does not agree
to convene the extraordinary general meeting, or fails to make
a response within 10 days upon receipt of the request, the
requisitionist(s) shall have the right to propose to the Board of
Supervisors to convene the extraordinary general meeting. If the
Board of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, a notice of such meeting shall be issued within 5 days
upon receipt of the request. If the Board of Supervisors fails to
issue the notice of general meeting within the period specified
above, it shall be deemed to have failed to convene and preside
over such meeting. The requisitionist(s) holding 10% or more of
the Shares for 90 consecutive days or longer period may convene
and preside over such meeting, the reasonable expenses incurred
for such meeting shall be borne by the Company, and deducted
from the amounts owed by the Company to the negligent
Director(s) or Supervisor(s).

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may supervise the operations of the Company, and
to make suggestions and enquiries to be Board.

Contact Details

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations of which
contact details are as follows:

Address: Room 802, No. 3, Lane 187, Xinghong Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, PRC

Email: ir@guoquan.cn
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has amended its Articles of Association with effect
from the Listing Date.

The Company has further amended its Articles of Association
on December 21, 2023 due to the partial exercise of the
over-allotment option and the amendment to the Articles of
Association was approved by the Board. In accordance with the
resolutions passed at the 2023 second extraordinary general
meeting held on March 26, 2023, the general meeting of the
Company has authorized the Board and persons authorized by the
Board to amend the Articles of Association for the purpose of the
Company’s Listing. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated December 21, 2028.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company from the Listing Date.

The latest Articles of Association is available on both the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “Report”) released by Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (“Guoquan Food” or the “Company”), which is designated
to give an objective and true view of the Company’s strategies,
policies, measures and achievements in terms of ESG
management, and focuses on the disclosure of the Company’s
information in environmental, social and governance aspects.

Basis of Preparation

The Report has been prepared pursuant to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix C2 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

Reporting Cycle

From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 (the “Reporting
Period” or the “Year”).

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope of the Report covers Guoquan Food
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (2617.HK) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”
or “We”), which is in line with the 2023 annual report of the
Company.

Source of Information and Guarantee for Reliability

Save as otherwise indicated, data contained herein are derived
from the internal information, investigation and interview records
and relevant documents of the Company. The board of directors
(the “Board”) of the Company undertakes that the Report does
not contain any false information or misleading statement, and is
responsible for its truthfulness, accuracy and completeness.

Confirmation and Approval

The Report has been approved by the Board on March 28, 2024
upon confirmation by the management.
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Availability

The Report is incorporated in the 2023 annual report of the
Company. Qut of concern for environmental protection, we
recommend you to read the electronic version which is available
at the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
official website of the Company (www.zzggsh.com/).

1.  HONORS AND AWARDS

In 20283, the corporate operations of Guoquan Food were
recognized by society. The table below sets out our honors
and awards.

becoming the only brand selected in the retail industry

Strengthening Agriculture”
ST [ R A R B BE A B e 08 R ARV R ) | 88

FRINAE [ 2023 2 B 40 4k FLE F5 2451
2023 Annual Influential New Retail Brand

2023FEHENNTERE

2023¥1E ECoolTop10 ESGH B & 12

Guoquan Food won the “2023 Annual Corporate Responsibility Case” with its “Talent Development Project”,
WERMEREI AL ERIEL |TE2023FEREEERN] - KRTETER—AERE

Received the honor of “Rural Revitalization Empowerment Program - Typical Case of Supply Chain

Successfully shortlisted for the award of “2023 National Excellent Case of Rural Revitalization”

2023 Novel Domestic Goods CoolTop10 ESG Special Contribution Award

ABREWMARAZZEZ=ZFFERS -
ERRERENEZRE  BMEBHER
HEETFH - WEE bR AT AT AR L
(www.hkexnews.hk) &2 AE 7748 uh
(www.zzggsh.com/ )JEHX »

1. BEBIEE
2023 FIRE R MM EES TIEES
THERY  TRINEKEMOEER
ﬁlﬁhﬁ/ﬁ °

2. ESG GOVERNANCE

As a leading home meal products brand in China, Guoquan
Food continuously integrates the ESG concept with its
business. It has established an ESG governance system,
actively engaged in stakeholder communication, and
conducted materiality analysis on ESG-related issues,
laying a solid foundation for sustainable development.

2. ESGHRE

ERPEEENERCREREMM
- BRI HEEESGIE AR
BXGHEERSE  BERETESGERE
- RAZ2EMNZHBHER B
ESGHERAZRBETEE NI - 25
AREBRRE -

i ﬁHF E'El

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Bo=EER

101



102

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREAME

2.1

ESG Governance Structure

A sound ESG governance structure is essential
for ensuring successful implementation of the
sustainable development vision by companies.
In 2023, Guoquan Food established an ESG
governance structure covering all levels, with
clear division of responsibilities and authorization,
which helped Company enhance its overall
governance capabilities. The Board serves as the
highest responsible body for the management and
disclosure of ESG matters. A senior leadership team
was established under the Board to be responsible
for advancing the Company’s ESG matters.
Additionally, an ESG working group was formed to
coordinate and execute these matters, with relevant
functional departments and business departments
collaborating to implement specific measures.

2.1

ESGERZRE

E2HESGE ARBERBRE
XEREENRERRESN
EETEM - 2023F B R
REBENTERZEEZ 5T
85 - EHBEWHESGE AL
# - B RRRFALZAEIAREK
FoRMHEEGIERQA
ESGEEEERAREEMNSR
BEAKE  TRaAEEE
BEEARESGEEMEELE
WA SZESGIIE/NAB BB
ENIT - ERARLAE B PI A 275

HRPIACE ARERE -

EHRARBESGEHRBRRIEEN

FiE o HERRIESGEES - BEREER

goals of ESG-related matters of the Company;

matters;

FBE  HERDRIFRESGHBEERRNDFMEKE

Fik o M EKRESGEEFM -

Consider and review significant ESG adverse events.

Consider the risks and importance related to ESG matters of the Company;

Consider and approve the ESG strategy, policies, and objectives of the Company;

Supervise and review the relevant policies, management, performance, and progress of relevant
EE  RHAQFRESGHEBFEE - BEMMBEE B2 XBEREBEREE

Consider and approve the Company’s public disclosure regarding its performance on ESG-related

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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. Identify, determine, and assess the risks and importance related to ESG matters of the Company;

A EEMEARTESCERMBERBREEN

. Assess and formulate sustainable development strategies and objectives of the Company;

A~ BIEARR AR R REE AR

. Supervise, evaluate, and review the policies, management, performance, and progress of related
goals oj ESG matters of the Company;
BE SR EBHARBIESGERMAMECK - B RELEHBRER

. Review and evaluate the Company’s public disclosure regarding its performance on ESG-related
matters;

0 - WA ARARESGHBEERBNRFHIE

. Provide guidance to the ESG working group to ensure close alignment of ESG goals with the
Company’s business; )
RESGIIE/MEIRHIES - HIRESGRREAREBETES

. Coordinate resources to ensure the implementation of ESG work;

BHRER - HIRESGIIEMEM

. Other matters authorized by the Board;
EEeRENEMEER
. Regularly report ESG work results and decision-making suggestions to the Board.

FEHMESGERESG TIFAR MR R -

. Based on internal and external demands for sustainable development, formulate and promote
effective implementation of sustainable development strategies, objectives, policies, action plans,
and daily management work;

%E}g@ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ%%%@ﬁﬁ%* CHIELEBAHEEREE  BF  BER  THRERAEEIEIE
VERUEE ¢

. Regularly identify relevant ESG risks and develop response plans to ensure effective risk
management;

JE BRI ARRA ESG AR I B E REEIRT B - RER Al B E &

. Regularly track progress towards objectives;

TEHEH A RO EREE

. Collect annual sustainable development performance and data information, and review annual ESG
reports.

WEFEAFAERABEREBES  TEMFEESGHIRE
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2.2

Identification and Communication with
Stakeholders

Guoquan Food has established a routine, multi-
channel communication mechanism to actively
address stakeholders’ concerns. Taking into
full consideration the nature of its business
operating conditions, and industry development
the Group has identified stakeholders including
employees, consumers, investors, government and
regulatory authorities, suppliers, franchisees, the
general public, and the media. Through diversified
communication channels, Guoquan Food promptly
addresses inquiries from stakeholders, integrating
their demands, opinions, and suggestions
into its daily operations and decision-making
processes, thereby continuously improving its ESG
management capacity.

2.2
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Communication channels and response
Stakeholders Expectations and demands mechanisms
MEEES RSB BRERR BERBHEEERS
Consumers/Customers +  Food safety and quality +  Customer visits
HEEBEE « Information security and privacy | « Market research
protection +  National customer service hotline
+  Customer communication and service | « BFEE:H
+  Responsible marketing - TG
+ Nutrition and health . REEPRBRE
. RmTrHES
. BEREZENEILRE
. BERBBERE
- BEEEH
. BEREER
Investors/Shareholders +  Corporate governance +  Regular reports and announcements
BEE /B’ER Business ethics and anti-corruption | « Investor email and meeting
+  Risk management communication
Information security and privacy | « EHREEDE
protection . BREEBHRSHRED
. RERHE
- BEERERER
- [ERRERE
. EERE2MBIRE
Government/Regulatory + Corporate governance + Information disclosure and
Authorities +  Business ethics and anti-corruption submission
BT /BB P « Community welfare «  Visit reception
+  Energy management +  Project collaboration
+  Water resource management +  Supervision and inspection
. RaEppE - (EREEMIRX
- AEXBREERER o REESF
- HEAE - EAAE
. REREIR - EERTE
. KERER

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Communication channels and response

Employee rights protection
Occupational health and safety
Employee communication and care
Employment

8 THrEM et at

8 TIE7I s R

8 TR RIE

EES ek

ST EmmEE

BT

Stakeholders Expectations and demands mechanisms

FEHAERE S M ERERR BEREEERERS

Employees Employee compensation and welfare + Regular employee meetings

8T Employee training and development + Regular communication and

feedback surveys

Internal activity communication
channels

Training activities

Employee union

THETS

EEB R AT RS
NEDEB)BBIRED

CEICEY

BIT®

Franchisees

pltlgiEd]

Franchisee management
Industry cooperation and
development

Product research and innovation
MEHER

TEAERER

Em it B A

Franchisee committee

Franchisee briefing

Franchisee satisfaction surveys
Franchisee communication platform
MEBZES

AR RS

MEEMEERE

R AR A

Suppliers/Business Partners
AP
SIERLE

Supply chain management
Food safety and quality
Responsible marketing
Intellectual property protection
HrEgEE e

BmzrHEE

BEEEH

HBERRE

Contracts and agreements

Supplier evaluation

Supplier communication and training
& B3

HIERG RIS

PHFE R 227 B B

Community/Media
HRAR IHE

Food safety and quality
Customer communication and
service

Information security and privacy
protection

Climate change adaptation

Food loss and waste management
Packaging material management
RmRrHES

P BRRRT
=R MEAIRE
EHRRE
BYEE LR E R
BrEE

Daily communication and
response

Public opinion monitoring and
response

Official website news disclosure
Interviews and discussions
Participation in offline media
events

Online media forums
HE&mue &

5 85 B £ 0] fiE

B AR R

LRENEE

RS T RS2 HE

IREBAR amiE

Associations/Non-profit
Organizations
ik N EE

Social welfare
/N

Volunteering
Community service
ERERT
[ AR TS
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2.3 Materiality Analysis

Identifying and assessing the materiality of various
ESG issues is crucial for the future planning of
ESG work, formulation and review of ESG goals of
Guoquan Food. The Group identifies and analyzes
material issues through a variety of channels
such as stakeholder surveys, communication and
interviews, peer benchmarking, etc., to determine
material issues that have a significant impact on its
sustainable development and are widely concerned
by stakeholders. In 2023, the ESG materiality matrix
of Guoquan Food has been approved by the Board.

2.3

EARMEEDIN

A B E R RIESGHE A E
ANEHERBERMBARESGT
YERIIRE] - ESG B IZMHIE K&
BRRHEBEEEE - A5H
MBNEAES SRR B
WA RAITHESZERE
FIREANMZEE A D
T BEHESIRERREY
Z8KX - MRBEBEHEERT
MEE B 20234 © $RE
RMMESGEXNEZEEMEE
BESEETSME -

Identification of
material issues

LB E - BAEEEAMRE -

Conduct industry analysis and ESG standards analysis, and identify potential material A
issues in combination with the disclosure guidelines of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
“ESG Reporting Guide” and the Company’s own characteristics and strategic direction.

FRITEAN - ESGREN - A B BB M(ESGIMEE) RERSINAE B BT

J

EAM
E L]

~

Communication
of material issues

EAM

Distribute ESG materiality survey questionnaires to understand the issues of
concern to stakeholders and summarize the issues with higher levels of concern.
EMESGEZMRABRAMBESE - THREMEAGRE T FAEINZEE - HEIERSMH
REETTHRAEER W o

SERE

Prioritization
of material issues

ERM

Assess and prioritize all material issues from two dimensions: importance to the Company
and importance to stakeholders, and develop the materiality matrix.
RENFANBEEMENMUF BT NE2ERERE - UAEE2MEBETHE
Y TR EE M EREAEE -

HEHF

Confirmation
of material issues

The Board conducts final review and approval of material issues and carries out
issue disclosure.

MEFSHBEAEFEBETREENEIOE  ETHERE -

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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In 2023, under the guidance of the senior leadership
team, we conducted materiality analysis in four
steps: identification, communication, prioritization,
and confirmation of material issues. Ultimately,
we identified 24 material issues across the
environmental, social, and governance aspects and
developed the ESG materiality matrix. Based on this
matrix, we implemented targeted management and

actions.

Naguss
T 7 —+

SHID

%
N

M e S ot BS T B

%

Importance to external stakeholders

Governance Issues
. S 022 B

2023%F - EEAEEEKAIE
BT BVRREAMEEEH
Bl - BB - YRR ANRE R I E
RETEEMHRESNT - &K
BRRE g BAZAH
ISR 24THEREE - WK T
ESGERZEEME - N e
CEHEAGHEMNEIRE
78 -

2023 ESG materiality matrix of Guoquan Food
B R Mm2023FESGE A & Ak &

Importance to Guoquan Food

HMBERMMEEE

Social Issues

Environmental Issues

Az
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2.4

13 Employment
BTER
1 Corporate governance 14 Labor rights protection
REJRE EIRHRE
2 Business ethics and anti-corruption 15 Employee compensation and welfare
BEERRRER BT HMEaRE
3 Risk management 16 Emplgxee training and development
ERER ETHIRER
4 Information security and data privacy 17 Employee communication and care
FEEREMBEREL STARERR
5 Intellectual property protection 18 Occupational health and safety
HHERRE BERREZE
19 Social contributions
HEER

Food safety and quality

AmEZEHEE

7 Supply chain management 20 Climate change mitigation
HERER RS RRE L

8 Franchisee management 21 Energy and greenhouse gas management
NBFER EREREREERE

9 Nutrition and health 22 Environmental management and food waste
ERERRE BREBRRMRE

10 Customer communication and service 23 Water resource management
RPERERS KERER

" Responsible marketing 24 Packaging materials management
BEEEH AHER

12 Sustainable supply chain
AIRHE R

Statement of the Board

The Board of Guoquan Food, as the highest

governing body for ESG affairs, assumes ultimate

responsibility for ESG governance policies,

strategies, setting related goals, reviewing

progress of goals, and ESG performance. The

senior leadership team of the Group is responsible

for reviewing the Company’s ESG strategy, goals,

and risk management, reviewing the progress

of ESG goals, ensuring the integration of the

ESG philosophy with the Company’s operations,

exploring sustainable development models that

combine ESG with the Company’s business, and

regularly reporting progress to the Board.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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At the operational level, Guoquan Food has
established an ESG working group responsible
for guiding and supervising the implementation
progress of ESG goals across functional
departments and subsidiaries, monitoring the
implementation of sustainable development
management policies, ensuring the comprehensive
integration of sustainable development philosophy
into day-to-day operations, and regularly reporting
work progress to the senior leadership team.

Guoquan Food incorporates ESG risks into the
Company’s overall risk management system, and
formulates risk response measures by identifying
and assessing the likelihood, impact, and trends
of key ESG risks. The Board regularly supervises
the identification and assessment of ESG risks and
opportunities to ensure the effective operation of
the Company’s ESG risk management and internal
control systems.

We actively pay attention to the demands of
stakeholders by establishing timely and transparent
communication and response channels with them,
regularly conduct assessments of material ESG
issues, and formulate sustainable development
strategies for the Group based on the results of the
assessments.

ROBUST GOVERNANCE

Guoquan Food strictly complies with the requirements
of relevant national laws and regulations, such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, continuously improving
its corporate governance level. Based on its business
development, the Group continuously optimizes its
corporate governance structure, with an aim to enhance
risk management, standardize compliant business
operations, and support the sustainable and steady
development of the Company.
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3.1

3.2

Corporate Governance

Guoquan Food believes that having directors with
diverse backgrounds contributes to enhancing
the effectiveness of the Board and promoting the
long-term development of the Company. When
nominating candidates for the Board, we follow a
series of diversity criteria, considering candidates’
diversity in terms of gender, age, culture, education
background, ethnicity, profession, industry,
management experience, and skills, among others,
to ensure that the Board can provide professional
and independent opinions and judgments on
business strategies, risk management, and other
important matters from multiple perspectives. Our
independent directors and non-executive directors
account for more than one-third of the total
number of directors in the Group’s Board, ensuring
the independence and effectiveness of corporate
decision-making.

Number of directors by type
REZERBSINEEHEAR

m  Executive director
4 HTES
Non-executive director
FEMITES
Independent non-executive
director

BUIENITES

Responsible Operation

Guoquan Food actively promotes a “Positive” culture
of excellence and goodness, laying the foundation
for the Group to achieve sustainable development.
We continuously carry out risk control, strengthen
internal compliance management, and strive
to create a culture of compliant operation and
integrity.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Number of directors by gender
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3.2.1 Risk Management 3.2.1 R EEE

Guoquan Food attaches great importance to
enhancing its risk management capabilities.
It establishes and continuously improves its
risk management system, integrating risk
control into the daily business management
of frontline departments. Different types
of risks are assessed and controlled under
the leadership of respective responsible
departments, thereby strengthening the
Company’s ability to withstand risks.
Specifically, food safety risks and public
relations risks are identified, analyzed,
assessed, and controlled under the
leadership of the Food Safety Department
and the Public Relations Department, while
operational risks are identified, assessed,
and handled collaboratively by the Internal
Audit and Supervision Department and the
Operational Supervision Department.

We continuously optimize the risk
assessment process, conducting ongoing
risk identification, analysis, assessment, and
early warning during business operations. We
coordinate relevant departments to develop
risk control measures and synchronize
optimization of the risk management
processes in the daily operations of various
functional departments. In 2023, Guoquan
Food integrated ESG-related risks into
routine risk investigation and assessment
activities to enhance the group-wide
awareness of ESG risk management, thereby
facilitating better implementation of ESG
management strategies.
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3.2.2

The Internal Audit and Supervision
Department of Guoquan Food, as an
independent supervisory unit within
the Group, conducts risk management
audits annually in accordance with laws
and regulations of place of operation
and the Group’s relevant requirements.
In 2023, the Group conducted a special
risk audit, focusing on assessing aspects
such as information security risks and the
effectiveness of internal controls to enhance
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk control,
with no major findings from the audit.

Business Ethics

Guoquan Food strictly abides by the laws
and regulations such as the Civil Code of the
People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Anti-Monopoly Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China. We have issued guidelines
such as the “Striving for excellence and
goodness, with a focus on helping others
(Al EAEFEFIME)” and maintain a “zero
tolerance” policy towards any acts of
commercial bribery, fostering an atmosphere
of integrity and cleanliness. Additionally, we
incorporate the “prohibition of commercial
bribery” into contracts with business
partners such as franchisees and suppliers,
regulating both parties’ commercial activities
to prevent fraudulent behavior, and holding
individuals civilly or criminally liable for any
fraudulent behaviors according to contract
terms.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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The Company has established a dedicated
internal investigation department and
introduced a professional anti-fraud
investigation team, specifically responsible
for carrying out integrity supervision duties
and investigating internal personnel for
corruption, dereliction of duty, and other
fraudulent activities. During the Reporting
Period, we further improved the operational
mechanisms of the organizational system for
compliance management of Guoquan Food,
enhancing the efficiency of issue resolution
by expanding the sources of fraud clues and
shortening the problem resolution chain.
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Guoquan Food Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption
Management Mechanism
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Integrity Governance Measures

In 2023, the Group conducted anti-
corruption and business ethics audits on key
operational processes and nodes prone to
integrity issues within its subsidiaries and
franchisees. Prompt rectification actions
have been taken for identified issues and
improvement opportunities.

We are committed to fostering a culture
of ethics and integrity, striving to enhance
the awareness of integrity and compliance
among all employees. Regular anti-
corruption and anti-bribery training sessions
are conducted for directors and all staff to
ensure their understanding of the Company’s
business ethics and anti-corruption
regulations. For high-profile violations,
we conduct case-based risk analysis and
hold focused briefings and work reflections
for relevant functional staff to serve as a
deterrent through case examples

FREEEIE
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Promoting the “Positive” culture of Guoquan food
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In December 2023, centering on upholding the “Positive” culture, Guoquan Food organized five
“Integrity Guoquan” touring promotional activities in Zhengzhou under the theme of “Positive Mind,
Positive Thought, Positive Action, Positive Spirit” These activities were closely grounded on real-
life situations. We used “people around us and cases around us” as our material as we believed that
“one case is better than a thousand documents”. Over 300 people participated in the training.
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Compliance Complaint and Handling Process

Guoquan Food has established a
comprehensive compliance complaint
handling procedure, providing multiple
public complaint reporting channels such
as email and phone calls, and encouraging
internal and external stakeholders such
as employees, suppliers, and partners, to
lodge complaints and reports. Meanwhile,
we continuously enhance the whistleblower
protection mechanism to ensure the
confidentiality of reported information and
safeguard the effectiveness of reporting
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channels and the safety of whistleblowers.

Guoquan Food’s Reporting channel
Whistleblowing Channel and Email: jubao@guoquan.cn

Handling Process Tel: 021-31186509

MERMEBRRER sEipEy
RERRE EFS : jubao@guoquan.cn

EiE 0 021-31186509

Information confidentiality: Dedicated personnel manage reported
information, including collection, classification, identification,
distribution for investigation, etc.

FRRE  BEAEESENRER  BREKRE 28 B HkAEF

Reporting process: After the recipient of the reported information
identifies it, he or she will separately distribute it to an investigator
designated by the investigation department. Upon conclusion of the
investigation, the results are directly provided to the recipient of the
report to proceed with the handling process. This ensures a closed-
loop circulation of complaint information from reporting to resolution,
safeguarding the confidentiality of the reported information and the
whistleblower

BERE  BREEERABREEF ) EASHIETHEA - HAELHE
REEREEREZRIRZRAERIE - FRRFEEINEEEFHR
W VREBERES  BRAREE

Whistleblower protection: The physical safety of the whistleblower
is strictly protected. In cases of retaliation against the whistleblower,
Guoquan Food will deal with it sternly in accordance with relevant
regulations. Those suspected of illegal and criminal activities are
handed over to judicial authorities for legal proceedings
BHANRE  HBRRERBAAT LS - HAPRTERERRANBR - #
BlR m KRR S RERE - S iE &I R ROER R B AKRI R
b
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We strengthen compliance construction
through investigating and handling cases,
suggesting and promoting the optimization
of relevant systems and business processes
In 2023,
Guoqguan Food joined the Anti-Fraud Alliance

to reduce compliance risks.

and the Trust and Integrity Enterprise
Alliance, establishing connections with peer
companies to share clues and intelligence on
anti-fraud and combating illegal activities.

PRIORITIZING FOOD SAFETY

Since its inception, Guoquan Food has always prioritized

food safety and product quality control in the Company’s

development, striving to provide consumers with healthy,

safe, tasty, and affordable Guoquan home meal products.

4.1

Quality Assurance

Guoquan Food firmly believes that enterprises
should attach great importance to products
and carry out rigorous quality control over each
process to gain long-term support and trust from
consumers. We build a food safety culture that
“everyone is the supervisor of food safety”, and
require all employees to pay close attention to food
quality and safety. We establish a multi-system,
multi-level and high-efficiency quality management
system, continuously improve food quality, and
actively carry out food quality and safety promotion
activities, to safeguard “table safety” from all fronts.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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4.1.17 Quality Control System

We strictly abide by laws, regulations and
other national standards such as the Food
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
and General Hygienic Practices for Catering
Services (2021) to control food safety of each
operation process from plant production to
store sales. We also formulate a series of
requirements and regulations for key points,
including the Store Food Safety Operation
Manual, Food Safety Administrator System,
Food Safety Self-inspection and Reporting
System, and Food Safety Emergency
Response Plan to ensure the safety and
compliance of food quality.

Our Group sets up a food safety team, with
headquarters leaders in charge of food
safety serving as the team leader and deputy
team leader, the head of Food Safety and
Public Relations Department as the overall
coordinator, and first-level supervisors of
each department and managers at provincial
level as team members to jointly engage in
food safety risk prevention and response.
With a focus on food safety, we establish the
Guoquan Food quality management system
to control food safety from the aspects of
“prevention” and “control”. We aim to ensure
long-term and targeted control over the food
quality management process and key points,
and prevent and control food safety risks
from the source to the customer end.

4.1.1
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Guoquan Food Quality Management System

BERREEEERA

“Prevention”

0

System construction: supervise
the formulation, distribution and
implementation of food safety
systems, standards and processes
of the headquarters, provinces and
stores

HIEER  HEHAR BRARTMM
JEEEPITHNIE  RE - RIZEITH
E -~ PEMBITERLEE

Awareness raising: functional
departments such as Food Safety
Department of the headquarters and
at provincial level and enterprise
university carry out food quality and
safety training sessions on systems,
standards and processes for
employees, stores and franchisees
BE MRk LRR% - BERARE
SRS T - P - R
ETHE  REMRESZ T EHNRME
EHz 2

Management approach: investigate
food safety departments at
provincial level, inspectors,
employees and franchisees on their
understanding and implementation
of food safety systems, standards
and processes

B ZRABRL - BE BT I
BRSHEASHEIE  12E  RES
BB RRAE R TR

“Control”
58]

Inspectors and Legal Department:

carry out random food safety

inspection of stores, and impose

penalties for any violations

BEMER : DEBMEFIE - HF9E
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Guoquan Food “Prevention” and “Control” of food safety risks

BERREmREZERN[F R[S

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Product

Random internal
inspection and regular
external inspection
on supplier selection
and review, raw
material acceptance
and inventory spot
inspection
HEBNEE LS
% BERK - EF
EmTESRSE - E
HRSMR

Guoquan Food Direction and Key Points of Food Quality Control
BEERFORBERN

Warehousing

?ﬁ!ﬁﬁ
Storage temperature
and expiration
control
BFRETRERA R
HeEE

BEREREmEER
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Logistics

%,‘ﬁ
Monitor temperature
and turnover

time during the
transportation
MFERAE - B
iy P B B 2

4.1.2 Quality Improvement Initiatives

To continuously improve product quality,
we carry out full-chain and whole-process
quality control covering product certification,
warehousing & logistics, store management
and recall management.

In terms of product certification, we
constantly upgrading and improving our
quality and food safety management system
in accordance with market and customer
demands as well as relevant regulatory
requirements. We continuously enhance our
product and service quality and food safety,
and engage in system certification in relation
to quality management on a progressive
basis. In 2023, the Group obtained ISO 9001
quality management system certification and
ISO 22000 food safety management system
certification. These systems cover pre-
packaged foods (including frozen food) and
bulk food (including frozen food; excluding
cooked food, pork products, beef and
mutton), etc.

Store

FIE

Strictly monitor
key control
points of license
management,
short weight
prevention, cleaning
& disinfection, pest
prevention and
control, expiration
management and
labeling & marking
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Guoquan Food Product Quality System Press Conference

BERREREERARMGE

In 2023, Guoquan Food entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with Centre Testing
International Group Co., Ltd. (CTI), SGS and China Certification & Inspection Group (CIC) on carry out
in-depth cooperation on a number of fields such as healthy product development, food safety risk
control, supplier management and empowerment and voluntary certification. The goal is to jointly
promote the system upgrading of high-quality products and promote the “liveliness” of meals by

consuming quality products.
SEBMAERDF] (CTIERRAD - BEREERMRE AR A R(SGS)

20234 + $AER BRI RIRE
&EPIJFA%?WWWE(EPH%) REBRBEESENS  BEARRERRE  RRTE2EBRZES -

EEMESH Wjﬁ;)\/ﬁu °

HEmEE SR BRIER {ég FHEREAAE AARESEEERBRA M - LRENET

As regard to warehousing and logistics,
Guoguan Food enhances quality control over
raw materials and production processes of
upstream plants, executes strict product
acceptance and returns management at
warehouses to prevent defective products
from flowing into the market.

In terms of store management, Guoquan
Food sets up Operation & Compliance
Department, Inspection Department, Food
Safety and Operation Department and other
departments based on its own management
needs, and carries out regular food safety
inspections on franchised stores. We conduct
spot check on inventory and in-store product
quality and come up with suggestions for
rectification. We impose penalties including
warnings, fines and revocations of franchise
operation license on franchisees with critical
findings to better supervise and manage
franchisees. In 2023, the Group conducted
food safety inspection on our franchised
stores in the form of online monitoring,
offline routine inspection and sudden
unannounced inspection.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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As for product recall, Guoquan Food
establishes the management system
of “Product Recall and Withdrawal
Management” and a complete recall process.
The Company actively carries out product
recall drills, and improves emergency
response rate and disposal capacity to
ensure quick product recall and minimize
the risks to the public in case of food safety
incidents. In 2023, the Group conducted one
product recall drill, and had no food safety
violations, penalties or mass product recalls
caused by food safety issues.
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Identify issue

. Identify major product quality issues or safety issues via self-inspection, store
complaints, spot check by regulatory authorities and other means

wmiEARE - PURRS EESPIMeE A ERERFENEREDEMENE L 2HE )

~N

BEEE

Identify issue

+ A review team made up of food safety group members conduct evaluation of the )
issue, develop a recall plan and determine the scope, goal and timeline for the recall
R 2/ NER B AR A/ NE S REETEE - HIE AR RESQHE - B

KISFH

Develop recall

RN B T B0 2B Y,
. Develop a recall plan, inform stores and relevant departments of the detailed
recall information, including recall means, time requirements, etc.
HIE QRS - EEADEESHMPFUEFEBINMA - WEMBRN AR - KES
J

plan

and carry out regular review and tracking

B

+  Departments/personnel in relation to the recall organize product recall separately )

BENES R NERREEBEABABETACER

I 7F B e A A B R

J

+  Review the recall and make evaluations on recall/withdrawal results and
effectiveness to strengthen management and improve quality management

Post-event FMREBEEEWIERE FMEMR - AL - NaEE TSR E 8T ITHF

tracking

BRI

Guoquan Food Product Recall Process
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4.1.3 Quality Culture Construction

Guoquan Food continues to strengthen
quality and safety culture construction,
and conducts training sessions on product
quality and food safety for employees on a
regular basis each year to improve quality
and safety awareness in daily work. We carry
out regular training for all employees through
online courses, WeChat official account and
other channels, and provide special lectures
and training sessions at key events such as
Quality and Safety Day and Safety Week. As
franchisees are one of the key components
of food safety and quality assurance, we
provide continuous training for them on in-
store food safety management and food
safety issues in daily operations. During the
Reporting Period, the Group conducted 763
food safety-related training sessions for
franchisees in total, including 365 training
sessions for new franchisees.
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Guoquan Food “315 Food Safety Special Empowerment” training

BERM 315 RTEHEMAL |5

On March 15, 2023, to enhance food safety awareness of franchisees and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of customers, Guoquan Food held the “315 Food Safety Special Empowerment”
training, with 6 training sessions, covering 8 provinces and regions and over 600 franchisees
participating. We provided on-site guidance and rectification suggestions for problems raised by
franchisees based on latest local policies.
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4.2

Innovation and R&D

Innovation is the core driver for the development

of enterprises. While continuously strengthening

intellectual property rights protection, Guoquan

Food is also committed to developing new

nutritious, healthy and organic products with high

protein and rich in dietary fiber and selenium to

further upgrade our healthy product offerings.

4.2.1

Product R&D

By centering on customers’ demands,
Guoquan Food keeps carrying out product
innovation and upgrading to improve product
quality and flavor. Meanwhile, we also attach
great importance innovation in product
packaging, product mix, etc., to continuously
enhance our brand image and provide better
consumer experience.

Innovation and R&D Management

The Group sets up an independent R&D
Department to take charge of R&D project
management, quality stability management
and resource coordination. The department
is also responsible for carrying out whole-
process management including investigation
on market and consumption scenarios,
factory R&D, quality testing & improvement
and trial production. To further improve
R&D efficiency, we have established
a complete R&D project management
system, and standardized processes such
as investigation, project establishment,
evaluation, implementation and review of
product R&D based on internal management
documents such as R&D System and
Processes.
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At preliminary research stage of the
project, the Group pays close attention to
market trend insights and in-depth study
of consumer demands in order to grasp
the market’s development direction. At
project establishment stage, we conduct a
comprehensive feasibility assessment of
new product R&D to increase the success
rate of R&D. At R&D and testing stage, we
work closely with universities and research
institutions to jointly conduct technical
research and product development, with
special attention paid to product quality
and safety. All new products will undergo
rigorous testing and inspection to ensure
that they conform to relevant standards and
regulations. At trial production stage, we
formulate process standards and monitor the
implementation process, compare products
with samples, and follow up for improvement
and upgrading when the new product is
launched.

Innovation and R&D Achievements

With intensified innovation investment
in product offerings, team building and
production equipment, the Group optimizes
and upgrades concept and path for product
innovation and R&D. We have launched
organic products such as “organic flaky and
glutinous tender tips of bamboo shoots”
and clean label products such as “tender
beef” and “spicy beef slices” to provide more
nutritious, healthy and diversified product
choices for consumers.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF
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Developing healthy product
B A

Carry out product R&D under the
concept of healthy eating
1 IR R R A E mif T

For example, we aim to provide more
healthy foods with low sugar, low fat
and low calories, as well as organic,
green and pesticide-free foods

Blan - FA9ETEIHE S RN - KiE -
BEREENRRREM AREH - 4
£ BRERENAHRRM

Strengthening technology R&D

D3R B AT 8%

We will scale up technology
R&D input, introduce advanced
equipment and process technology
to improve product quality and
production efficiency

A IR BT AR - Sl E#ER
%H%%DI% RRBEMNMEMEEN

Partner with universities and
research institutions to jointly
engage in technical research and
product development
HERMAREEA M - KRRRRMN
MEMERFRE

Guoquan Food Product Innovation and R&D Strategy
858 & M = AT B R R

In 2023, we made an all-around product
upgrading based on current dietary and
consumption demands of customers. In order
to meet consumers’ growing demand for food
quality, we plan to launch a healthy product
project to contribute to the goal of “Healthy
China 2030” by catering to consumers’
preference for more nutritious, healthier and
refined foods.
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Guoquan Food Healthy Product Project
HERREEEREEAR

126

Cooperative Innovation Initiative

Guoquan Food adheres to its strategy of
developing nutritious and healthy products,
and conducts training on product R&D
and quality management for all employees
and suppliers to enhance the awareness
of nutrition and healthy eating among all
employees and lay an internal foundation for
strengthening consumers’ concept of healthy
eating and nutrition accessibility. In 2023,
the Group provided 22 training sessions for
suppliers through online and live streaming
channels on an accumulative basis, with
8,777 suppliers participating. The training
courses covered areas such as standards and
regulations interpretation, good innovation
practice, internal control requirement and
risk control, etc.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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4.2.2

Intellectual Property Protection

Guoquan Food attaches great importance
to the management of intellectual property
rights, and strictly abides by laws and
regulations such as the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China to standardize the application,
acquisition, maintenance and protection of
intellectual property rights. While placing
a high value on the protection of our
intellectual property rights, we also give full
respect to the intellectual property rights of
others and will severely crack down on all
kinds of infringements.

We have entered into a series of
confidentiality agreements with all our
employees and franchisees to clearly
define the rights and responsibilities of the
Group’s intellectual property protection.
We conduct routine checks on the official
website of Trademark Office of China
National Intellectual Property Administration
to ensure that our trademark rights are
not infringed upon by others. Besides, we
also pay close attention to the industry
policy dynamics related to intellectual
property rights, and actively carry out
training on intellectual property laws and
regulations for front-line employees from
R&D, sales and legal departments as well
as the management. We aim to ensure
that related personnel possess sufficient
intellectual property knowledge base and
rights protection awareness, and can identify
potential infringement or infringement
incidents in a timely manner.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
7 new copyrights and 70 newly-registered
trademarks, and had 524 registered
trademarks and 48 copyrights on an
accumulative basis.
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4.3 Customer Service

Guoquan Food will adhere to the consumer-centric

service concept, continuously improve customer

service system, carry out marketing activities in

a responsible way, actively protect consumers’

legitimate rights and interests, expand customer

communication channels to provide high-quality

products and services for customers.

4.3.1

Quality Services

Guoquan Food focuses on customers’
needs and experiences. We formulate
rules and regulations such as Customer
Complaints Handling Policy to deal with
complaints regarding products, systems,
services, experiences and other aspects
from customers across the country, and
provide worry-free solutions to all kinds of
products and services problems. In addition,
we develop management systems and
compensation standards such as Standards
for Determining Risk Level of Public Opinion
and Customer Complaints, Compensation
Standards for Public Opinion and Customer
Complaints, and Management System for
Public Opinion and Customer Complaints to
facilitate public complaint settlement.

The Group has accomplished the knowledge
base construction for customer complaint
handling, clearly defined customer complaint
handling process, and formulated a reporting
mechanism for major, public opinion-
related cases and cases with no agreed
solution in the short-term to ensure the
timeliness and effectiveness of customer
complaint handling. We specify the response
time requirement, handling time limit and
handling options for consumer complaints in
the “Customer Complaint Handling Process
Policy” In 2023, the timely response rate
of complaints reached 100%, and timely
handling rate of complaints also recorded

100%.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Product, activities, personnel (service)

BRI - RBERF - AR (R®) JIRR

. Risk levels are determined based on different types of feedback. Currently, risk levels
include low risk, medium risk and high risk. Initial contact timeline for complaints of each
risk level varies, with high-risk complaints to be handled first
SHUTRREENSETRRRSS - BHARSEH AERR - PARTSAR - SARSH
HETEHNEMRN - SRBRETHERE

. The time limit for medium and high risk complaint handling is within 24-48 hours, with the
formulation of an executable and law-based handling plan

T b SRR IR R ESRIE 24-48/ N A - BT ATAAT » AV AENRIE SR

. For after-sales related feedback from customers, customer complaint handling personnel
shall conduct initial contact within 30 minutes

HEDHBERENERBE  ERFTHRABEHEI0DEANTK

. In terms of high-risk complaints, initial contact should be made within 15 minutes to ensure
effective reach-out to consumers in a timely manner

ERBRERASRBNERT  BEBEE150BRNTK  BRE - SHEEEERTAMHE

. For feedback submitted within 10 minutes before off-duty the day before, it should be
handled before 10 o’clock the next day in a timely manner

IR — R TR0 D BARZMMBERE - FAEK B 1080251 R EIE

Guoquan Food Consumer Complaint Handling Process

BERREEERFEERE

We aim at constantly optimizing customer
experience, expanding communication
channels with customers and effectively
protecting the legitimate rights and interests
of consumers. The Group has set up a
Customer Service Department to accept and
handle consumer complaints via a number of
communication channels such as consumer
hotline, offline stores, Guoquan Food APP,
WeChat, Weibo, Douyin, Kuaishou and
Xiaohongshu. We treat and handle consumer
complaints seriously, provide feedback to
consumer complaints within a specified time,
conduct in-depth analysis and review of
complaints, and inform relevant departments
of areas with potential improvement rooms
to continuously improve our products and
services.
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Customer Satisfaction EFmER

Guoquan Food improves customer MERLBEEERE
satisfaction to effectively reduce customer R R B - BB
complaints by taking measures in various Al % % ([ 75 B ERER 88
aspects including quality assurance, service B EasEPREE
system optimization, and coordinated NBERR D EPRFE
organization. Hr R4 o

Set up a national Operation and Compliance Department to conduct unannounced visits and
investigation of product and service quality at stores to ensure that products and services
meet the Company’s requirements

g%%ﬁ%éﬂ%ﬂ CEHEPIEERES  REESETEG  BHRE  BREQEBRBEFE

For existing product quality issues, after-sales handling will be carried out in a timely
manner to prevent the products from flowing into the market. Feedback is provided to
upstream plants to take actions

HHEHENEREEMBERETEREE - BERATS - WRE D THRE FERE

Issue a rectification notice on existing service quality issues, and carry out provincial level
supervision over the stores

HEZENRBESMETERICERAN - W EREEHPIEETRERE

Optimize existing after-sales service system, including national service hotline reception
and customer complaint handling process

BILEREANERREER  BEZBERBAGERE HBETHFERRIE

Respond to customer complaints in a timely manner, proactively deal with customers’
complaints to ensure customer are satisfied with the experience

kisBEEP&ES  BRREEPHE  BREPERMEE

Strengthen the training for all customer service personnels, improve service skills and
service awareness

ISEFTE FIRA BRI - RS IR ALK ARG B

Improve the mechanism of customer relationship management, follow up customers’ needs
and feedbacks on a regular basis to enhance customer loyalty

TEEPHEEER  THRETPHRERE  RETFPEME

Establish an internal communication and cooperation mechanism, clearly identify
responsibilities and obligations, and promote teamwork

BT NEDBBMBERS) - BREBEMNEY - R EEE

Optimize the cooperation mechanism among existing departments to ensure that all
departments are aligned in providing satisfying customer experience
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Data processing and reporting on a regular basis

EHHBERERER

Build a daily, weekly, monthly, semi-annual and annual reporting mechanism, process,
summarize and analyze customer complaint data in different periods, be fully aware of the
latest customer complaints and types, and refine handling measures and rectification plans
in a timely manner

EERAWR AR AW FFERFEER SRS TRAKHOTREBRETER  EL D
i BRSO ZFEBREME - RNHERERERBENTR

Implement intra-department collaborative reporting, and hold meetings to analyze and
review data of each period

ZEFIREER - St AT ERABBETESRIT - 8%

Guoquan Food Management Initiatives to Improve Customer Satisfaction

BERRRATFREEEEEE

Meanwhile, we conduct irregular customer
investigation through online surveys,
social platform feedback, telephone
communication, etc., to evaluate consumers’
experience, contract performance
experience, product experience and after-
sales experience on each platform. The
investigation also enables us to learn about
franchisees’ comprehensive evaluation
on the Company’s service attitude,
support policies, in-store visit frequency,
communication and issue handling timelines,
which will help us further improve customer
satisfaction.
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4.3.2 Responsible Marketing 4.3.2 BEMFEH

132

The Group strictly abides by laws and
regulations such as Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China, regulates advertising and marketing
activities, establishes a responsible review
and supervision mechanism for marketing
materials, with a focus on strict control
over the management elements related
to product safety and quality. We also lay
emphasis on the management of product
labels and product promotion materials,
and all marketing materials should be
approved by authorized managers of the
Company. Meanwhile, we establish a public
opinion feedback mechanism, monitor public
opinion trends in real time, collect public
opinion information, carry out public opinion
classification, and further ensure marketing
compliance by strengthening control over
public opinions.

We continue to strengthen promotion of
responsible marketing, organize various
kinds of training activities, effectively
implement marketing concepts via online and
offline channels, and standardize marketing
and publicity activities.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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4.3.3

Online training

AR £

Promote the concept of responsible
marketing through monthly national sharing
meetings to share specific responsible
marketing cases
RAAEEBRSZASTEATMEEHES
DEEFLHAERN

Make effective use of Guoquan Food’s online
knowledge platform to provide training for
employees across the nation; enhance the
awareness of responsible marketing of
stores through live-streaming courses

BERANARER EAMBTS  BE2EER
BAEEREDNPIERABELHER

Information Security and Privacy Protection

Guoquan Food highly values customer
information security and privacy protection,
strictly abides by laws and regulations
such as the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumers’
Rights and Interests, the Personal
Information Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Data Security Law.
We formulate systems and norms such as
Information Security Management System
Manual, Management Standards for Data
Classification and Grading and Full Life Cycle
Security, Personal Information Protection
Management Standards and Business
Continuity Management Provisions to further
standardize the Group’s global and full-life
cycle data management. We aim to ensure
the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of information generated from all business
procedures including external services,

internal operations, and product R&D.

Offline training
BT

Carry out targeted promotion and training
on marketing material arrangement, display
and activity mechanism through sessions
such as “material and display guide” and
“one page marketing takeaways”.
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In order to effectively control the risks in
relation to data and users’ privacy, Guoquan
Food has established Information Security
Management Committee, Data Security
Management Committee and Personal
Information Protection Committee as
the highest decision-making bodies for
information security, data security and
privacy protection respectively to ensure
the efficient implementation of related

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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management work.

Management Measures on Information Security

Guoquan Food adheres to the standardized B R mE AR R
information security management process EELEEERE &
and strictly carries out information security ERREERERLD
management and control across all stages. BT

. With security products deployed on Hicloud and Aliyun, such as situational awareness,

application firewall, cloud firewall, host security, database audit, etc., we can monitor
information security incidents, discover and respond to security vulnerabilities, threats and
attacks in a timely manner to reduce losses and prevent the spread of malicious acts
BMEAE  MEELHBFNRDED - BIERERMA - BAMAE  ZHARE - EHEZD - 8
Tﬁ)ﬁ%}%gﬂ&%/ﬁﬂ EEREEMN  REERMEERZ2RN  BBMNE - LURDBEERILH LR
BITANIEA

In accordance with the Risk Assessment Specifications for Information Assets, we manually
assess the risks of various information assets, including networks, systems, applications
and bearer data based on the importance of assets and related threat scenarios, and
develop targeted repair schemes to control risks

EIECIE ﬁfkﬂ@uﬂaiﬁﬁw EREESZRENABNBBESRAINREREREE &
AR 20 TR R BB TR A RER - LT Y AR IS R R

. Carry out penetration test as planned before the launch of new products/functions and
major activities, covering important interfaces, such as personal information processing,
identity verification, fund processing, lottery activities, etc.

EEM/DE FEIREREHHRRARAEFRRZENR  TERESZE0 - WEAEEE
B 5k EeRR  mInE
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. Annual audit: Based on the control points and requirements specified in the Guoquan Food
Control Table for IT Audit, we verify the effectiveness of information security management
system from multiple dimensions such as information security planning, staffing, risk
management, project management and operation and maintenance management
FEES  ERGREITEZ %Hi%)%#*%ﬂ%’&? HER - EELERE - ABEE - ARE
B HEEE  BHEEZELE  BREATGEER2EERBRETNARIL

. Special audit: In terms of the issues discovered in daily security operation and security
assessment, we identify business scenarios or products with the highest risks, and carry
out targeted and in-depth auditing to control security risks. The 2023 special audit has been
successfully completed
HIEE  RBEAER2ELERZEMETEANMEE - BPARSANEHSRIER - HY
MR RBAEEAZESIZ 2 AR - 2023 FHIREADIRFZEK

In terms of system certification, Guoguan EEE B E - BB
Food has obtained the Network Security BRBRHELES
Grade Protection Certification (NSGPC) HERERRTLEER
and the Grade Protection Certification by (R (2R B
Communications Administration (GPCCA) for =T R R R
its core systems, including: GBIR) - i -

To C online Mall systems (including Guoquan APP, WeChat mini-program and Alipay mini-program)
is qualified for grade-3 NSGPC certification and grade-3 GPCCA certificajtion
To CIEVEI F 4% (ZIMBIAPP - TE/NMEFF - XNE/NMEF) SER=ARE - BREAERE -

To B goods reporting system (Guoquan Online Shopping APP) is qualified for grade-3 NSGPC
certification and grade-3 GPCCA certification.
To BBV ¥RE Z4t (IREZHAPP) IS ZR=ZARE - BRERRAE -

To B cashier system (Guoquan cashier system) is qualified for grade-3 NSGPC certification and
grade-3 GPCCA certification.
To Bim R 24T (REEKIR AR ) USSR =ZMRE - BRZARE -

To B supplier system (supplier collaborative system) is qualified for grade-2 NSGPC certification
and grade 3 GPCCA certification.

To Bim V&R R 4% (BRI 1B R R 4%) USSR —RRE - BIR=ARE -
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In terms of emergency response, the Group
continuously improves our emergency
response capability of information
leakage incidents, conducts emergency
drills for information leakage, optimizes
related information security procedures,
strengthens the management of security
incident reporting, and makes coordinated
efforts with parties concerned to deal with
emergency incidents to mitigate information
security risks. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had no major data leakage
incidents, no major information security
incidents, and no complaints about customer
privacy and data security.

To further enhance employees’ information
security awareness, we regularly organize
various promotion and training activities on
data security. We formulate the Management
Practices for Information Security Training to
help employees establish a correct network
security concept and abide by network
security principles. In 2023, with our online
knowledge platform, we promoted knowledge
on cyber threats, data security and best
practices including password management,
social engineering attacks, phishing,
malware among employees and franchisees.
The accumulative number of viewers
exceeded 1,000.

Privacy Protection Management Initiatives

Guoquan Food implements hierarchical
management of personal information based
on the level of data sensitivity. We also put
forward a number of specific measures to
fully protect the privacy of customers and
franchisees.
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Compliince guarantee
|=]

. Update the Privacy Agreement and
User Agreement on the application
side in a timely manner, make
full and complete disclosure of
the processing rules of personal
information collection, utilization,
sharing and publication to
consumers, franchisees, suppliers
and other stakeholders, and obtain
full authorization from users
N5 e i (R AL e ) R KR P 1%
B FEEE - MER - HEREH
@A T TEEEH EEAAE SR
& FA - AHZ - ARSSERTHRE
RA - WESRHPHIT KR

. In terms of entrusted processing
scenario, the Entrusted Data
Processing Agreement shall be
signed with the entrusted party
to clarify the responsibilities and
obligations of both parties regarding
personal information, and monitor
the data security control of the
entrusted party
BRETERIBIS S - RRELTRE
(BEBEZARERZE)  ARETHR
BAGEHNEENER  WEEERTLH
BRI BIE e R

. Improve the compliance function
of the application, and fully protect
the rights and interests of data
subjects including consumers and
franchisees
TERAmE AU - ROREEEE
AN S B £ B P BUR A0 AR

Fa

5.  WORKING TOGETHER FOR MUTUAL BENEFITS

The coordinated development of franchisees, suppliers
and the industry is an indispensable part and strong
support for us to advance jointly. Franchisees acts as an
extension of our brand, and their success and growth have
direct impact on the market influence and competitiveness
of Guoquan Food. Suppliers provide guarantees for our
product quality, and their professionalism and integrity
are the basis for us to win the trust from consumers.
The Group is committed to improving industry standards
through sharing experiences and conducting exchanges
and cooperation, striving to achieve prosperity and
progress of the whole industry.

5.

Technical control

oz

Sensitivity-related fields are
encrypted in storage, and sensitive
fields are encrypted as a whole
during transmission

BHFRABINE - GURTFRERBRE

RN

When the sensitivity-related fields
are displayed on the front end,
such as the user side (APP, mini
program) and the Company’s internal
management system, they are
desensitized according to business
scenarios

BB RER mERRE - BB P h
(APP - /NZFF) RARIAEPEIR R 4L -
RIBEBS S HBET

Audit the operation records of
sensitivity-related applications
and sensitivity-related databases
on a regular basis to identify any
violations
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5.1

Franchisee Management

Guoquan Food has built a complete franchisee
management system to reduce business risks and
maximize the interests of both parties. Moreover, we
also provide comprehensive support and training for
our franchisees to develop strong and sustainable
management capabilities. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, we had 10,300 franchised stores
across the country, and had jointly written a brilliant
chapter of Guoquan Food with our franchisees.

5.1.1 Franchisee Compliance Management

To ensure the compliance management
of franchisees, we not only formulate a
detailed internal code of business conduct
for franchisees, but also develop policies and
systems in key areas such as anti-corruption
and anti-money laundering. In 2023, the
Company issued a document entitled
“Striving for excellence and goodness, with a
focus on helping others ([a]_E A2« FIFEF)th)”
to fight against fraudulent behaviors such
as “offering or accepting bribes by various
means”.

In addition, we adopt a series of major
measures on franchisee management to
strengthen the compliance of franchisee
management. When entering into contracts
with franchisees, suppliers and other
business partners, we always include
“Prohibition of Commercial Bribery” in the
terms of the contract to restrain the business
behavior of both parties and prevent fraud.
In case of any violations, the Company will
seriously investigate relevant responsibilities
in accordance with the terms of the contract.
To ensure the implementation of these codes
and policies, we also set up open reporting
channels to encourage employees and
partners to actively report any violations.
During the Reporting Period, the Company
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5.1.2

not only strengthened the anti-corruption
clauses in contracts signed with franchisees,
but also built a comprehensive closed-loop
control mechanism from the aspects of case
investigation, system optimization, industry
cooperation and integrity education.

To ensure the ethical compliance of business
activities, Guogquan Food conducted a
rigorous audit of its headquarters and
marketing activities in all provinces and
regions in 2023. The Company also provided
a number of anti-corruption training
sessions for franchisees to strengthen the
construction of the “Positive” culture.

Empowerment of Franchisees

To make sure all franchisees can obtain
comprehensive and targeted support
despite their different situations, Guoquan
Food builds an established training system
for franchisees, carries out hierarchical
management of franchised stores, and
develops corresponding training plans. We
divide franchisees into three levels to identify
the actual situation and needs of franchisees
more accurately, and formulate more
practical training strategies.

According to the development concept
of Guoquan Food, franchisees are not
only partners, but also family members
to grow together. We establish a series of
comprehensive and complete training and
management systems for franchisees, such
as Mentor System Management Measures
and Mentoring Management Measures to
ensure the stable operation and continuous
optimization of franchised stores from all
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aspects. For the core management team
of franchisees and store managers, we pay
more attention to the improvement of their
leadership and management expertise. To
this end, we formulate systematic training
programs such as “Guoquan Food Extensive
Training Program for Nation-wide Excellent
“Operational” Store Managers” and “Guoquan
Food Training Program for Full-time Senior
Store Managers” to provide guidance on the
career development of franchisees and store
managers.

We take initiatives to build platforms for
franchisees to learn and grow by providing
diversified and multi-channel training
models to empower franchisees to engage in
lifelong learning. Guoquan Food Enterprise
University has established 15 branches
all over China, providing free training for
partners throughout the year. To help
franchisees develop in an efficient manner,
we actively promote digital training for
franchisees, and develop Guoquan Food
Online College, an online learning platform,
providing partners with various excellent
case courses and guidance on the whole
process of store management. The platform
has attracted over 39,000 users, providing
diversified courses such as onboard training,
store manager advancement and product
knowledge, etc. During the Reporting Period,
Guoqguan Food Online College conducted 350
live-streaming courses, with a cumulative
audience number of 194,000. Moreover,
2,350 online courses were provided to
improve store operation. We also provide
diversified training programs for franchisees,
build a platform for franchisees and store
managers to exchange ideas and learn from
industry elites to broaden their horizons and
enhance their comprehensive management
capabilities.
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5.2

With the aim to improve the expertise and management capability of franchisees, Guoquan Food
has cooperated with Shanghai Jiao tong University and successfully held several chain CEO
workshops since 2022. The workshop covers multiple areas such as business model innovation,
public relations crisis and media response, brand strategy and omni-channel marketing, etc. It also
provides special training sessions on stress and emotion management and management psychology
to improve the comprehensive quality of franchisees.

ARAMBEENZEEZENEEE N AT -_—F  RBERARERLEBREESE KNSR RT
Z HRESHCEORMEIE < IRAINAAE TR ¥R AT - A AR MITREY  RISBM L2 RESHSE
ZIESE  RFESHIREBRNRBEEEULER OBENFIIRE  2EETNBEENGEAERE -

In 2023, Guoquan Food held three training camps with the theme of “My Community, My Store” for
outstanding store managers. The camp provides franchisees with a comprehensive and in-depth
learning experience through a combination of offline courses and study tour and on-site visits.
The course covers practical activities such as product empowerment, sand table simulation and
visits to plants, aiming to improve the management capability and deepen the store managers’
understanding of the brand concept of Guoquan Food.

20234 - RER BN T =HEBELAHNLRENE | HEFERMEE - ZHBLHAE TRIZH);
B2OEESH TR RNEERET2EMAANSEER - REATRETEMERE  DBREH
RIBFRDEERESY  SEEDERMRAKLLERLS WAL RER R M SMNIER

Responsible Procurement

We are well aware that high-quality suppliers are
the cornerstone of steady brand development.
Guoquan Food has established a complete supply
chain management system, aiming to ensure
compliant and efficient cooperation with suppliers,
and to improve the stability of the supply chain
and guarantee product quality and food safety
through refined process management, innovative
procurement strategy and strict supplier evaluation
mechanism.
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5.2.1

Supplier Management

As a food company, we regard the control of
food safety and quality in the supply chain as
our primary responsibility and the foundation
of providing products and services to our
customers. We have formulated and strictly
adhered to the Supplier Management System
and other relevant management systems
internally, and implemented standardized
management of important links such as
supplier access, daily management, and
assessment mechanism. In order to ensure
the response and efficient procurement
activities, we classify suppliers into strategic
suppliers, important suppliers and general
suppliers according to their qualifications,
strength, procurement amount, risk and
credit and other factors, and implement
hierarchical management of all suppliers.

Supplier Access

Guoquan Food pays attention to the
sustainability and compliance of the supply
chain, incorporates food safety and quality-
related indicators into the supplier access
process, and requires suppliers to comply
with applicable laws and regulations, so
as to control supply chain quality risks.
We conduct background investigation at
the supplier access stage, and require
food ingredient producers and non-food-
ingredient producers to provide qualifications
such as HACCP/ISO 22000 and ISO 9000
quality management system certification. We
will not partner with suppliers which have
poor credit, administrative penalties and
management negligence.
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Food ingredient suppliers
R

Business license, production/
industrial production permit (including
details), Halal certification, 3C
certification, etc.

EENR - AE S TEAESIE(EH

)% BHEER - 3CRESE

HACCP/ISO 22000 or
certification with equal
effect

HALCCP/ISO 22000 A& %

e
W%J\nﬂ

Non-food-ingredient
suppliers

FERM A

ISO 9000 or certification
with equal effect

ISO 9000 8 [R5 3 11 78 7%

Review of Access Qualifications of Production Suppliers

S EEHEREANEEER

Supplier Performance Evaluation

In order to ensure high standards and
compliance in the procurement process, we
have developed a comprehensive assessment
mechanism targeting different performance
dimensions of suppliers. The Procurement
Department organizes a supplier assessment
every six months, and conducts regular
evaluation in four key dimensions including
product quality, delivery time, price and
service according to the Supplier Assessment
Form. Based on the assessment results,
we conduct a comprehensive evaluation
of suppliers semi-annually and annually
to classify suppliers into four tiers
including tiers A, B, C, and D, and then take
corresponding management measures.
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Supplier Tier
HEEEER

Management Measures

EEEE

A

The procurement amount can be increased and procurement from such
suppliers can be prioritized. Exemption from inspection can be offered under
special circumstances. Payment of goods is prioritized.

AINAREE - BERE - BRBER TR - BRELXN -

Procurement from such suppliers can be conducted normally. We require
such suppliers to rectify the deficiencies and submit the results in writing.
AIIEREREE - EREE DR A D ETERY B ERASEPEARER -

Procurement from such suppliers will be reduced, and we require such
suppliers to rectify the deficiencies and submit the rectification results in
writing. The Procurement Department will decide whether to continue normal
procurement from such suppliers after verifying their corrective measures
and results.

IREIREE - ERH SN BT RO S B A RAEE AR - SR
HAUERRMERETHRRRTREEFERRE

Procurement from such suppliers will be suspended. The Company will
delete such suppliers from the “list of qualified suppliers”, and terminate the
procurement and supply relationship with them.

TiRE  HIAMHERRE ] RMER - BEL T REHERE -

Supplier Tier Management
HEFmIRER

In daily management, Guoquan Food assigns
dedicated personnel to comprehensively
evaluate the daily performance of suppliers
using tools such as the Supplier Service
Evaluation Form, Supplier Quality Evaluation
Form, Supplier Cost Evaluation Form and
Supplier On-time Delivery Appraisal Form,
and takes the scoring results as an important
basis for supplier assessment. During the
Reporting Period, Guoquan Food conducted
660 comprehensive audits on suppliers to
ensure the quality assurance capabilities
of existing cooperative suppliers. Our audit
score sheet covers nine areas, including food
safety management systems, good practices,
and hygiene practices, to systematically
evaluate the overall strength of suppliers.
In order to continuously optimize our supply
chain management, we plan to launch new
versions of supplier audit form and audit
guide in 2024.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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5.2.2

Supplier Training and Communication

Guoquan Food attaches great importance
to daily communication with suppliers, and
actively takes a variety of measures to fully
empower suppliers. We provide suppliers
with multi-dimensional training courses,
covering risk management and control,
compliant operations, excellent operation
cases and other areas, so as to help suppliers
make progress together with us.

During the Reporting Period, the Group
provided suppliers with 22 online training
sessions covering 20 topics, with a total of 47
training hours and a 100% completion rate
of the training plan. These training sessions
achieved the participation of suppliers of
8,777 person-times.

In order to ensure the continuity of the
supply chain and solve problems in business
cooperation in a timely manner, we actively
communicate with suppliers in various
formal and informal ways. In our daily work,
we actively communicate with our suppliers
about the results of supplier performance
evaluations, provide them with feedback and
discuss improvement measures together
to build stable partnership. In addition, the
Group also successfully held the annual
supplier meeting during the Reporting
Period, which further strengthened the
communication and collaboration with
suppliers.

Sustainable Supply Chain

While ensuring the quality of the supply
chain, we are committed to building a
sustainable and responsible supply chain.
We integrate ESG-related considerations into
supplier management, and strive to improve
the ESG performance of the supply chain to
maintain a good cooperation ecosystem with
suppliers.

5.2.2
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In order to set up a sustainable and
responsible supply chain, Guoquan Food also
incorporates the environmental and social
risks from suppliers into measure criteria
and management measures. We inspect the
environmental and social management of
suppliers, covering from waste management
to employee occupational health and safety.
For the unqualified items identified during
the audit, suppliers are urged to make
rectification in order to effectively control the
environmental and social risks along supply
chain.

The Group upholds a “zero tolerance” policy
towards corruption and bribery of employees
and suppliers. All procurement-related
personnel and suppliers are required to sign
the Anti-bribery Clause and the Letter of
Commitment to Integrity. We have formulated
the Code of Conduct as well as the Rules of
Conduct for Procurement Personnel targeting
procurement personnel and suppliers,
which clearly define the forms of corruption
and stipulate the penalties and handling
procedures for violations to ensure fairness
and impartiality in the procurement process.

The Company has set up a channel for
reporting corruption and bribery to the
Legal Department, and publish the reporting
telephone number and email address within
the Company and on the supplier system.
Employees and suppliers are encouraged
to report potential violations through those
channels, and our headquarters will respond
as soon as possible after receiving the
report. For cases of violation that cannot
be investigated independently, the Legal
Department will set up a special team to
investigate and collect evidence.

5.3  Industry Cooperation

In the rapidly developing food industry, Guoquan
Food has always adhered to the concept of win-
win cooperation to actively carry out in-depth
cooperation with partners.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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5.3.1 Contributing to Industry Development 5.3.1 BINiTHEE
Guoquan Food firmly believes that it is the B R mE{EHEEITE
responsibility of every company to promote MNERETF—KDAE
the development of the industry. Therefore, EWEMF - BMEES
we actively participate in industry activities HITEES - HEAE
to share the experience accumulated by the B EEBRERERD
Group in the process of operation, so as to K5 EHRITREN
promote the common growth and progress of KRR RS -

peer enterprises.

During the Reporting Period, Guoquan WEMA - RBEREE
Food actively carried out exchanges and BB E MRS - 1TEW
cooperation with regulatory agencies, M2 R REFZR
industry associations and academic afE- HZM2ERTZ
communities. We participated in several BRMAFTEMITES
food seminars and industry conferences #FOBRIRRAITER
to improve food safety and quality in the mEZEMEEKF - 8
industry. Through jointly holding seminars BEASGS - EEHEN
with SGS, SEE and other institutions, MERBERATS -
Guoquan Food discussed spot check of food MERmEHfEYANR
safety, nutrition label design, food fraud mEECELARRIR
prevention, clean label, food safety culture mEEHR EBEH
and other topics with suppliers and food- BET - RmEREFER -
related enterprises to boost the development BREE BMEEX
of the industry. As a result, Guoquan Food {bEEE - BT
won many awards in the industry. & WEEITHEANZE
-3

With outstanding performance and high growth in community catering, pre-made dishes and other
fields, Guoquan Food was awarded “2023 Annual Influential Enterprise in the Catering Industry” at
the 20283 China Catering Industry Summit hosted by CNR, canyin88.com, and Liang Zhi Long « China
Food Trade Fair on March 30, 2023.

20233 A30H  BEALEBEER  AGRXSZHENHERANMSKARYE  RERMHKRERN A%
W RrE-PEEMERH NN 2023THEREXES | PR 2023FEEREEXETENDE] -

In 2023, Guogquan Food won the 10th place on the list of “Top 100 Henan Brands in 2023” for making
significant contributions to building a nation of strong brands, promoting rural revitalization,
boosting high-quality development, empowering goods life, etc.

MR MIE2023F BB N mERE - HEBNRE - RESEEHR MAERFEESHEEL TERE
BEL - SREN2023)FmME10058 | E+4 -
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Government-Enterprise Cooperation KibET1E

“Project of 100 Camping Events « Guoquan Campsite Dining Carnival”

[BSEETE REREEFEEY

The launch ceremony of the “Project of 100 Camping Events « Guoquan Campsite Dining Carnival”
sponsored by Voice of the City of Zhejiang Media Group, Self-driving Tour and RV Camping Branch
of Zhejiang Provincial Tourism Association and Pujiang County Culture, Radio, Television, Tourism
and Sports Bureau, and co-sponsored by Hangzhou Guoquan Shihui Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. under the guidance of Zhejiang Media Group and Zhejiang Provincial Tourism Association was
officially kicked off at Zhejiang Media Group on February 24, 2023.

202352 H24 0 > AT EHEGEE N ITRIREHSES T EEEREERMN 22 - INTEIK
BHEEENFERERLNE HIEXMENEEREZREREN  MMNBERERXERGIRA A
XM ASEETE REEERFE ] #hE BN I EEEREFEARS -

Following the trend of the continuous boom of camping economy, this event integrated the
resources of all parties to reach a strategic partnership for empowering the new way of camping
together, allowing consumers to truly feel the brand concept of “Guoquan Shihui’s one-stop solution
for camping dining”.

REBR2QBEREMNENER  NOFHEEETER  EXBMESERHBER  —RBREBEETn
- BHBEYBERE[BELEIZE - HERE WA | mIEIER

6. PEOPLE-ORIENTED 6. LHAABRK

Guoquan Food regards employees as the most valuable MERRREIAREERENNE @ B
asset. We adhere to compliant employment, and are SEHER BOIRNAEIRMER
committed to providing employees with a safe, healthy 2 B FENBSERE - KMA
and comfortable workplace. We provide employees with ETRHEERNFEBLEFARE
competitive compensation and benefits to retain and el AA - REIREZEMEIIE
attract talents, as well as building a comprehensive FEBSBMNEAKE  HEEIK
training system and scientific promotion path for Ko RMBEEE TEFIHE K x
employees to empower their growth. We wish to grow hand IFRA K o

in hand with our employees to achieve a better future.

6.1

Employees’ Rights and Interests 6.1 8

N

Ik

f

IRER
The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and &R B B A% L ST E S M AR A
regulations of the places where it operates, and BER - REKRBRFARBEE
carries out recruitment activities in accordance B REEIHREBERETY
with laws and regulations to ensure that the rights =0 o AT ETE(LEBIE
and interests of employees and the Group are not FZRE - BEZWMAA - BB
infringed. We also keep optimizing our remuneration ETITRREZERE -

and benefits structure to attract a wide range of
talents and motivate them to achieve long-term
development.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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6.1.17 Employment

The Group strictly abides by the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Women’s Rights
and Interests, the Regulations on Prohibiting
Employment of Child Labor and other laws
and regulations to formulate policies such
as the Employee Handbook as a basis for its
human resources compliance management.
The Group also continuously improves the
recruitment review system and process to
ensure that the recruitment process is legal
and compliant.

As a responsible enterprise, Guoquan Food
opposes and resists any discrimination
and unequal treatment based on gender,
age, race, ethnicity, and religious beliefs.
We actively promote policies formulation
and practices for equal opportunities, and
promote an inclusive and diverse corporate
culture. In the process of operation, we
strictly prohibit any form of forced labor
and child labor employment. Meanwhile, we
advocate a reasonable working hour system,
care for the physical and mental health of
employees, and promote a balance between
life and work. During the reporting period, the
Group did not violate any incidents related
to the employment of child labor and forced
labor laws and regulations.

6.1.1

ETER
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As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Group had a total of 2,045 employees. The
details of staff employment in 2023 are set
out in the following table:

HERSHR  ~EEH
#52,04501EE T
xHNE2023FE LR
EHAER

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
BURBSHNETRERER (XN) ERARESNETREMEER (XN)

819
B Senior management
1,226 BREEE
" V\éaée:(émployees Intermediate management
= = =3
Female employees m@%&E@@
ZET 1,937 Ordinary employees
EBET
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY REGION
RERESNEIEERR (A) RBEINETEERR (A)
20 3
1 |
701
m Below 30yearsold
R3O = Mainland China
31-50years old B A
31-50%% ?o_ng Kongd, (r\jﬂacau,
1,324 Above 50 years old | a:wan ap verseas
HBiIB50R BIRE Kgs

2,042

Guoquan Food adheres to the development
strategy of employee diversification,
establishing multiple channels to attract
talents. We uphold the talent concept
of “youthfulness, specialization and
digitization” to actively bring in professionals
with strong innovation abilities. We publicize
and improve the Company’s image through
previews, live broadcasts, employer brand
projects and other channels, so as to
continuously expand the Company’s talent
pool. We mainly recruit talents through
campus recruitment and social recruitment
to continuously inject vitality for the
development of the Group.
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wWERm (L&) ROBRATA

MERMEBEFHATZT
e BERBRE - BES
REBHAT - HFIR
FIFELE - ZX(E -
BFCIOATED
RSl ERIMAE DB
MEEAT  BEEHE
€ HE EEXmEE
BERBERARSA
AR - THEALE
ATE - BAE2BEBE
RERE Eit 2 RIEHA
MAT - REBEZERT
BEAIETT ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREBRE

6.2

Joined Hands with Universities to Carry Out University-enterprise Cooperation
BFSREARRLE

Guoquan Food and China Agricultural University jointly established the Guoquan Rural
Revitalization Research Institute, which became the entrepreneurship internship base of the
College of Economics and Management of China Agricultural University, and united the upstream
and downstream enterprises of the supply chain to jointly build a talent cooperation platform.
Guoquan Food cooperated with the team led by Professor Zhang Zhenghe from China Agricultural
University to launch the Guoquan Rural Revitalization Empowerment Research Project, which, as a
key internship project for doctoral students of China Agricultural University, establishes templates
and cases of senior talent cultivation in the field of rural revitalization in the future.

51 Bl R o B PP B R 3R OX SR S PS5 B A R B S - EMEA R Bl R R R B EE R SR AT E
it BEEEE F TR ERRAERASHET S - hEARERBEERBRETHREKAE -
EFMEANIREIEEEAFMIER  (ERTRRFAZFLASHEETER  ARRENREENNS
BMAT BB HHRRFED -

During the Reporting Period, Guoquan Food WEA - BER M
was commended and certified in the fields EXrmEaRsEas
such as employer brand building, and won BEERERE KRB
the “2023 Responsibility Case” award. [2023FEHAERN
HEIE o
6.1.2 Remuneration and Benefits 6.1.2 FHwEF
We are committed to providing employees A R E AN AY=T= 3
with competitive remuneration and benefits EAGFONEBE
to enhance their happiness. The Group F - BB T FERRK ©
strictly abides by the Social Insurance Law of REBEREBT(RE
the People’s Republic of China and other laws ARZAMBETERE
and regulations, as well as the requirements EYERBEBRRE
of local government departments, and W AT RRFIZ K - fOX
provides employees with statutory benefits REITRET2RE
such as social insurance, housing provident FTEAER  TFHFR
fund, paid leave, and labor protection in - BEREFETER
accordance with the law. Meanwhile, we Ao AR ZMREL
provide our employees with holiday gifts RHAFAMER - &
during festivals, condolences money, trade Be - IR 8
union benefits, transportation allowances, AL INRAEEE S - RE
expatriate subsidies, etc., so that employees BETHE-—FEXEEMN
can further enjoy the Group’s care and E - IERE THEBR -
enhance their sense of belonging.
Training and Development 6.2 IEIIEERE

The Group attaches great importance to the
development of employees and empowers them to
grow in an all-round way. We have built a complete
training system to help employees improve their
comprehensive abilities through diversified courses.

AEBERIETHE  MEE
TEHURE - BHAEEES
EMEYIER  RBRBRTR
HEERIE  WHEILHEERE

HERT o BB R & E

We will continue to cultivate high-level talents with BEESIHW ZKEAS o
outstanding performance for the society.
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6.2.1

Talent Cultivation

We always believe that talents are the
foundation of enterprise development.
The Group has internally improved policies
and systems such as the Mentor System
Management Measures and the Guidelines
for Unified Key Topic Training in All
Provinces and Regions across the Country
to standardize training behavior. We have
formulated a three-tier talent training plan
of “sea-based, road-based, and sky-based”,
an elite team system for cultivating excellent
store operation talents, and a general system
for cultivating reserve management talents,
so as to continuously provide scientific
and well-rounded training for employees,
continuously improve employees’ vocational
skills and professionalism, and help them
realize their career dreams.

We have built a Guoquan online learning
platform to ensure that our employees can
access the courses they need at any time.
The Group has also established a training
assessment mechanism to check the training
results. New employees are required to
pass offline theoretical training, practical
operation at stores, and online and offline
assessment before they can take up their
posts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group
promoted the implementation of multiple
talent training projects. Guoquan’s
special model research and study camp
was successfully carried out in many
provinces and cities to fully ensure the skill
improvement of employees and achieve
sustainable development of talents.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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In November 2023, the Company was recognized as an institution for issuing the Chain Operation
Manager certificate in Shanghai. The first batch of recognized jobs include Supply Chain Manager
(levels 1, 2 and 3) and Chain Operation Manager (levels 1, 2, 3 and 4).

2023411 8 - AARIEES EEH CEYEEE B HBRT Ettwmlﬁ DBl R e S TR B
(—ZZR))MCEHKLERBM (——=0mR)) -

Guoquan Food took the lead in organizing all employees to study and take the tests of the courses
including Improvement of Comprehensive Skills of Operating Chain Stores and Supply Chain
Management. All employees passed the tests of both courses.

SR mERAM T CEHEPIEERRARNE) (HEREE)RIENEE2BAR - MERES
SRBEE AR -

We have declared and filed the training implementation plans for three courses including Logistics

Distributors, Sales on the Internet and Food Safety Administrators, and offered training through a

total of 6 offline implementation courses.

?ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%? IREEB)(EMAREV(RRRT2EEE)IEREEINERA R - HeTH65E
NEHEARIE ©

The vocational skill certificates obtained by the Company’s employees through training will be used
as an important evaluation factor in the career development of employees and as an evaluation
condition for the promot|on of employees.

;il BREIECSOBEREEEREREIRERRTNEEZETER EREIEAEZTNZ

Through offline classes and study tours at stores, the Group provides employees with six training
sessions on each of data analysis, competitions, and franchisee relationship maintenance, as well
as visits to excellent stores. During the Reporting Period, we carried out talent model research and
study camps in many provinces and cities to improve talents’ skills.
SEBBRETRAPIEESNFR - RETRHEBNBESNHA S  JIBKER S - MBEHHESE
EHNE  BAEPIE2HSATHIEN - MEMA - RMESETHEREMESL - REATKRIERTT -
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6.2.2 Employee Promotion and Performance

Management

The Group has formulated the Employee
Handbook as the basis for employee
promotion management, and also developed
the “Elite Team Program” to ensure the
scientific development of operational
talents. Guoquan’s elite team refers to the
elite franchisee team that can implement
the Company’s strategy, complete the
sales and market development goals of the
districts where they operate, and accurately
convey the corporate visions, missions and
values of Guoquan. We have also set up a
talent training and promotion channel of
“individuals-elite team-reserve cadres-group
executives” for the whole career cycle, which
is combined with the Group’s talent training
system to promote employees once every six
months, so that the elites can have their own
Guoqguan dreams.

Provincial
deputy general

managers

L

Provincial
general

managers
AR

6.2.2 BTEFHENEE
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6.3

Occupational Health and Safety

It is the duty-bound responsibility of Guoquan
to protect the occupational health and safety of
employees. We strictly abide by the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases and
other laws and regulations, and have established
an efficient and well-round safety management
framework. We require employees to sign the Letter
of Safe Production Commitment of the Production
Department, and regularly conduct self-inspections
on potential safety hazards that may exist in the
production process. We actively take measures to
prevent dangers, and make every effort to protect
the safety of employees.

Guoquan Food has formulated the Safe Production
Management System as the basis for internal
safe production management, and carried out
safety education and training for employees on
the comprehensive management principle of
“safety first, prevention-centric”. The Group’s
plants in many cities have carried out a number of
training courses on fire safety, machinery safety,
transportation safety, practical operation of fire
protection facilities, and fire and traffic safety
warning education. During the Reporting Period, the
Group had no work-related fatalities and had 72
working days lost due to work-related injuries.

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Treatment
of Occupational Diseases and the relevant
requirements of government departments to provide
occupational disease examinations for relevant
employees. We provide employees with protective
equipment for safety production and continue to
protect their occupational health.

6.3

BERREZE

TEETHREEFEREE DL
2RBBEETABRNAML - R
PIBR IR BT (R EARKME
REEER) (PEARKNE
BEmBAE) FRRER
VETESHEENLEER
2 - BPIERKBETIHREBC(LE
ERNREEEAFHEE) I TEH
BEEBIETAEFENLZS
REETEL  BERIUEE
@eehELt =2HTEET

-
ZE e

RERREHE(RE2EEE
BHEMERANRNLLRAEESE
BRE - BRIL2E— 1
AT GEREFHMAREES
ITZ2HEHFNNIE - A5EH
ZHWIRCHRBEEED L
2 BRLE  RALTEH
P ER - B RBLEE
THBEEANNZIEEN - |
AN AEBRBERTIRT
= ARBARTIERZRAT2
%o

AEEBERET(PEARHR
MEBERBEE)  ARER
FFERFIRIFERA RSk - R B
TREBERERR - BHMSE
THRHZZEEHERM - I
FERB TR ERERMR

B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Bo=EER

155



156

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREBRE

6.4

Employee Care

Guoquan Food is committed to creating a healthy

and positive workplace atmosphere for employees,

and pays attention to the physical and mental

health of employees to enhance their satisfaction

and happiness. We listen carefully to the voices of

employees, and carry out a variety of cultural and

sports activities to help employees relieve work

pressure and enrich their spare-time life.

6.4.1

Employee Communication

The Group has established an all-round
employee communication channel to
actively listen to their viewpoints and
understand their demands. We encourage
employees to file complaints about
possible discrimination, harassment and
unfair treatment in the workplace through
multiple channels such as face-to-face
interviews with leaders, emails, and WeCom,
and employees can also communicate
and report through signed suggestions
or anonymous complaints. The Group will
reward employees for reasonable reporting
and suggestions once they are adopted. We
also publicize the reporting channels through
internal announcements, news centers
and other channels to ensure the efficient
communication of employees’ demands.

The Group has carried out employee
engagement/satisfaction surveys, and
carried out investigations on corporate
operation and management, working
environment, benefits, career development
and internal communication through
anonymous questionnaires, group interviews
and in-depth interviews, so as to ensure
the authenticity and objectivity of the
investigation results. The Group attaches
importance to the results of the surveys and
responds to them proactively.
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HARMONIOUS ECOLOGY

Guoquan Food deeply understands and actively responds
to the importance of environmental protection, and
adheres to the concept of “green development and
harmonious coexistence” to achieve the goal of sustainable
development. By developing and implementing a series of
environmentally friendly policies and measures, we aim
to minimize the environmental impact of our business
activities and promote the efficient use and recycling of
resources in key areas such as three wastes treatment,
energy management, water resource management,
and the use of packaging materials. We strive to
achieve a harmonious coexistence with the surrounding
environment, and work together with customers,
employees and society towards a greener and more
sustainable future.

7.1 Environmental Management

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
related to environmental protection in each place
of operation, and have formulated sound internal
management systems to guide and urge all member
companies and plants to operate in compliance
with regulations and implement the concept
of environmental protection and harmonious
coexistence. At the same time, we regularly carry
out internal environmental protection training and
publicity in accordance with the systems to improve
the environmental protection awareness of all
employees.
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7.1.1

Environmental Management System

We strictly abide by the relevant laws and
regulations of the places where we operate,
such as the Environmental Protection
Law, the Cleaner Production Promotion
Law, and the Law on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution,
and constantly improve our internal
environmental management systems and
management structure. At the same time,
we urge all member companies to formulate
internal systems related to environmental
management, such as the Environmental
Protection Management System, to
standardize the environmental management
system and processes.

Guoquan Food has set five environmental
targets based on its specific conditions.
During the Reporting Period, we regularly
monitored the achievement of the targets,
and implemented a number of measures
such as energy saving, emission reduction,
and resource utilization to promote the
achievement of environmental targets and
practice green development. The Group is
committed to strictly complying with laws
and regulations related to environmental
protection in the places where it operates,
ensuring that environmental impact
assessments and completion inspections
are carried out as required, and effectively
treating the pollutants (exhaust gas,
wastewater and waste) emitted by the Group.
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7.2

Energy-saving target
ke B IF

5% energy consumption intensity reduction by 2032 compared to
the 2022 baseline.
2022F 22032 F A L IRBREZ E R 5% -

Greenhouse gas emission
reduction target

5% greenhouse gas emission intensity reduction by 2032
compared to the 2022 baseline.

BERBRIEER 2022F 22032 F MM R ER B IR E R 5% °
Water use target 5% water consumption intensity reduction by 2032 compared to
KERERBE the 2022 baseline.

2022F 2 2032 F HAR I FE K B E PR IK5% »

Waste emission target

BEEMPM BT

5% waste emission intensity reduction by 2032 compared to the
2022 baseline.
LA2022F B - 2032 F RER M EFEIE5% ©

Packaging material use target

B ERBRER

5% non-recyclable materials consumption intensity reduction by
2032 compared to the 2022 baseline.
1E20225F 5 20325 HAFE 15 S 1] [ Ub 4 B9 b FR 3 PR 5% -

Chengming Plant offers training on occupational health and safety and environmental protection
awareness to all employees every day, and organizes collective training every month to continuously
deepen employees’ understanding and application of environmental protection knowledge such
as energy saving, three wastes management and water conservation, so as to ensure that every
employee can contribute to the green production of the plant.

BRIRGIEMEERRBEARELZSMRAREZMEFI - FHAESERFI - TERMCE T
REA) » ZREERARBHRAKERRABAERNER  BREBUEIHELIBRNZCEERR N

=
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Emissions Management

In terms of emissions management, we have always
adhered to the concept of green development and
environmental protection, and are committed to
reducing emissions in the process of production
and operation through scientific and technological
innovation and strict management measures,
thereby taking practical actions to protect clear
water and blue sky.
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7.2.1

7.2.2

Waste Management

The Group classifies production wastes
into solid wastes and hazardous wastes.
In order to strengthen the standardization
and normalization of daily waste treatment,
and in accordance with national laws such
as the Law on the Prevention and Control
of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid
Wastes, the Control Standards for Pollution
Caused by Hazardous Waste Storage, and the
Measures for the Management of Hazardous
Waste Transfer Bills, we have formulated
the Measures for the Management of
Solid Wastes and the Measures for the
Management of Hazardous Wastes to set
out clear work processes for the collection,
storage, transfer and treatment of wastes,
with the purpose of reducing the risk of
harming the environment.

Wastewater Management

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the places where the Company operates
and industry standards and regulations
such as the Comprehensive Wastewater
Discharge Standard (DB31/199-2018),
and resolutely implement the national
environmental protection standards. With
the Comprehensive Wastewater Discharge
Standard, Henan Provincial Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Regulations, and
Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law as the action guides, the Company
ensures the legality and standardization
of wastewater treatment activities. At the
same time, we have established sound
internal wastewater management systems,
such as the Production and Domestic
Wastewater Treatment Management System
and the Wastewater Treatment Station
System Management Regulations. Through
efficient and standardized management, we
ensure that wastewater treatment meets
the discharge standards, contributing to
the protection of water resources and the
promotion of green development.
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During the Reporting Period, Heyi Plant designed an innovative wastewater collection system, which

collects and filters wastewater in a centralized manner for recycling for plant greening and road
cleaning. The system is expected to save up to 6,000 cubic meters of tap water per year.

WEMA - M—THAIF R T —ERKRERS
SREER - TRFH S F R EI 402 126,00032 77 KA B 20K ©

FEEKER W EBBREBERER - ARBRA(CH

7.2.3 Exhaust Gas Management

Guoquan Food is well aware of the important
impact of exhaust emissions on the
environment and public health, and therefore
resolutely abides by the relevant laws and
regulations of the places of operation such
as the Environmental Protection Law and
the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, and refers to the
strict requirements of the Ambient Air Quality
Standard and the Comprehensive Emission
Standard for Air Pollutants to formulate the
Exhaust Gas Management System of the
Company. The system aims to fully control
all kinds of exhaust gases generated in the
Company to ensure resource utilization and
harmless treatment, so that the exhaust
gas emission is always strictly controlled
within the scope permitted by national laws
and regulations, and does not pollute the
surrounding atmospheric environment. At the
same time, the system also standardizes the
requirements for the operators to operate
the workshop exhaust gas treatment system,
ensuring that the exhaust gas treatment
system can operate in a sustained, stable
and proper manner to avoid air pollution.
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Heyi Plant has installed exhaust gas collection devices in key emission areas within the plant to
ensure that the exhaust gas is effectively treated. At present, the waste water treatment station
has been equipped with exhaust gas treatment devices, and oil fume purifiers have been installed
in the canteen to reduce the pollution of oil fumes to the atmosphere.
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7.3

Resource Management

We continue to improve the resource management

system, raise the efficiency of comprehensive

use of resources, and integrate the concept of

refined management of water resources, energy

and packaging materials into our daily operations.

We effectively reduce the load on the natural

environment on the principles of reduction, reuse

and recycling.

7.3.1

Energy Management

Guoquan Food carries out a series of energy
saving and emission reduction activities
in strict compliance with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Saving Energy
and other laws and regulations of the places
where it operates. The normalized and
standardized energy management system
and daily monitoring of energy use can
improve energy efficiency.

The Group mainly uses electricity, natural gas
and motor vehicle fuel. In order to promote
energy saving and emission reduction
and reduce the carbon footprint of the
Company, we are committed to continuously
improving energy efficiency and reducing
energy consumption through reasonable and
feasible facility renovation and production
process optimization in all aspects of R&D,
production and operation.
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7.3.2

Through refined management and technological innovation, the Wanlai Wanqu Plant has
successfully shortened the daily operation time of the boiler and double helix at the workshop by 1.5
hours, thereby greatly reducing energy consumption. In addition, the plant adopted a new design to
curb the efflux of oil and water from the oil spill port, saving production water consumption by 50
tons per day.

ﬁ%%flﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬂtﬁ’]Mi@?’rﬂ}imﬁﬂ%ﬁ ﬁXﬂJ%ﬂTiFﬂiﬁbﬁ&ﬁﬂ;’iﬁ’étm S/ R ETTRSRE 1
MAIEERE T AEROBFE - UbI - THUESRA T HHRATE - BRUSHI T im0 adKINBERR - &

SEEMEERKENESESOM -

Heyi Plant has completely updated its loT electric meters across the plant. Staff can view the
daily electricity consumption in real time on the computer, easily monitor the dynamics of energy
consumption in each time period, quickly respond to abnormal power consumption, and manage
the factory’s electricity consumption in a refined manner.

M—TIHEIHmBENCEE SN TYMEER - TIFASESEK FHEEREEERTRNABERER
HREZESERREROEFEEDE  SFHEEREHRAREMBEY FZEMI:AIEIJF%}%*'*/R o

In order to further improve energy efficiency, Heyi Plant has actively introduced advanced
automated assembly line technology. Through the rolling and kneading assembly line, the
automated packaging and palletizing equipment and automated packaging line at the workshop,
the plant has realized automated and intelligent production process, which not only greatly
improves the production efficiency, but also effectively reduces energy consumption and injects
new impetus into the green development of the plant.
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Water Resource Management

The Group strictly implements the Water
Law of the People’s Republic of China and A
other laws and regulations of the places
where the Group operates, and formulates

relevant management policies based on the
Company’s own operations to improve the
level of water resource management. We
take measures such as process optimization
and introduction of new equipment in the
production process to reduce the use of
water resources. Meanwhile, during daily
office work, we encourage employees to turn
off the faucet promptly after washing hands,
eliminate the phenomenon of “water leaking
and dripping”, and encourage employees to
recycle water resources and reduce waste.
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Water Meter loT
&L

In order to strengthen water resource management, Heyi Plant has replaced loT water meters
for the entire plant. Electronic flowmeters have been installed at each production workshop to
accurately measure daily consumption of tap water, high-pressure water and pure water, and
to upload data in real time through the centralized reading system, making it convenient for
management personnel to supervise water consumption and monitor energy abnormality in a timely
manner, so as to effectively save water resources and promote the sustainable development of the
plant.

FM—IRANEKERER  ABEIRER T MEAKRE - SEEERNEHOK - SEK - fKE M
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7.3.3 Packaging Material Management 7.3.3 BRUMHEE

We strictly abide by the relevant laws and K PBRRETTATEY
regulations of the places where the Company WA A AR - R
operates, and constantly optimize the BRI EBEIE - A
material management system. In order to TN s AR SR
strengthen the management of packaging TE|FEEIERE - B
materials, control and reduce losses, and 1R RTINS IEF
promote reasonable use of packaging B RBAFETCEE
materials, we have formulated the Packaging BT Bl et
Management Regulations to control the FEMER o | -
use of packaging materials. During the RAFES TR AR
Reporting Period, we newly established BEREEIEEE)ME
the Procurement Application Management MEUIZE Y St e
System of the Company and the Acceptance PIIR MRS | AR
Standards for Packaging Materials, which YIEER % @ T2IR T &
put forward strict requirements for the BB BRE SR
distribution process of case and bag = 6 3 HRHR FESNER Y
materials provided by suppliers. We make BHEZE RO BN
sure that films and other packaging materials BEEE o

are used to guarantee external hygiene and
safety, and to reduce the waste of packaging
materials.
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7.4

Packaging materials are important resources
in the production of Guoquan Food as a food
company. In order to implement the concept
of harmonious coexistence between Guoquan
Food and ecology, we have taken a number
of measures to reduce the environmental
impact of the use of packaging materials. We
reuse packaging materials under the premise
of ensuring food safety, and apply renewable
plastics (PP5) and promote paperless
packaging material labels to reduce
the environmental impact of packaging
materials.

Address Climate Change

Facing the major challenge of global climate
change, the international community has reached a
consensus and taken active actions. In the context
of the whole world addressing climate change, we
actively respond to the call of the state to take the
initiative to identify and respond to the risks brought
by climate change and take a series of energy-
saving and emission reduction measures such
as optimizing the energy structure and improving
the efficiency of equipment. We contribute to the
mitigation of climate change with practical actions.

7.4.1 Climate Change Governance

In order to manage issues related to climate
change more effectively, we have established
a three-tier management structure for
climate change governance with clear
responsibilities and composition of each tier.
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The Board is comprehensively responsible for supervising the implementation of strategies
in response to climate change and targets related to climate change, as well as supervising
and approving the Company’s climate change risks and opportunities.
%?%@gﬁE%E"ﬁﬂiﬁ{mﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁ&ﬁﬂiﬁ{tmEﬁE*%‘eﬂ’ﬂ%fj’@'l%% C WERM AR RIEEE
B °

Identify and assess climate change risks and opportunities related to our business;

Set the targets and guidelines for addressing climate change, and formulate strategic plans
and mitigation measures for addressing climate change;

REEHRIRECBERITEH - BIE L RIREC RIS S 8 RARMF 1A -

Supervise and manage issues related to climate change.

The ESG Working Group is responsible for implementing the strategy for addressing climate
change. It regularly holds meetings to report the implementation progress and major
achievements in a timely manner;

RIR e RERTIEMABNNERERE RIRELER - 535 - t @ RERTENMETEHA
eIl ET RN AR REEREE N EERR

It coordinates the work of various departments (including our Production Department
and Procurement Department), and reports issues related to climate change to our
management.

7.4.2 Assessment of Climate Change Risks

During the Reporting Period, we identified
the potential risks brought by climate change

7.4.2 FAREMERE R G

w®EBHRK - EM
IHETCFD (Task

to the Group and formulated corresponding
risk prevention and control measures in
accordance with the classification of climate
change risks in the TCFD (Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures)
guidelines and the Group’s own current
situation, so as to enhance our agility in
responding to relevant risks and help the
Group further shape a more sustainable
future.
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Risk Category
kel

Transition risks

grER

Item
EHE

Policy and
legal risks

BRE AR

Technology
risks

R

Market risks

R

Reputational
risks

Risk Description

mR R

Laws, regulations and policies related
to carbon emissions are becoming
increasingly more stringent, putting
forward higher requirements for
companies’ carbon emissions and
data accuracy

IREERBDE AR R B2 9 8
1 GEXRINERBBERL R

BREX

Under the background that China
is committed to achieving the
goals of carbon peak and carbon
neutrality, we may incur additional
costs in purchasing new energy,
replacing non-degradable packaging,
transforming recycling technology,
and engaging in low-carbon product
development, as well as face the risks
of technological transformation
EREBNRERRES  REAEE
MERT  BMAEEREMLR &
WANREEE  BREMZUEL R
SERERFESHTREEEMA -
WA RIMTEL R

Consumers prefer green and low-
emission products while paying
attention to the quality of products
and services. The procurement of
green raw materials leads to an
increase in the cost of raw materials
HEEEWIERERKEENRE
RiFize B RHNER - REGERM
RECE G i

Stakeholders are increasingly
concerned about corporate
responsibility and negative feedback
on sustainable development actions

MeERBPHCEAENARER - 4
URERRITHHARREARGEL

Coping Measures

EHERE

The Group continues to closely monitor
new laws, regulations and policies to
keep abreast of and comply with them.
It improves the energy management
system and strictly follows the
guidelines of regulatory agencies for
data reporting and disclosure
SETNEAMERERNPESE -
RETHIET TERREERE
iﬁﬁ%%%%%%aﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
24

The Group conducts a comprehensive
and in-depth assessment of project
risks before carrying out low-carbon
technology transformation to reduce
the risk of investment failure. It
establishes stable cooperation with
green technology suppliers to reduce
investment costs

ERTERRMBCEN LA R BRET
RERANE - BERERHER -
BeeRiErEEERREAE R
[ERERA

The Group publicly discloses the green
and low-carbon attributes of products
to leave a good market impression.
It communicates with suppliers and
integrates resources to gradually
transform to green procurement
LARBEMNGERERENL - UK
RFHTHNE - BEEFITRER
BS BHMGEREER

The Group continues to improve
disclosure on sustainable development
and climate change, and ensures that
compliance requirements are met. The
Group also formulates measures to
address climate change and continues
to monitor the results of emission
reduction.
FETERERRRABRECEER
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Risk Category Item Risk Description

BRER HH B R

Physical risks Acute risks Extreme weathers such as hurricanes,
floods, extreme heat, extreme cold,
and droughts have an impact on raw
material prices and may also cause
physical damage to our stores, plants,
and offices and threaten employee
safety, and even delay food delivery
services

BiERn =HER BRE K BB L RRERR

Chronic risks

R

8. GIVING BACKTO SOCIETY

RRYEMHER  GRBELERE
BB B M0  THRAHRA
ZERERRE BBEIRE EE

BN ERGITE

Rainfall changes, extreme weather
fluctuations, rising average
temperatures, rising sea levels and
other factors affect the location and
costs of operations

BREZ  RE@nKY  FHRR
A COBTE EASHESMREEN
N:lZ

Coping Measures

EHEE

The Group develops emergency plans
for extreme weathers to improve the
abilities in pre-event prevention,
response during the event and
improvement after the event, so as to
ensure the health and property safety of
employees and customers

HEERARESRER  RAEENR
By ShEEMERNET AN
BREIAZPHOREAMELRS

The Group carries out prospective risk
identification and assessment of chronic
climate risks

g&’\\Eﬁﬂ%ﬁtﬁﬁ?ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬂ%'\ﬁﬁtl@?ﬁ%%‘J%D

8. [EfEdE

As a responsible enterprise, Guoquan Food has always

actively undertaken social responsibilities, attached

importance to and supported social welfare undertakings,

vigorously supported community development, and

continued to care and give back to the society.

8.1

Rural Revitalization

In response to the call of the state, Guoquan Food
contributes to rural revitalization. The Group has
established the Guoquan Rural Revitalization
Research Institute to actively explore new ways to
help farmers and rejuvenate villages, and provide
samples and paths for the full implementation
of the rural revitalization strategy. The Group
has released the “Guoquan Rural Revitalization
Empowerment — Golden Wheat Field Plan”, which
focuses on the implementation in four aspects:
talent training, culture and tourism promotion,
industrial promotion and employment promotion
through the new economy.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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8.2

HERERRE

Through the integration of production, supply and
marketing, and the full-link and digital supply
chain system, Guoquan Food empowers the
economic development of many food ingredients
origins nationwide, which effectively promotes
the revitalization of related rural industries,
increases farmers’ income and actively promotes
local employment. In addition, we make every use
of our own resources to promote the upgrading
of traditional industrial factories, enhance the
commercial efficiency of the whole industry,
promote the evolution of rural agriculture to rural
manufacturing, and ultimately and comprehensively
motivating the promotion of rural economy.

Our franchised stores are located in various regions
in China. While we continue to expand to new first-
tier cities, we pay attention to the needs of the
township population and cover the vast number
of township population. While paying attention to
our own high-quality development, we keep it in
our mind to improve the well-being of the people,
promote the employment of township population,
and bring high-quality and inexpensive food
ingredients to the local people to enrich dishes for
the people.

Social Welfare

We hope that we can not only bring consumers
real benefits, but also build a warmer emotional
connection with the neighborhood in the
“neighborhood culture”. Guoquan Food integrates
the concept of good life into community building,
and encourages the Group’s employees,
stakeholders and the public to join hands with us to
build better communities.
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We attach great importance to assisting
disadvantaged groups, passing on the warmth of
public welfare in the communities, and providing
them with Guoquan assistance. We affectionately
call those of us at Guoquan as stars planter. When
the typhoon occurred, Guoquan Food bravely
assumed the social responsibility and donated
food products to the disaster-stricken areas in

BMERBBEHEOER - &£
HEHEARRRE - ROFIR
HIREE B - IR BT
BEHRENRBEARBEENA -
EREIKE - MERMBEL
SR MRAREXIEIF
BERM  EFURKKTIE -
EHRELAWE  BHARXKE

Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei to support flood relief BIgRE AW - INAREEY

work. When the earthquake occurred in Gansu, we & AKERHBBERM NN
donated instant hot pots, heating pot sets and other e RAEE) -

materials to the disaster area, and provided the
disaster area with the help within our capabilities.

We hope that Guoquan stores can help build a bridge for neighborhood communication, guard the warmth
with a warm heart, and become a part of consumers’ great life. At a small Guoquan store in Zhengzhou,
Henan Province, the owner helps the neighbor couple who are riders to take care of their child. With
the child as a bridge, this Guoquan store has gradually become an emotional intersection in the huge
community, and a mutual trust has been established from the perspective of the child. The Guoquan store
has planted the starlight of companionship through such simple trust. By accompanying children and the
whole community, the Guoquan store has become an important part of neighborhood relations.
BMELREPIEEE HEEZBEBRNBR - AROTERR  KNAEBEXZHEETHN—R - W m BN
—FMENE - EXECHMERFTFRERERT - U TFRHR - HEFIEEHKASEA L REN BRI ES -
REZFORALE  BYRTHEEZHENEE - BB/ NEEEEEENGEES BT TRANE)X  BHET
FEHEETR  KAMBEENEERNS

Due to the impact of “Doksuri”, North China suffered extremely heavy rainfall in 2023. The Group
immediately investigated the situation of stores in the disaster-stricken areas. On the basis of ensuring
community supply, Guoquan Food and Guoquan Rural Revitalization Research Institute joined hands with
the All-China Women’s Federation and the China Women’s Development Foundation to donate more than
10,000 portions of food products to the severely affected areas in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei to support local
flood relief.

20234 - SZRGE [N FE  BEELEEBREEERRR - NEBEE —RREBEHEZSSEPMEBR -
WHEMFEBRETENEE - BB M  BESNIREARRES 2ERHTBERELERESS  MEE
THEBEDRBESHHEM - BB HHURKL -

Affected by the heavy rainfall, takeaway platforms received explosive orders. In order to guarantee the
supply of scarce food products in the absence of riders to deliver goods, the local Guoquan stores remained
open, and many store owners braved the rain to deliver goods like delivery riders.

XN E  INETAHERE ERERFRENBRAT AREZHREMOMUE - SHRERRMIERE
B HEEXCHIINENT] BREE -

On December 18, 2023, a 6.2-magnitude earthquake occurred in Jishishan County, Linxia Prefecture, Gansu
Province. Guoquan Food launched a disaster relief response as soon as possible, and worked together
with public welfare organizations to donate relief materials worth RMB530,000 to the disaster-struck
area. In view of the cold weather in the disaster-struck area and the damage to water, electricity and other
infrastructures, the donated materials were mainly portable hot pots, instant food and heating pot sets
that were convenient for processing and use.

2023512180 - HRRREMNEAILGRE6. 20 E < B R BE —RERERCLCERE - o AmlEn La
BREEBARKSSEITHIYE - ERIXERAELR K EEEMBHETIE - BEAOMEUERINIER
WEEAR - RREM - MAMAZRE -
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During the Reporting Period, Guoquan Food was WEA - MERGHARME
recognized by the communities and won awards and NHBHERRA - BETHR
honors for the social welfare activities. THERE -

. At the 2nd “ESG Development Forum” and the 15th “China Corporate Social Responsibility Annual

Conference” hosted by Southern Weekly on July 27 and 28, 2023, Guoquan Food won the “2023
Responsibility Case” award for the “Talent Development Project”, becoming the only brand selected
in the retail industry.

20237 H27%28H - AEA A BAREMAOE _EESCHREREI RETHE iEFIm%?i 5EFE]
WERMBHEI AT ERIER |FE2023FFEERN ] EJZE BITERE—AER

. On the evening of August 20, 2023, Guoquan Food participated in the honor ceremony of the 2nd
Rural Revitalization Brand Festival co-sponsored by the China Agricultural Film and Television
Center and relevant associations and media, and won the honor of “Typical Case of Supply Chain
Strengthening Agriculture under the Rural Revitalization Empowerment Plan”.

202358 420 AL L - SAER M2 MATHEBREXBYER T OBAEMIHSMEREE ENNE B4
i B i 4P T S B SR Z%i?ﬁiiﬁih‘zﬂﬂiiﬁ BeEt Bt pEos R IR ZR ) | DRER -

. At the themed seminar of “ESG Practice in China” co-hosted by Xinhuanet and China ESG Research
Institute of Capital University of Economics and Business held on December 3, 2023, Guoquan
Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. was selected as the “2023 Annual Special Case of Corporate ESG” for its
outstanding performance in the field of ESG.
2023512 A3 - M EMEES BHMEBEE S ANBPRESCH R AN [ESCERAT R | T Bfae
£ REAR (L8 BHARARBHEEESGESMLERE - B[ 20230 EESGHERRIRA ] -

. Guoquan Food was shortlisted for the “2023 National Excellent Case of Rural Revitalization” in the
“Collection of 2023 National Excellent Cases of Rural Revitalization” jointly sponsored by Xinhuanet
and the National Poverty Alleviation Publicity and Education Center and co-organized by China
Business Executives Academy, Dalian.

HIERESERKESEHE P OB T - AEAESREESMR BN [2023 2 B BN IREEFSE
PlEE ] - RER M ARE 2023 2 BB HIREEFEN] -
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fifsx— BAEANME

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE TABLE!' RIBENR

Greenhouse Gases Emissions?

BEREHENR?

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) tCO,e 9,761.82

REREHNES (BE1EHE2) —SEfbiEE — W

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 2,321.73

HEAERE (HE) —&EfbiEE — B

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 7,440.09

HER=ERE (8E2) ZEMLIRE 2 — MR

Intensity of GHG emissions tCO,e/RMB million revenue 1.60

REREHREE WS bIE R BEITEERA

Waste Gas

BR

Sulfur oxide (SO,) kg 8.94

T (S0, Fr

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 9.77

AEILEWINO,) Fr

Particle matter (PM) kg 2.99

AR ASERLY) (PM) Fr

Total waste gas emissions kg 21.70

FERBER RS Fr

Intensity of waste gas emissions kg/RMB million revenue 0.0036

ERBER I E T/ BETEERA

Waste

=517

Total hazardous waste tons 0.05

BEEREYES U

Intensity of hazardous waste kg/RMB million revenue 0.01

BEREEYTE Fr/BETEEHBA

Total non-hazardous waste tons 434.56

BEFRERYES U

Intensity of non-hazardous waste ton/RMB million revenue 0.07

BEEEVTE WE BB ITEERA

1 The data scope of the environmental data of the Group in 2023 are as same 1 REE2023FRBHIBENFR AEHHHEFER—
as the annual report. o
2 The main sources of GHG emissions of the Group are the fuel combustion 2 KREELRERETIBEHMRA S B EFHRE R

from its own vehicles, natural gas combustion and the use of purchased B RARMERINEENER - BEVAER
electricity. The calculation method of the GHG emission data in Scope BHENEIENGE R E2EREAREINRE
1 refers to the Land Transport Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions BRI MM (E P REBEH PEETRES
Accounting and Reporting Guidelines (Trial) and Greenhouse Gas Inventory WAZE 7 ERRERER (3177) ) e (Greenhouse
Guidance — Direct Emissions from Mobile Combustion Sources. The Scope Gas Inventory Guidance — Direct Emissions
2 GHG emission is calculated using 2022 average emission factors of the from Mobile Combustion Sources)  #[E 28
National Grid as defined in the Notice on the management of greenhouse EREEREURRIR P E AR LME £ REIRIEY
gas emission reporting by enterprises in the power generation industry from BRI 2023-2025 F B BITENCER
2023 to 2025 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC. EREBHRERE SR AR IIENRE)F2022F

EzRERTHHHREFTE -
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Solid waste - food waste
EfERERY) — RmBAEEY
Intensity of food waste
BmBEEENEE

Water Consumption

Bk

Municipal water consumption
R FAKEUKE

Water consumption intensity
KR E

Energy Consumption?®
BERHE?

Direct energy consumption by energy types

REFRERA T NEERFERE
Diesel consumption

SemFER

Petrol consumption

U FE A

Natural gas consumption

RARFER

Indirect energy consumption by energy types

ZrReREE B D R EREIFEAE

Purchased electricity consumption

SN EE JHE

Energy Consumption

Direct energy consumption
B

Indirect energy consumption
A fE

Total energy consumption*
CEEET

Energy consumption intensity

tons 177.51
]

ton/RMB million revenue 0.03
BB, BEEITEERA

tons 170,744.32
]

ton/RMB million revenue 28.02
Wi BEITEERA

liter 368.99
ﬂ,

liter 215,7567.17
9:|_

cubic meter 861,729.59
SR

megawatt hours 13,045.92
BERK

ton of standard coal equivalent 1,376.72
WAAR AR

tons of standard coal equivalent 1,603.34
WATEAE AR

tons of standard coal equivalent 2,980.06
MEAR SRR

tons of standard coal equivalent/ 0.49

RMB million revenue

RAEREFERE WEAZAERE H BT E A
3 The accounting of energy consumption in operational sites in the PRC is FEEE R ERZERBERRMISEEERER
based on the General Principles of Comprehensive Energy Consumption MEREENEBEZE SR MN(GEAETE

Calculation (GB2589-2020) issued by the State Administration for Market
Regulation and the National Standardization Administration.

4 In 20283, the data scope of the total energy consumption was expanded
compared to 2022 with the integration of annual consumption of Chengming
factory, as a result, the value has increased significantly.

ABINGB2589-2020)#1THXE -

2023 FLR A REFESN AT O O HTIE B AA TR 2 F A2
FEER - W2022F 65X - ALEEBHAE
EF e
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Mk — BASRARIRE

Packaging Material Usage

BEMBHEA
Total packaging material usage ton 3,101.69
BEMRHERAE 68
Plastics ton 1,098.29
SRR W
Paper ton 1,995.91
vl I0E
Others ton 7.49
H 15 MR
Packaging material usage intensity tons/RMB million revenue 0.51
BEMHEREE MR BB TEERA
SOCIAL PERFORMANCE TABLE Y €
Supplier®
ftrEm®
Total number of suppliers No. of suppliers 350
frEm A EX
Number of suppliers by region
RESSNHEREE
Mainland China No. of suppliers 350
rh B KB EX
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas No. of suppliers 0
BIRE KM =
Employment
ETERE
Number of employees by employment type
RERERNESHESRE
Total number of full-time employees Person 2,045
FEREAB A
Total number of part-time employees Person 0
FRAEAR A
Number of employees by region
REESNESHE
Number of employees in Mainland China Person 2,042
HEIKES THE A
Number of employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Person 3
Taiwan and overseas
BREREIMIEE THE A
5 The scope of supplier data includes the foodstuff suppliers in the pool 5 HERSEGTHEANFELERMEHE
during the year. e
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Number of employees by gender

RUBESNESHE
Male employees
FEET

Female employees
ZET

Number of employees by age
RERESNEEHE

Below 30
<305%
31t0 50
31 - 50%%
Above 50
> 505%

Number of employees by job position
ERABSHESHE

Senior management
BRERE

Intermediate management
HREERE
Non-management employees
FEEEET

Employee Turnover Rate
BIRKAZE

Total turnover rate
mmRE

By gender
RER B85S

Turnover rate of male employees
SETRAE

Turnover rate of female employees
ZEIRAE

By age
EERED

Turnover rate for those under 30 years old

<BOpRE Limk%k

Turnover rate for those between 31 and 50 years old
31-505% 8 iRtk %

Turnover rate for those over 50 years old
>B0RR B Ttk %

Person
A
Person

A

Person
A
Person
A
Person

A

Person
A
Person
A
Person

A

%

%

%

%

%

1,226

819

701
1,324

20

102

1,937

47

53

37

53

b4

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 175
e



APPENDIX | KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Mk — BASRARIRE

By region

i @& D

Mainland China % 47
B KB

Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas % 33
R REIMbE

Health and Safety

BREEZ2

Number of employee workplace accidents Case 1
BITEEHHE f#

Number of work-related fatalities Person 0
BITEEHET AR A

Percentage of work-related fatalities % 0
SITHBEHETAEDL

Lost days due to work injury Day 72
EIBEATERR X

Training and Development

EHIRER

Percentage of employees trained % 100

XINEIEDL

Percentage of employees trained by gender

BUBBSZIETEDL

Male employees % 60
FET
Female employees % 40
ZBT

Percentage of employees trained by job position
ERABSZIETIEAL

Management % 5
ERE

General staff % 95
ERET

Number of training hours per employee Hours 72
BT ABEYIE B B

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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Training hours per employee by gender

RUERIB D ATZINEH
Male employees

FEET

Female employees
ZET

Training hours per employee by job position

RERRB D AGZINRH
Management

ERE

Non-management employees
FERBEET

Product Quality and Service
EmEEERY

Training hours on food safety and quality

Rin% 2 BE SRR 2

Number of participations in training related to

food safety and quality
Rz 2 HESHBEIIAR
Number of product recalls
EmBE#IRE
Percentage of product recalls
EmBEBESL
Number of customer complaints
BRIRFEE
Complaint handling rate
A B IE

Intellectual Property Rights
HBERE

Number of trademarks registered
ERIMEROHE

Number of copyrights owned
BEREFRSE

Social Welfare
HELR

Charitable donations

EERE

Hours
N
Hours

/NBF

Hours
N3
Hours

N

Hours
N

Person-time
AR

Time

/N

%

Case

%

Millions of RMB
AREEET

72

72

60

72

249

7,356

175,902

100

524

48

3.5
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fifsx— BARARK

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE TABLE

Business Ethics and Anti-corruption

HXEERRER

Average training hours per employee on
business ethics and anti-corruption

BT A2 NAEREREREREIAGER

Percentage of employees trained on business
ethics and anti-corruption

AFEEERREEEIEEE T
Number of corruption litigation cases filed and

concluded against the Company or employees
of the Company?®

AR AREERE YD BENETHARTNER®

Hour/person 3
AN PN

% 100
Case 2
18

During the Reporting Period, the Group cracked down on illegal activities
and investigated two cases of bribery offences, resulting in the criminal
punishment of five persons and the continuation of criminal prosecution of
two persons, with the recovery of stolen money exceeding RMB80,000.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE &

Environmental
BB

(BRE  #HERERABEEIDRE

A1: Emissions

AT
BERD

General Disclosure
— R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and nonhazardous waste.

BREBEROREREIN - RKREHNEEs - A
ENEEFEMNELSH

(a) BER « &
(b) BTHEITABEAZENERRANOEE -

7. Harmonious Ecology
7. MEEERE

The types of emissions and respective emissions

Appendix | Key

A1 data. \ Performance Indicators
PERU R A AR R B R MisE— RBRRAEREK
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Appendix | Key

A1.2 greenhouse gas emissions and intensity Performance Indicators
B (FEE) kagREE (BE2) BRERELTR Wi— ISRk

Appendix | Ke
A3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity PZ:‘ormance Iyndicators
: =5 0SS

MELEERENRERTE eformance ndics
Total non-hazardous waste produced and | Appendix | Key

Al.4 intensity Performance Indicators
FELBEESREEMEERTE MiegE— BRERAENER
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps )

. 7. Harmonious Ecology

A1.5 taken to achieve them B 7. A B
FE I ER T B R B B 1R KR S P ERER B P B8
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and measures

A6 to reduce generation and steps taken to achieve | 7. Harmonious Ecology

them
HlEEEEREEEEMNG L  REEEEN
8 e [z A L P ERER Y 25 5%

7. MEEHERE
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Bifd—

B3 PR

A2: Use of
Resources

A2

BREA

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials

g&&ﬁﬁﬁ R (BERR

SRR EAR R R AR

7. Harmonious Ecology
7. MEEERE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity

Appendix | Key

Azl BB M EE B R R (% - e Al e
) BEEREE HERRA
A dix I K
A2 2 Water consumption in total and intensity ppendpciney )
' BFEKERTE Performance Indicators
MisE— RBREBAERER
Description of the energy efficiency target(s) set 2 Harmonious Ecolo
A2.3 and steps taken to achieve them 7. RN A AL gy
Fi L35 F B REIR(E AR B AR K B UL FTER LAY 25 B
Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, and water
AD 4 efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to ; ;ﬂa;érgoggious Ecology
achieve them CATRR S
ﬁﬁ%m@m%ﬁt@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% AR R EE A
KB aR B AR I AU FTERER ) A5 B
Total kagi terial d for finished
oz p?c ag;ﬂg n:: erlfa use tor inis e-t Appendix | Key
roducts and with reference to per uni
A2.5 P P Performance Indicators

produced

MR HNEERGEEBMNIES

M — BIRERER

A3: Environment
and Natural

Resources
A3
RIBERRARER

General Disclosure

—ARIER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

gﬁ%&ﬁ/\%ﬁﬁiﬁ&i%ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁlﬂzéﬁ%%EI’JBZ

7. Harmonious Ecology
7. MEEERE

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

R EBZHHRFERRARERNEATEREHK
NERBHTENTS -

7. Harmonious Ecology

7. & RE

A4: Climate
Change

General Disclosure

—MIEE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

BRI R EH D ERAREHETAELEFENEXR
RIRAEREEEREER -

7. Harmonious Ecology

7. & A RE

A4

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

D ERAREHRETAEEZENEAREKE
HEE  REYHTTH -

7. Harmonious Ecology

7. R A RE
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Social

HE

B1: Employment
B1: &R

General Disclosure

—RRIER

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRI NRE  BERET - TIEMNE - &Y -
%%%@*%ﬁk\&ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬂ
(@) B« &

(ﬁb)ﬂ%?%ﬁéﬁ/\*ﬁi FENERAR KRN

6. People-oriented

6. AABAR

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region

Appendix | Key

B1.1 % = = i
B RO FREHENS ORAS e 0"
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group | Appendix | Key

B1.2 Performance Indicators

and geographical region

RIEH - FRARNRIBEE D HEERALL X

Mg — BIRERR

B2: Health and
Safety

B2 :

(EIEREER s

General Disclosure
— IR

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

EE@%{%T(%I{’E%%&{%@EEiﬁﬁﬂ%&%’&fi%

(@) BE &

g;}%?%ﬁ%ﬁkﬁik%%ﬂ%ﬁ PR KRB

6. People-oriented

6. AABAR

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

Appendix | Key

B2.1 = % Performance Indicators
T b & :
RTHEEHOET AR KL o e
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Bifd—

B3 PR

Lost days due to work injury

Appendix | Key

B2z ATBRATIFAH Porformance Indicators
Description of occupational health and
523 safety measures adopted, and how they are 6. People-oriented

implemented and monitored
AL PTER MR B S R R 280 - AR BAT
REERFTIE

6. LA B

B3: Development
and Training

General Disclosure

—ARIEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

BRITETE B BT TERE A B R BB BUR -
HAIEDES -

6. People-oriented

6. AABK

The percentage of employees trained by gender

Appendix | Key

e IR ARSI H R B B B LT ER B 22 B8

B3 : . B3.1 and employee category Performance Indicators
BRI RIEF REEFNEDHZIEEADLL Misg— RBREEAEGR
Thelaveretl)ge trjiningd hou[s completed per Appendix | Key
B3.2 employee by gender and employee category .
IR ERIERIES - SREE=RTMTy | [erformance Indicators
Bwir% ﬁ'ﬁﬁ @ﬁﬁ}guﬁ/&i’%
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
General Disclosure ssuer 6. People-oriented
—RRIRE 6. AABRA
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B4: Labor
Standards BREAFAE IS RGISTH
B4 :
4 TR (a) B + &
(b) ETHEITABEAZENAREIERADIN
BH o
Descﬁption of rheasgres to review employment 6. People-oriented
B4 practices to avoid child and forced labour 6. LA B
R FT RS P FE S LA o B T 58 45 T
Description of steps taken to eliminate such .
. People- t
B4.2 practices when discovered 6. People-oriented

6. AABAR

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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Misk— BERFTRS

B5: Supply Chain
Management

B5:
HERER

General Disclosure

—RRIER

Policies on managing environmental and social

risks of the supply chain.
EIRHIEERIRE R G RRBUR o

5. Working Together for
Mutual Benefits

5. EFHRE

Number of suppliers by geographical region

Appendix | Key

Bo1 IR 815 M R B B erformance Jndicators

Description of practices relating to engaging

suppliers, number of suppliers where the 5. Working Together for
B5.2 practices are being implemented, and how they Mutual Benefits

are implemented and monitored 5 EFHE

A BN AR V1B ) - m ERTT R BB HIE

HERHE - ARBBEESNNTRERETE

Description of practices used to identify

environmental and social risks along the supply 5. Working Together for
B5.3 chain, and how they are implemented and Mutual Benefits

monitored. 5 EFHE

HL A R RS S ERANIRE L g R

B AT RERE

Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and 5. Working Together for
B5.4 services when selecting suppliers, and how they Mutual Benefits

are |mplemented and monitored.
A EREHERRRE S ARRERMRBENE
Bl - ARABRAEATT R BEER K ©

5. EBFHR

B6: Product
Responsibility
B6 :

EmEE

General Disclosure

—MIEE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRAMRHERTRBOEFERL
RALSEE A RERITEN -

(@) R+ &
BTHETABEARENEBER AN

X

4. Prioritizing Food Safety
4 RRRE

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

EE&EL REMEHT AR EEFEEAMARD
L GER)

Appendix | Key
Performance Indicators

Fifse— RIRENER
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APPENDIX Il HKEX INDEX

fifsx— EEXFTRS

B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with

R E MR RIS FE B AR EE 7%

Appendix | Key
Performance Indicators &

4. Prioritizing Food Safety
HigE— BISEEEER
4. RRBFE

B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing

and protecting intellectual property rights
T it B T T AR PR AN EE AR B R V1B 71

4. Prioritizing Food Safety
4 RERE

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and

recall procedures
VS S0 E B2 R EmE IR

4. Prioritizing Food Safety
4 RERSE

B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored

LR B E B RHRIE RALBBR - A RIBRIIT R
BEEIA

4. Prioritizing Food Safety
4 RERSE

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BEVREEE - 9% BFEREREMN
(@) BE &
g)%?%%ﬁAﬁiﬁ%%%ﬁ@%@&ﬁﬂ%

Lo

3. Robust Governance

3. AR

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases

RIERBALET AL REBRETDEANES
AR BB M AFEL RS

Appendix | Key
Performance Indicators

MR — BEREEREK

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored

%i?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%iﬁiﬁ C ARBRRITRERT

3. Robust Governance

3. REaE

— MR BEER
B7: Anti-
corruption
B7:
RES
B7.1
B7.2
B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided

to directors and staff o
HilmEE KR E TRHEORESHE

3. Robust Governance

3. 1BRE

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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B8: Community

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Policies on community engagement to

understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’
interests.

BRENME2ERTRLEERELRTEZMERE
EBEDEEBERNEOME -

8. Giving Back to Society
8. Bt E

Investment
B8: B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 8. Giving Back to Society
HEEE ' E-pEa—y il 8. Bt e
Appendix | Key
R . he Performance Indicators &
esources contributed to the focus area . .
B8.2 EETEERSEER 8. Giving Back:g Society
Misg— RBRERAEMR K
8. BB
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBEIRE

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

2K EETENSEH PR
EY:

To the Shareholders of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

K — 2712

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 193 to 295 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB’) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERM (L8 ROBRARE

EBRIRBFEEE 97958

Tel BE7A: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8HE: +852 2868 4432
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

FREESEE

RREAFRIRERMNEZHE - RA
HAHGEMBRRNBITRREENSE
o ZEFHEEHRAM B RREBEET
BT UK BERNE S TETREN - &
THZEFERREHEBNER - L ITXES
B E - FAPIEE T LA A 5E 3% 55 18 B Fie it
AR5 5 -

BAEKET T ARE [ BB EAR
BHmFAENET MoMANEE - BFE
ELBRETEHEABNEE - HE - R
FIMES TIEBRATREE T ERE M
R B K R PR B 1 AR G T O B RTAZ P o
BAMITRA R (BREEE TXEEMAT
MIER) MAER - BEMGEAMBHERBRE
AAERRETER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BEEEE
Revenue recognition

WA TR

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of home meal
and other food related products. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group recognised consolidated revenue
amounting to RMB6,094,104,000.
EEBFrENFHEETCRERARAMAMBHEER - BE
—T=F+A=+—HIFE X EREBIGAERAAR
#6,094,104,0007C °

The timing of revenue recognition of the sale of the
home meal and other food related products is when the
performance obligation of the sale or delivery of goods are
satisfied at a point in time. We consider revenue recognition
is a key audit matter as there was inherent risk based on
the fact that the Group earned such revenue primarily from
sales selling products to a large number of customers
through an extensively franchised retail store network.
HEARIZRERREMBEMERNBRARRREAEXEE
ERNEMBHEENE KB - HR SEETZB6EE
AR ST EE MG M KSR HE ZE mm A KA -
FEBEARR - FHBWAERSRERRETER -

The accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is
disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements and the
details of revenue are disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements.

BEABATERE R ST BRI ISR M 5L 2.4 4858 - WA FEER
FRRA T SRR P T SR ER o

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE

HRESSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMWETNAEERRENSE

We obtained an understanding of the transaction process

of revenue recognition, evaluated and tested the Group’s

internal controls on the revenue recognition process.

B TR TWARRNERERF - SHEWARET SEEERA
RIBRF R EBIEH] o

We reviewed and evaluated the revenue recognition policy by
inquiring the management and reviewing sales contracts on
a sample basis.

1*;1?%%@%@?5%1%&?ﬁaﬁ%ﬁaiﬁ%é\m  ER N EBARER
B ©

We performed analytical procedures on the Group’s revenue
by channels, by months, by customers and by product
categories. Besides, we recalculated the operational support
services recognised during the year.
HPIRERE &P REPRIERERERY BERENHKRAET
DT o AN BMEFAHE T ENERNGSEERTE

We performed revenue cut-off procedures as well as tests of
details by selecting samples to check the original supporting
documents, such as sales orders, delivery notes, receipts and
bank slips.

BfBEEEEEMREHERE  RE8 WELRBTWES
RGBT - AT B LI RARETRIE, -

We performed data analysis on consistency between
operational and financial data on revenue recognition and
performed background investigation check on a sample basis
among the franchisees.
HMIFURATER S L N B 2 M — BT IR DT
WENBETPREETERAS

We sent confirmations to customers to check the accuracy of
the revenue and t(ade receivables on a sample basis. )
BB P EXRER L - BB RA KR E 5 EWGRIE &) A1
1 o

We evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial
statements.

BPIRHE T RARPRENOFTD M -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS E

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

HERFERSNEMER

BERRESHHHMESRER - HBEEER
RIEREFEREANEE - BETEERE
PSR MR PINZBEN RS -

BAEHZEEMBRERNBERL NREEME
B BT A HZFEMESZERTALA
HSERE KM ©
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AEEHERMESR  FLHERT  ZEH
= SR E B e M MRARMESEB
BHREENBERFEERNEEREE M
EFESAHEREANER - ERERMSH
TOITHE  IREMARSEMEEFEEXN
R BT EREZEE - EED
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EERAREMBRRARENEE

BERREZARARBEE G ENEES
78 1 0 BB B B 755 R 5 2R Bl e BB R AR Bl Y
BEAEREEEMTENGEEPBERE -
WHERBBEEAMBRENRHRIFE
AR ERMEB N ERERRAAFT
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EREGEUBHRRE - EAREREEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

R ET M BRREAENE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yin Guo Wei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

28 March 2024

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ=—ZE=_=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EBC-=F T F
Notes RMB’000 RM,B'OOO
B EE AR®T ARBET T
REVENUE WA \ B 6,094,104 7,173,457
Cost of sales SHEE R A (4,743,163) (5,924,496)
Gross profit EF 1,350,941 1,248,961
Other income and gains, net E A Rk s F 5 6 104,915 121,460
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kD (578,820) (624,577)
Administrative expenses THAX (497,235) (403,686)
Other expenses HAbFI (8,652) (2,968)
Finance costs BB AR 8 (5,432) (2,564)
Impairment loss on financial assets TRIEEREERE 23 (2,292) (4,584)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BrE AT A E 7 363,425 332,042
Income tax expense SiECy 11 (100,023) (91,060)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRF)HE 263,402 240,982
Attributable to: LA &5 RS -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE/FSN 239,636 229,907
Non-controlling interests eI R 23,766 11,075
263,402 240,982
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREEERTE ARGEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE &7
PARENT
Basic L WIN
- For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FAFE(ARED) 13 8.94 8.88
Diluted e
- For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FERFE(ARES) 13 8.94 8.76
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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SEEHRaER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—FE—_=F+=-A=1+—HILLFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022
—EB-=F = S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 263,402 240,982
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B2 ERas
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be HieHMa EmoHEBng
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib 2 (F1R) /W
Exchange differences on translation of HMEISINE TS =5
foreign operations (201) 45
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be ~ HEHE A EHSEEIBEN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Hib2m (F8) WS FE (201) 45
Other comprehensive income that will not be HieHBTgsmo B2 Bag
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Efth 2 EWE ¢
Equity investments designated at fair value HRIEREARBERAEM
through other comprehensive income: EEWEHRERE
Changes in fair value NAEEEE) 31,205 11,838
Income tax effect TSR 2 (7,801) (2,959)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be HEeHMTeENmHBEBE0
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Eth 2 FRE 23,404 8,879
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, FREMEEKER - HERHIA
NET OF TAX 23,203 8,924
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FREERELREE 286,605 249,906
Attributable to: AT & TR
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZS PN 262,839 238,831
Non-controlling interests SRR i 23,766 11,075
286,605 249,906

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

31 December 2023 —E=_=f%+=-fA=+—H

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F T
+=BA=+—-H +Z=ZA=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BE R E 14 440,820 357,826
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 135,714 152,330
Goodwill H = 16 138,010 138,010
Other intangible assets HthmEAE 17 58,233 61,064
Investment in an associate R—REE RN A RIEE 18 2,070 2,000
Equity investments designated at fair value $E§E IR ABET AEHM
through other comprehensive income 2HE R E R IAERE 19 253,090 98,838
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 20 24,524 30,957
Financial assets at fair value through profit IZQAEERTT ABZL
or loss DREE 25 209,861 187,875
Long-term bank deposits RHISRITFER 26 453,871 526,208
Deferred tax assets RAERTEE B 21 60,160 116,534
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 1,776,353 1,671,642
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories BB 22 719,515 1,047,404
Trade receivables & SRR 23 54,263 134,325
Prepayments, other receivables and other  FEfIFUIE « EfhfE U FRIE K
assets HMAE 24 408,668 440,114
Restricted cash REIRE 26 64,220 42,164
Financial assets at fair value through profit &R BEFTAEBRH
or loss TREE 25 211,031 50,067
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHE R 26 1,417,596 694,954
Total current assets mENEERE 2,875,293 2,409,028
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables B SR 28 457,297 577,481
Other payables and accruals Hih S RIE R EATE R 29 577,296 589,519
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &FEIR1T R HAbIE R 27 72,135 95,438
Lease liabilities HEak 15(b) 17,849 19,938
Tax payables FEIBIIE 43,311 20,641
Total current liabilities mENEERER 1,167,888 1,303,017
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 1,707,405 1,106,011
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EBEAEMASHAE 3,483,758 2,777,653
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMEAE
Deferred income IR A 30 18,260 7,335
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &FE3R1T Rk HAbIE 27 8,139 191
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(b) 12,162 19,215
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B & 21 66,414 61,361
Total non-current liabilities ERBBIELE 104,975 88,102
Net assets BEFE 3,378,783 2,689,551
EQUITY W2
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 F#EHE AELER
Share capital/Paid-in capital A EHER 31 2,747,360 20,993
Reserves i 32 514,817 2,573,455
3,262,177 2,594,448
Non-controlling interests eI e e 116,606 95,103
Total equity RS Ha%E 3,378,783 2,689,551
B BER
Yang Mingchao An Haolei
EF 3
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HEEmBER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ—FE—_=F+=-A=1+—HILLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BENBLAREA
Fairvalue
reserve of
financial
assets
at fairvalue
throughother ~ Exchange Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory ~ comprehensive  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* income* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
RAEE
AR
2EkEN
SHEEN EX
Ba  EAREr  iERE  DAERER  REER  BRAR Bt hERER  BaSE
(ote31)  (noted2)  (noted?)
(Wa31) (W) (W)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®Tr  ARMTn ARETr  ARBTz  ARETn  ARMTn  ARETx ARETR  AREfz
Asat 1 January 2023 RE-=F-3-A 20,093 2,909,451 230 8,504 45 (346,867) 2,506,448 95,103 2,689,551
Profit for the year ERiE o o = o o 239,636 239,636 23,766 263,402
Other comprehensive income for the year: EmEfREYE
Change n fair value of equityinvestments BARBET A EREN
atfairvalue through other compreensive ~ RERENAAEEEE
income, net of tax (fB5E) - - - 23,404 - - B - 03406
Exchange diferences on translation of BERNEHNELZE
foreign operations - - - - (201) - (201) - (201)
Total comprehensive income fo the year EReAbGEE - - - 3,404 (20)  2008%  262,8% 866 266,605
Conversion into a jint stock company HHERRLA 2669007 (2,808,272) - - - 15925 - - -
Issuance of H shares uponlisting on RERRRA LR THHR
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 77,360 327,530 - - - - 404,890 = 404,890
Dividends paid to non-controlingequity holder X PR ERHEADRE - - - s s = = (4,763) (4,763)
Capital njection from non-controlling FERERRENTE
equity holder - - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
Transfer from retained profts EhREHE - - 18439 - - (184%9) - - -
Asat 31 December 2023 WN-F-=F+-A=1-H 2,741,360 428,709 20,761 31,908 (156) 33,595 3,262,177 116,606 3,378,783

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE=-_=F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BENRAEAA
Fairvalue
reserve of
financial
assets
atfairvalue
throughother ~ Exchange Non-
Paid-in Capital ~ Statutory  comprehensive  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* income* reserve* losses* Total interests equity
BANEE
AR
2Ekad
SHEEN Ej
THER  BAREr  ERRR DABERE  RORE  EER & HRER  EeEE
(note 31) (note 32) (note32)
(has1)  (WBsD)  (WsEs2)
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARBTR ARETR
Asat 1 January 2022 WE--E-8-A 20601 2643448 2322 1,500 = (678649) 2,089,222 5506 2114726
Profit for the year ERiE = = = = = 29907 29907 11,075 240,982
Other comprehensive income for the year: EmifREYE
Change n fair value of equityinvestments BAABET AL EREN
atfairvalue through other comprehensive ~ RERENAAEERE
income, et of tax (i) - - - 8879 - - 8879 - 8678
Bxchange differences on translation of BEENERNELZE
foreign operations = = = = 4 = 4 = i
Total comprehensive income for the year FRzEfELE = = = 8679 B MmN 1B 105 249906
Transfor of fairvalue reserve uponobtaining. A EASRERHIER
control through business combination DEBRERD - - - (1875 - 1875 - - -
Aequisiton of a subsiciary (notes 31) WE-FHEAR (M) 261,39 - - - - B 071
Equity-settled Award nterests amrangement M\ EREENZBERTH - LA0L - - - 4504 - 4504
Capital infection from non-controlling FERERRANTE
equity holders = . - > = = 19,600 19,600
As at 31 December 2022 e 2l o 20993 2909451 231 8504 4 (346,867) 2594448 %103 2,689,951
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBREEERAMBRRKRPOGEA FE

RMB514,817,000 (2022: RMB2,573,455,000) in the consolidated statements

of financial position.

ARM514,817,000L (ZE==F : AR¥

2,573,455,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZE=ZE=_=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EB-=HF = S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt s ARETT ARBFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES LETHFFRERE
Profit before tax BrELATFE - 363,425 332,042
Adjustments for: LA B IEK R
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMRETE
equipment 14 37,216 24,346
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 15(a) 34,281 31,199
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hh R & 17 9,296 3,788
Interest income FEHA 6 (31,792) (23,024)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of items of property, — HE&EWE « BEKLRE
plant and equipment BEEA (W), B8 6 (325) 697
(Gain)/loss on early termination of leases RATRIEREN (W), EiE 6 (799) 144
Realised fair value gains from financial BRARBE ABRN
assets at fair value through profit or loss SRMEEMNEERE AR
BEWE 6 (5,402) (4,655)
Unrealised fair value gains on financial BRARBER ABZEN
assets at fair value through profit or loss SREENRERAA
BEYKE 6 (21,950) (57,900)
Finance costs HEER 8 5,432 2,564
Impairment losses on inventories, net of FEREREE - NRER-
reversal 7 (3,155) 3,898
Impairment loss on financial assets CRIEERERBE 23 2,292 4,584
Deferred income recognised in profit or loss A B ERAELERA 30 (1,128) (336)
Share of profits of an associate pax ()i /NCIV I 6 (70) -
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE %8 45 E B DARR 19
expenses BEENHNRAXS = 4,604
Foreign exchange differences, net SNIE = FEFFE 6 7,210 77
394,531 322,028
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERLD /8 331,044 (411,389)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B 5 UK R D /(4 0) 77,770 (113,898)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables — JEIFRIE » Hfth FEUGRIE &2
and other assets H BB R D 31,446 50,909
Increase in restricted cash SR bR LN (22,056) (8,690)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B P RENFIE CRd),/ 18 (120,184) 320,172
Increase in other payables and accruals At FEAS 3RIR K B At B FIE A0 121 121,791
Cash generated from operations KEMmSHe 692,672 280,923
Income tax paid BEETSH (23,727) (709)
Interest received 2 UALE 9,401 5,069
Net cash flows generated from operating KL EBFBRSREFE
activities 678,346 285,283

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =1
I \éiﬁﬁ;ﬁaié‘%
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ—E_=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—B-=HF T —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B+ AR®T T ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBDHISRDNE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  WELEZEER

plant and equipment FRiS5kIA 2,947 1,194
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWE  WERRKHEER

equipment (133,105) (116,317)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMEREE (1,900) (1,660)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERAABEAERSY

through profit or loss CREE (1,181,000) (805,100)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at  HEIE R BET AEBZEH

fair value through profit or loss S REEMSIA 1,025,402 959,755
Receipt of government grants for property, IR E ER D% -« RS I RS

plant and equipment MR BN B 30 12,053 7,671
Increase in bank deposits with original WEER REIBA A BB =18 A

maturity of more than three months when BRI T BB N

acquired (150,000) (330,000)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original BBV SR R 2 EA B AR iR

maturity of more than three months when =B AMEITER

acquired - 210,000
Interest received from bank deposits with IR R B EA A #B iR = @ A

original maturity of more than three months  HJSRTTIE KB UFI &

when acquired 406 3,368
Purchase of equity investments designated HBEETEERAABETA

at fair value through other comprehensive Hfbh 2R A RER A

income (123,047) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash WM B AR - MNBRIRE - 32,690
Capital injection in an associate [ —fEBE NREE - (2,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEZHFARESRE T8 (548,244) (40,399)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEBFBHESRAE
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and FTERTT REAE RIS FIE

other borrowings 120,000 40,451
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and other {&Ext 8 R1T M E M E R

borrowings (135,052) 17)
Interest paid for interest-bearing bank and FTRRIT R EAMERA

other borrowings EfF A (4,512) (467)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEaE 15(b) (27,635) (27,038)
Dividends paid to non-controlling equity AT IR RS A AR S

holders (4,763) -
Capital injection from non-controlling equity 5 B JEIEHERSHA AR E

holders 2,500 19,600
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BITHR D B FTIS 20E 424,268 =
Payments for listing expenses XA EmRX (19,378) -
Net cash flows generated from financing BMEFBASHEESREFRE

activities 355,428 32,529
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE=_=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—EBC-=F &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 AR®T AREF T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH Re MR EEWFEM
EQUIVALENTS 485,530 277,413
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUREEREEED
year 694,954 417,573
Effect of foreign exchange differences, net ME N EFR B (7,210) (32)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRRG LB EEY
YEAR 1,173,274 694,954
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH  IR& NI & S EBWEHR O
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITERR 26 1,417,596 694,954
Long-term bank deposits RHISRITER 26 453,871 526,208
Long-term bank deposits and cash and A BN KRR FIRE
bank balances as stated in the consolidated ~ RHIRITIFRIAR
statements of financial position & RIRITEEER 1,871,467 1,221,162
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity B REERBA=EAN
of more than three months RITIER 698,193 526,208
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FABRERERTIIRA
consolidated statements of cash flows BeMEEEEY 1,173,274 694,954

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SRR P

31 December 2023 —E_=F+"-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. was incorporated and
registered in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The address of the registered office is No. 3, Lane 187,
Xinghong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai. The Company
was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 2 November 2023.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”)
were involved in the operation of a franchised retail
network and trading of home meal and other food related
products in Chinese Mainland.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the ultimate Controlling Shareholders of the
Company is Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr.
Li Xinhua.

RAREEER

WERM (L8 ROBRA RN E
AREME ([HE])FMEL - 5F
o= it A E i RI1T @ EaT B
187F35E e —_E-_=F+—H=-H -
RARIREBERHMAERSBRARE
RET ©

ARRREMBAR (SBR[ AR
B ETBEAMEERFTERRK
RPERCHRKLEMRMERER °

ARAER([EF])) RA/XAFNK
REBRBERBGHBRE - RTESL
ERFRERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AKREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
The particulars of principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRARFENT :
Place and date Issued
of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
AL, BT
AR R EER/ BEREALF
B> AHURE XL MR A NESEDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B &
Shanghai Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
24 June 2020 service
FEREREREERARAR HE/ B R ARH 100% - REHEEERRY
ZE-ZERAZTHEA 10,000,0007T
Shenzhen Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
12 June 2020 service
RIBERERFERERAR BB/ R AR 100% - REHERERRE
Z2-ZERATCH 10,000,0007C
Chengdu Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
9 May 2020 service
KBREREREERARAR HE/ B R AEH 100% - REHEEERRY
“Z-ZERANRA 10,000,0007T
Nanjing Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 1,000,000 chain management
14 August 2019 service
ERAERERFERARAR BB/ R AR 100% - REHERERRE
“2-nFN\ATEA 1,000,0007
Shaanxi Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
26 August 2019 service
RERERERXERERAR HEl/ B R ARH 100% - REHEEERRY
“E-AFENRZTRR 10,000,0007T
Shanxi Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
16 September 2020 service
LERBRERZERARAA BB/ R AR 100% - REHERERRY
“2-ZFNAATRA 10,000,0007C
Henan Guoguan Supply Chain PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
5 January 2015 service
B EEER AR AR HE/ R E R AEH 100% - REFEEERRY
“Z-1%-AAA 10,000,0007T
Changsha Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
3 September 2020 service
RORERERFERERAR BB/ R AR 100% - REHERERRE
“Z-ZENA=A 10,000,000

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QAKREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place and date Issued
of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR 28T
AR EER/ BERADE
B BHAREREE EREN MEREDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
Hebei Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
23 September 2020 service
AL RERERFERERAR HE /RN AR 100% - REHEEEEERYE
“Z-TFAR=T=RH 10,000,0007C
Jinan Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
8 September 2020 service
EERRRERXERERAR HEl/ R E R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS
“Z-ZEAANR 10,000,0007C
Nanchang Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
15 September 2020 service
HERBERERXERARAR HE /RN AR 100% - REHEEEERRYE
—Z-ZFNA+AA 10,000,0007¢
Hangzhou Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 chain management
27 September 2020 service
MMBEREFXERARAR HEl/ B R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS
“ZZEFAACTLR 10,000,0007C
Shenyang Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 management service
8 May 2020
B REREREERERAR /R E R AR 100% - REHEEEEERYE
—Z-Z5RANR 10,000,0007T
Beijing Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 management service
22 August 2019
IrhEREEEERARAR HEl/ B R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS
“Z-NAENAZTZRH 10,000,0007T
Zhengzhou Guoquan Shihui Internet PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Development of
Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland 1,000,000 information technology
15 February 2017
MR REREMRBR A HE /BN AR 100% - REEERMRS
“T—tF-ATHA 1,000,0007T
Guoquan Investment Management PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Investment holding
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Mainland 200,000,000
10 September 2020
REREERE (LB)FRAR HEl/ R E R AR® 100% - REAEKR
“Z-ZEAATA 200,000,0007T
Shanghai Guoquan Shihui PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Sale of food products
Trading Co., Ltd. Mainland 2,000,000
27 August 2020
HERBRERERRAR HE /RN AR 100% - Rm#E
“Z-TFNR=TLA 2,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2RAREEEHR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place and date Issued
of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR 2R
AR EER BERADE
B =EDYE-ES AR A NEZEIL TEED
Direct Indirect
B# &
Guoquan (Shanghai) Import and PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Sale of food products
Export Trade Co., Ltd. Mainland 50,000,000
29 May 2020
e (L) ELNESERAR /R E R ARE 100% - Rm#HE
“Z-TFRA-TNA 50,000,0007C
Henan Guoxiaoguan Electronic PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Development of
Commerce Co., Ltd. Mainland 20,000,000 information technology
17 May 2019
Ed N EEFEBEARAR HE/ B R AR 100% - FEEERMmRS
“E-NERATEA 20,000,0007T
Guoguan Corporate Consulting PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of enterprise
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Mainland 140,000,000 management service
16 June 2021
MECEHNA (L) ARAR B/ R E R AR 100% - RECEERRE
“Z--F5ATtRA 140,000,0007T
Anhui Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 management service
24 March 2021
THRBRERXERERAR HE/ R E R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS
2 —¥=A-tmWmA 10,000,0007C
Wuhan Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Chinese RMB 100% - Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland 10,000,000 management service
9 April 2021
RERBRERXERBRAA B/ E R ARE 100% - REHEREERYE
“Z--FWANA 10,000,0007C
Luyi Heyi Meat Industry Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese RMB = 51%  Processing and sale of
Mainland 50,000,000 meat products
13 May 2020
BEEN-—NZERARF HEl /BRI AE® - 51% MWHEEMNNIRHE
“Z-ZERATER 50,000,0007¢
Luyi Wanlai Wanqu Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese RMB = 51%  Processing and sale of
Mainland 50,000,000 meat products
7 February 2021
EEFARAEZREERAR B/ E R AR = 51% REEMNMIRES
S Sy = 50,000,0007T
Guoguan Enterprise Management PRC/Chinese RMB = 100%  Investment holding
MECEER(LE)AERAR Mainland 2,000,000

(formerly known as Guoguan Investment 6 April 2022
(Hainan) Co., Ltd.)

(RITEAERE (Bm) BRAR) HE/RERH AR = 100% RERR
“TZ-FWARA 2,000,0007T
Guoquan Shihui Commercial Management  Hong Kong HK$ 100% - Provision of supply chain
(Hongkong) Co., Ltd. 2 September 2022 4,400,000 management service
RERERZEE (BE) BRRF éé e 4,400,0007%7T 100% - REHERERRYE
—E-C —H

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QAKREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place and date Issued
of incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR 28T
AR EER/ BERADE
B BHAREREE EREN MEREDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
Luyi Chengming Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB 74.79% 2.5%  Processing and sale of
(“Luyi Chengming”) 29 October 2019 55,555,556 sauce and condiment
products
BEFEARMEB AT HE/ hEA AREE 7479% 25% ERRERRHNTRHE
(TEE2EH]) “E-NFTA-TAA 55,555,556 7
Sichuan Chengming Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB = 77.29%  Sale of sauce and
14 June 2018 1,000,000 condiment products
m)IEBRmERAR /R E R ARE = 77.29%  EHIGHRmEEE
—Z-\FrATHEA 1,000,0007T
Luyi Chengming Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB = 77.29%  Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. 14 October 2020 1,000,000 management service
BEFEABEERERAR E/ hEA ARHE - 77.29%  RAMAEEERRS
“2-ZF+ATHA 1,000,0007C
* The English names of the PRC companies above represent * HAPRATN EAMOECETE &

management’s best efforts in translating the Chinese names of
these companies as no English names have been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group.

BEZNE LERENZE QAR FX
BB R R o

ERIHTEERRIERERWF
EEEIBRASETEFEENA

NGNS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
all standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
and International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Committee and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial information has been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCl”) which have been measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial information is
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded

to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Other than as further explained below, all IFRSs effective
after the accounting period commencing from 1 January
2023, together with the relevant transitional provisions,
have been early adopted by the Group in the preparation of
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar
Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to
Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods when
Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure
of known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but
not yet in effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the
scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did
not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)’

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)!

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7 and
IFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements’

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these revised |[FRSs upon initial application.
So far, it has concluded that the adoption of them will not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the

financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of

the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets and equity
investments at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - basedon quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of the reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and the entity, or
any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Buildings

BF

Leasehold improvements
HEWERRE
Machinery equipment
MR

Motor vehicles

E

Office equipment
PN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software

Software is started at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 3 to 10 years based on the Group’s past
experience purpose on usage of the software and the
authorised period for such uses.

Trademarks and patent rights

Trademarks and patent rights acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost). Trademarks and
patent rights with finite useful lives are stated at their
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 to 20 years. The Group determines their useful lives
with reference to the patent protection periods and the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the assets.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. When no
internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

foice premises and plant
WRYEREE
Leasehold land

HELTH

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial investments

Investments in convertible redeemable preferred shares
and wealth management products are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL
Assets”). FVTPL Assets are measured and recorded at fair
value and any unrealised gains or losses are recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit and loss. Realised
gains and losses from the sale or withdrawal of FVTPL
Assets are determined on a specific-identification basis.

Upon initial recognition, the Group elected to classify
irrevocably certain of its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through OCI when
they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statements of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity investments
designated at fair value through OCl are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that considerations
due. The Group initially measures receivables, except
for trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an in significant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

EXRSFBER (&)

Fris®i (&)

EXERBRERMBRERTE R EE
BT UARERR - A TBESRRSN |

RR 5 (WIHREHAFARR
SR NFE ST B ER
HABgIER B TEE SRR
FHNREAVLANBERZE
B)HPERERLEBENEE
FREMELEZEERER
(I3

PEREMBAT  BEQR
keEEERABNERTER
ZHEME  BEREZHENED
AT ARE S - BRI TE R A
ARZFERHEZHL TSRO
B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Eo=EER

231



232

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with,
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a) Sale of home meal and other food related products

Revenue from the sale of home meal and other
food related products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(b) Provision of operational support services

Revenue from the provision of operational support
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statements
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial
statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses and deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in note 21 to
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on
the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products, consumer price index, deposit reserve ratio,
inflation rate and rate of unemployment) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the retail sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at 31 December 2023. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other
intangible assets, investment in an associate and other
non-current assets are set out in notes 14, 15, 17, 18 and
20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2023 was RMB138,010,000 (31 December
2022: RMB138,010,000). Further details are given in note
16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying values of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was
RMB28,373,000 (31 December 2022: RMB75,321,000).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December
2023 was RMB126,863,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB83,973,000). Further details are contained in note 21
to the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted convertible
redeemable preferred shares have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 39
to financial statements. The valuation requires the Group
to determine price-to-sales ratio for similar instruments,
adjusted by discount for lack of marketability, volatility
and risk-free interest rate. The Group classifies the fair
value of these unlisted equity investments and unlisted
convertible redeemable preferred shares as Level 3
instruments. The fair values of the unlisted equity
investments recorded in equity investments designated
at fair value through OCl at 31 December 2023 was
RMB94,529,000 (31 December 2022: RMB98,838,000). The
fair value of the unlisted convertible redeemable preferred
shares recorded in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at 31 December 2023 was RMB209,861,000
(31 December 2022: RMB187,875,000). Further details
are included in note 19 and note 25 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses as a whole by the most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. The Group’s
chief operating decision maker is the chief executive
officer of the Group who reviews the Group’s consolidated
results of operations for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Accordingly, no reportable segment information is
presented.

Geographical information

Since all of the Group’s revenue are derived from
customers based in Chinese Mainland during the reporting
period and all the Group’s non-current assets are located
in Chinese Mainland, no further geographical information
in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

5. REVENUE 5. WA
(@)  An analysis of revenue is as follows: (a) WAZHAT -
2023 2022
—EC-=4F —ECF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Revenue from contracts with customers ZEF&HUA
Sale of home meal and other food related  $H&EERIZER K H A

products RoARER 5,940,518 7,058,774
Operational support services REIEE R 153,586 114,683
Total revenue from contracts with BEFEHNBRA

customers 6,094,104 7,173,457
Timing of revenue recognition U\ T 8 B
Goods transferred at a point in time EREREHBENEY 5,940,518 7,058,774
Services transferred over time BE 2 s R RO HERS T 88 7% 1 AR 75 153,586 114,683
Total revenue from contracts with EEEHNBRA

customers 6,094,104 7,173,457

The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRE IR AR E AR R
recognised in the current reporting period that were WEeHE  ZESERMEH
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning VT ABHEAaE:

of the reporting period:

2023 2022
—E-=4F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Revenue recognised that was included in ~ REHVIFFAGHNBEN
contract liabilities at the beginning of BRI
the reporting period:

Sale of home meal and other food related  $H&EERIE AR K HAb

products RmiAMESR 22,190 20,920
Operational support services REIEE RS 68,950 40,478
Total FE 91,140 61,398

(b)  Performance obligations (b) EHEK
Information about the Group’s performance EBERSERNEANERE
obligations is summarised below: M
Sale of home meal and other food related products HEMERIERE B MR BIEEE

B

The performance obligation is satisfied upon BHAEREETIRINEREZER &
delivery of the home meal and other food related HMEmBREERNET - I
products and payment in advance is normally WEAEMNNRE  HEEH—
required, except for customers with credit terms, BRRZH%E30BZ=180HAE
where payment is generally due within 30 days to HIWEPRIN - —E50 AT
180 days from delivery. Some contracts provide FRHEEHmE - mEELNE
customers with a right of return which gives rise to g -

variable consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

5.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Operational support services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before rendering the services.
The franchisees are required to pay the Group a
fixed sum of yearly operational support service fee
for each franchised store at the beginning of each
franchise period.

The Group has no revenue contract that has an
original expected duration more than one year.
Thus, management applied practical expedient
under IFRS 15 and does not disclose the aggregate
amount of the transaction prices allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially satisfied as of the end of the reporting
period.

5.

WA (&)

(b)

BRIET (&)

HEIEGIRE

BE & AR 75 OB A A e B2 S AR 755
AATEFEEHEAR  BOE
HeEERENES MG
FE1T - MEAm AR & InEE HIR
2R B A 45 D BRUS R AN R B =2 A
Bl & B FEHEEERG
5o

AEEY ERERFELBR
—ENRARK - ANERE
R BUFR B 75 i o5 2B I 55 1657
FERERBRE A - BXER
BRBERROE T HARET
RO BITHENETNRS
ETRE%E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HMW AR K= FEE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Other income HAplg A
Government grants related to AT B
—income (i) — A 45,183 28,187
- assets (ji) — BE(ii) 1,128 336
Interest income FLEUY A 31,792 23,024
Others Hth 5,476 8,276
Total other income R N 83,579 59,823
Gains, net Wi R 5
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE = BHEE (7,210) (77)
Realised fair value gains from financial assets ZARBEABEHNESHEEN
at fair value through profit or loss BEER A EBEWEG 5,402 4,655
Unrealised fair value changes on financial BARBEFAEZNEREEDN
assets at fair value through profit or loss RERAAEBEED
- Wealth management products — B EM (36) (267)
- Unlisted convertible redeemable — JF 0 A e A A OB e R
preferred shares 21,986 58,167
Share of profits of an associate FEAGESE = N B 70 =
Gain/(loss) on early termination of leases FASRATR LR G ~(B518) 799 (144)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property, HEME - BRERBZBEEBH
plant and equipment, net i/ (E18) B8 325 (697)
Total gains WastBzE 21,336 61,637
Total other income and gains H b A R U 4258 104,915 121,460

(i)

The government grants related to income have been
received to reward for the Group’s contribution to
the local economic growth. These grants related
to income are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss upon receipt of these
rewards and the related conditions associated with
the rewards, if any, are met. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
grants.

The Group has received certain government grants
related to the investments in production plants.
The grants related to assets were recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss over
the useful lives of relevant assets. Details of these
grants related to assets are set out in note 30 to
financial statements.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR 5 A R
AEBRBRTFELENR /GIA)

(crediting):
2023 2022
—EC_=HF == —E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fEE AR%T ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA* 4,531,610 5,667,319
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZETE
equipment 14 37,216 24,346
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15(a) 34,281 31,199
Expenses relating to short-term leases I EAEAAY 15(c) 9,772 8,412
Amortisation of other intangible assets**  EfE & #8545+ 17 9,296 3,788
Employee benefit expense (including B E@AFZ (BEME
directors’, chief executive’s and FrIEMES HefTK
supervisors’ remuneration as set out in ABREEHM) :
note 9):
Wages and salaries ITERFS 377,347 375,813
Equity-settled share-based payment AR A E R AR D &
expenses AR RS = 4,604
Pension scheme contributions, social RIREETEIMHR g
welfare and other welfarex** &I Be EAth 43 1) 59,884 72,805
Other employee benefits E g B @A 26,151 31,370
Research and development costs**** TR AR N * % H % 8,537 9,981
Listing expenses A% 54,570 11,199
Impairment loss on financial assets S RVEERERRE 23 2,292 4,584
Impairment losses on inventories, net of  {FSREEE (FORREE)
reversal 22 (3,155) 3,898
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ B 7 B 2,850 283
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME WENMEREIEE
property, plant and equipment, net m(Wz) /B 6 (325) 697
Government grants BT D 6 (46,311) (28,523)
Foreign exchange differences, net SN Z REF R 6 7,210 77
Interest income F B A 6 (31,792) (23,024)
Finance costs B A AR 8 5,432 2,564
* Cost of inventories sold includes expense relating to depreciation & BEEFERABIELAYE  BE REE

* K

Kk kK

of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use
assets and staff costs, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types
of expenses.

The amortisation of other intangible assets is included in
administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Research and development costs include expenses relating to
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of
right-of-use assets and staff costs, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of
these types of expenses.

* Kk

*Kkkk

& ERREEETERERKAIERH
MER  NERFRELRZREREBR
BERRR AR

Hi\EENE - SEAGRRER
MITERX - HERDHEFAX °

BELW AR KA RAREESEER
HEHERBOEFKF o

MEKRABFEEDE  BERRER
B EREEENERERKAERN
BR NERELRREEREBRE
AR R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
—Eo=EER

245



246

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

8.

REMUNERATION

FINANCE COSTS 8. HIBAZAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRI -
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Interest on bank and other borrowings ER1T R H AL S 3F & 4,209 662
Interest on lease liabilities HEGEFE 1,627 1,902
5,836 2,564
Less: Interest capitalised Bk BRMERE 404 -
Total #Et 5,432 2,564
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. BEERBSTHRABSHM

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

REBLETRA - BB RAEMFS
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) (AR AR (H
BEFNDZEN) ROIFE —BRED
AEREERESITHRABFHMET

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: LU
2023 2022
—g== T
RMB’000 RI\/I/B'OOO
ARBT T AREETFIT
Fees W 288 -
Other emoluments: EAbEE -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZMREYMAE 6,970 6,370
Performance related bonuses BEwiEE 3,085 3,125

Equity-settled share-based payment LARERS AR ) AR (0 B B
expenses ol NE =3 - 4,604
Pension scheme contributions RIKS T B R 869 858
Subtotal Nat 10,924 14,957
Total @st 11,212 14,957

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BN EHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive AEEINFBIIFERITES
directors during the year were as follows: HELInT

2023
—E-=HF
Note RMB’000
i AR¥T T
Mr. Xiaosong Zeng TEEIA ST i 72
Ms. Fangjing Yu BPEREE L+ i 72
Mr. Jianfeng Li TRl i 72
Mr. Kangping Shi MERTF S i 72
Total BT 288

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the

year.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR MYt

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EENES{THRAEHH (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors, the (b) HITEE - FHTEE  BRe
chief executive and supervisors THAEBRES
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 20 B
REMAZ Fge STEIRR e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt AR¥TR AR%TR ARETR AR¥T
2023 —To=fF
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Xianjin Meng mRERE 1,320 750 135 2,205
Mr. Xinhua Li FRELE i 330 - 33 363
Mr. Haolei An TEREE 1,235 1,250 135 2,620
Ms. Na Luo Ert 1,000 200 135 1,335
Ms. Jiewen Li FHEXLL i 142 - 29 171
Subtotal et 4,027 2,200 467 6,694
Chief executive and eI UN=F 3
executive director: HiTES:
Mr. Mingchao Yang BB LS 1,440 600 135 2,175
Non-executive directors: FaTES
Mr. Jiayu Vi KEFLE - = = =
Mr. Xinghai Zeng DEEEE - - - -
Mr. Zhengzheng Liu BISFF R v - - - -
Subtotal NG - - - -
Supervisors: BEE:
Ms. Min Zheng BT 960 200 135 1,295
Ms. Yifan Zhang FEN LT i 403 80 102 585
Mr. Boyuan Zhang RIREE i 140 5 30 175
Subtotal et 1,503 285 267 2,055
Total aast 6,970 3,085 869 10,924
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EENES{THRAEHMH (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors, the (b) HTEE - FHTEE  Ro
chief executive and supervisors (Continued) THABRESE (F)
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Performance share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
inkind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
WNERES
54 2H , B e
REWNE Ens iolF3 HE:S HasE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MizE ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETTL ARETT
2022 —EoCF
Executive directors: EEES
Mr. Xianjin Meng AEERE 1,015 500 - 126 1,641
Mr. Xinhua Li FRELE i 1,015 500 - 126 1,641
Mr. Haolei An TERERE 1,493 500 91 126 3,040
Ms. Na Luo Efut 661 500 - 14 1,275
Ms. Jiewen Li B TL i 434 125 - 116 675
Subtotal gt 4,618 2,125 921 608 8,272
Chief executive and A TINE S
executive director: EIEE .
Mr. Mingchao Yang BRREA 1,091 500 3,683 126 5,400
Non-executive directors: ~ JFHTES :
Mr. Bin Chang EWEE i - - - - -
Mr. Jiayu Yi REFRHE - - - - -
Mr. Hongkai Li P E v - - - - -
Mr. Haitao Zhang Esdy e i - - - - -
Mr. Xinghai Zeng LEELE = 3 = = -
Subtotal U - - - - -
Supervisor: EE:
Ms. Min Zheng Pzt 661 500 - 124 1,285
Total it 6,370 3,125 4,604 858 14,957

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors, the

chief executive and supervisors (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Xiaosong Zeng, Ms. Fangjing Yu, Mr. Jianfeng Li and
Mr. Kangping Shi were appointed in March 2023.

Mr. Xinhua Li, Mr. Haitao Zhang, Mr. Bin Chang and Ms.
Jiewen Li resigned in March 2023.

Ms. Yifan Zhang and Mr. Boyuan Zhang were appointed in

February 2023.

Mr. Zhengzheng Liu was appointed in September 2023.

Mr. Hongkai Li resigned in September 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director

or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

9.

EERBSITRASHMH (F)

(b)

HITES - FUTES - &S
THRAEBRES (&)

Wi

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

BEESLE  BELLE - F
B ERIERETFRER T
—=FZARERE-

FMERE  FEREL F
W RERX L TR =T
=F=ABHE -

SRR 2t RIRIERSE R =
Po=FAREE -

ZFEEER T _=F A
xR

FRINACER_T_=FNA
BHT -

AFEERBEEERRITHRA
BHEXFRABRETAHEH

ke
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10. ZEZEFMNES

The five highest paid employees during the year included KEE  AEmaTWEETRTEMA
two directors (2022: one director and the chief executive), EE(ZE-__F: —ZEEKR
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. BRITBAER) - HFMEFBER L
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining 9 - RARRESHESITHA
three (2022: three) highest paid employees who are neither BZINMNEM=F(ZF=_=F : =
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follow: H) mEE B MEIINT
2023 2022
—EC-=F —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Salaries b 6,017 7,030
Performance-related bonuses B RS 1,473 1,230
Pension scheme contribution RSB 267 237
Total FE 7,757 8,497
The number of non-director and non-chief executive FESENIERRITRAENESTE
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the BAB(BEZMeNTRATEHE)
following bands is as follows: U
Number of employees
EBE A
2023 2022
—EC=F B F

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,249,001 to
RMB2,699,000)

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
(equivalent to RMB2,699,001 to
RMB3,149,000)

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
(equivalent to RMB3,149,001 to
RMB3,599,000)

2,500,001 7L 23,000,000 7T

(ZERARKE?2,249,001 TR

AER#2.699,0007T) 3 1
3,000,001 %752 3,500,000 70

(SERARK2,699,001 TR

ARM3,149,0007T) - 1
3,500,001 87T £ 4,000,000 7T

(ZERARS,149,001 TR

AR#3,599,0007T) - 1

Total

e 3 3

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

11.

INCOME TAX 1. P
2023 2022
—E-=5F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Current - PRC EH —

Charge for the year FAZH 48,842 13,845

(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior T (B BETR
years (2,445) 76
Deferred income tax (note 21) LTS (FizE21) 53,626 77,139
Total st 100,023 91,060

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% unless
subject to tax exemption.

Pursuant to an announcement [2022] No. 13 “The
Announcement on the Implementation of Preferential
Income Tax Policies for Small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise and Individual Industrial and Commercial
Households” issued by MOF and National Tax Bureau
on 14 March 2022, for a small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise with an annual taxable income amount below
RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000 included), on top of the
tax relief policies stipulated under “The Announcement
of Implementation on Inclusive Tax Relief Policy of
Small-scaled minimal profit enterprise” issued by MOF
and National Tax Bureau” (Cai shui [2019] No. 13), the
enterprise income tax will be further halved. That is, for
a small-scaled minimal profit enterprise whose annual
taxable income does not exceed RMB1,000,000, the
taxable income is reduced by 12.5%, and the enterprise
income tax is paid at the tax rate of 20%, as for the part
of the annual taxable income exceeding RMB1,000,000
but not exceeding RMB3,000,000, the taxable income is
reduced by 25%, the enterprise income tax shall be paid at
a rate of 20% from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

AEBAREREENELBTRE
AR B 8 2R M & & & RDA
RN BB

el SR

RIBF BB RPAEEE (T REMEH
D REZEFRETOEERGD - e
BOh - AR E R EN B AR REM
BHRBERH25% °

BEABSIREFRER T ==

= ATmOBEHBH(ERERE/ NI E
ENERIFFAMEHERBRRN
NEY(RE[2022]135%) « /AR
MEEFERAFAASETBBAR
#1008 T (EARB1008T) HIED
5 1 B BUEh K B A 48 S 4 A C I
A BB /N 2 R 1 R UL S UK
BB A (BA (201911358 ) 47 72 KR
REBCRER - BRFABSEMS
Boasry BT -_—_F—H—H
BE_ZT-_NE+_A=+—H %
FRMAHMEBHETERBARK1008
TUR) DB FIR 2 - BIR12.5% T A
FEMTLATISEE © 1220% M T R
¥EH  HERMHAEEBBA
R¥100BTETHBBARKEI008
TTRIED - BIE25% A AT TS
B 1R20% TR BN ZEFTSH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

11.

12.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
HK profit tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the Reporting period, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25%
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

11.

Fri&®t (&)
BB

AHEHEAFTEFESHEANEE
EENGTHERRANBERRE16.5%
AHRRRE  AKEN—HKERQR
BRON - %R E BT E IS ARG
B o %M B ERB AN
52,000,000/ 70128.25% H) Tt X 4%
B MER TR RIZ16.5%H)
T RBH o

HARBRBRAFMENRE (RARQF
MEKXZ B QR T AR
EEME) MPIE (REBRHE) WE
BRaT ¢

follows:
2023 2022
—E_=F B F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
Profit before tax FREERIFE 363,425 332,042
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BRPBEEMEHNE25%
FTSE9TIE 90,856 83,011
Effect of different tax rate TREBRENTE 312 248
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or HEETHRIBMTER
enacted by local authority EMASERE (1,020) -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of THAE AT T B
previous periods (2,445) 76
Expenses not deductible for tax R0 4,580 2,049
Research and development super deduction  FHZEINET AR (1,696) (2,493)
Tax losses and deductible temporary AR H TR IEE 18 & AT 0
differences not recognised TR ETE 9,436 8,169
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAREENBERHE RN E 100,023 91,060

DIVIDENDS

The proposed 2023 final dividend for the year of
RMBO0.0521 per ordinary share is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. (2022: Nil).

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE

12.

RS

Bk_ZT_=—FEREREERER
BAR#0.06217T - BEARFIRIR
REERFRIBSE RS LHER T AIE

Eo<_§__ :EAE)O

—



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,681,919,000 (2022: 2,589,553,000) in issue
during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue before the conversion into a joint stock
company was determined by assuming that the paid-in
capital had been fully converted into share capital at the
same conversion ratio as upon transformation into a joint
stock company in February 2023 (note 31).

13.

BRARAEBEREREARGLE
R & 7

EREARBHN BB ESTARER
AEBEFEFBRANFEERTER
& HY DN 9 $12,681,919,0000% (=
T~ —4F : 2,589,553,000/%) 5+ & °
M AR D A B AT B 21T E @A A AN
BEAHIBRREREABIR_SZ
=FZARHIARN A GIRERNE
B RBHE R ARAMmEE (K
31)°

(a)  Basic (@) EX
2023 2022
—E=F —E-CfF
Profit attributable to owners of the parent NREER ARGEFNE
(RMB’000) (ARETF T 239,636 229,907
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EFREARRTN
shares used in the basic earnings per LR DN 39 £

share calculation

2,681,919,000 2,589,553,000

Basic earnings per share (RMB cents)

BRELRAN (ARED

)

8.94 8.88

(b) Diluted

The Group had no potentially diluted ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2023. A calculation is done to determine the number
of shares that could have been issued by assuming
that the paid-in capital had been fully converted
into share capital at the same conversion ratio as
upon transformation into a joint stock company in
February 2023 (note 31).

(b) #E
BE_ZT-="Ft+_H=*1—
HIEFE - NREEWED L5
TBEEEL AR - REES
BEARBIR-ZTZ=F = Akl
AR R R AR A E R L =
EHER AR (HES1) - Al
TR E AR E I B A%
TN ERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Diluted (Continued)

Diluted earnings per share during year ended 31
December 2022 is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the parent
by the adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion
of the awards ("Award Interests”) under the Award
Interests Arrangement which was approved by the
board of the directors of the company in October
2019. These Award Interests granted shall be
subject to a performance-based vesting condition,
which means that the Company’s performance
targets of 2020, 2021 and 2022 shall be assessed as
the unlocking conditions. Subject to the satisfaction
of the performance condition, the Award Interests
held shall be unlocked in the proportion up to 1/3
of the total number of the Award Interests granted
provided that the 2020, 2021 or 2022 performance
targets had been met. All the remaining award
shares have been vested under the Award Interests
Arrangement in the year ended 31 December 2022,
thus the Award Interests Arrangement of the
Company ended thereafter.

13. BAREBRESRFAEARGS
REF (&)

(b)

8 (&)

BEZZE-_Z—F+=ZA=+—
HiEFEEREERFM
BEHERBRARIMBERIEF
EFEBR AL R BTG
AR MAE TS E - *$F“ﬁ
BRZZ—NE+ABAR
%Am&mﬁm%\ywa
BmEEE ([REER]) - 25
EREERERAERNEERNE
MHBEBGRYE SR TANT
NZE_TF T —FR
ZEZFMENBEEER
FRBRBR SR M T LAGEAE - R
W—EEBUIEHEOBRT « AT
FAERBERBIETBREER
HHREEREHEN =9 2—1
LLBIARBRIRE - AR ER =
ToFF 2T —F5F
TEWBEKRBIE - FTE R
NEBESEREE T ==
F+ZA=+—RALLFERE
REERTHER AR
A REER T E RN EBK
Lto

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
Profit attributable to owners of the parent NREA ARGTE
(RMB’000) (AR¥ETTT) 239,636 229,907
Weighted average number of ordinary AESRERBFERN
shares used in TR INAE
the basic earnings per share calculation 2,681,919,000 2,589,553,000
Adjustment for Award Interests %ffiﬁﬁﬂ§%£¢Fﬁj§?*k - 34,839,000
Weighted average number of ordinary FTESREERFERD
shares used in the diluted earnings per TR IR 8

share calculation

2,681,919,000 2,624,392,000

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents)

BREERN (ARED)

8.94 8.76

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR MYt

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRZE
Leasehold ~ Machinery Motor Office  Construction
Buildings improvem;gg equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total

g7 NERE  BERE hE HARE HRIE &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
N A ARRTR  ARBTT ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARWTR

31 December 2023 ZEIZETCAZT-A
At 1 January 2023; W-BZZE-A-R:
Cost A 216,465 14,799 55,209 22,650 36,382 50,828 396,133
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERWE
impairment (2,807) (10,152) (1,612) (9,709) (14,027) - (38,307)
Net carrying amount BEHE 213,658 4,647 53,507 12,741 22,355 50,828 357,826
At1January 2023, et of accumulated ~ R-F-=F-F-R"
depreciation and impairment TREFERAE 213,658 4,647 53,597 12,741 22,355 50,828 357,826
Additions HE 8,672 4,697 26,703 1,760 6,865 74,135 122,832
Depreciation provided ERGHERE
during the year . (12,422) (2,18) (8,157) (4,778) (9,641) = (37,216)
Disposals e - w9 () m (8 - )
Transfers HE 64,553 - 23,161 - - (87,714) -
At31 December 2023, net of accumulated N=F==F+-A=1-H "
depreciation and impairment TREFTERAE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17,131 37,249 440,820
At 31 December 2023: RB-ZF+-A=t-8:
Cost A 289,690 13,404 104,734 24,116 40,201 37,269 509,39
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (15,229) (6,767) (9,704) (14,410) (22,464) - (68,574)
Net carrying amount FEFE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17,737 37,249 440,820
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% -  BERRE (E)
(CONTINUED)
Leasehold ~ Machinery Motor Office  Construction
Buildings ~ improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF NEEE BRI Wi Rk ERIR )
RM’B’OOO RMB'000 RM’B'OOO RMB'000 RM’B’OOO RMB'OOO RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2022 I B
At 1 January 2022: R-E--£-F-R:
Cost A = 10,633 4,025 16,503 26,426 34,440 92,027
Accurnulated depreciation ZHERNE
and impairment = (2,803) (67) (5,491) (6,697) - (15,048)
Net carrying amount BHFE - 7,830 3,068 11,012 19,729 34,440 76,979
At 1 January 2022, et of accumulated ~ R=F==F-A-R-
depreciation and impairment B ZTERRE - 7,830 3,968 11,012 19,729 34,440 76,979
Additions HE 45,652 4,221 9,426 5230 6,254 79,765 150,548
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-EHELR 84,975 = 37,159 865 6,056 27,481 156,536
Depreciation provided EREHERE
during the year (2,807) (7,349) (1,585) (4,345) (8,260) - (24,346)
Disposals L& = (55) (391) (1) (1.424) - (1.891)
Transfers B+ 85,838 - 5,020 - - (90,858) -
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated R=F-=E+-A=1-H"
depreciation and impairment TR2sHERAE 213,658 4647 53,597 12,741 20,355 50,828 357,826
At 31 December 2022: RoBE--£+-fA=+-0:
Cost A 216,465 14,799 56,209 22,450 36,362 50,828 396,133
Accumulated depreciation ZERNE
and impairment (2,807) (10,152) (1,612 (9,709) (14,027) - (38,307)
Net carrying amount KEFE 213,658 4,647 53,597 12,741 22,355 50,828 357,826

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s buildings
and motor vehicles with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately RMB220,199,000 (2022: RMB107,138,000)
and RMB225,000 (2022: RMB303,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group,

respectively (note 27).

As at 31 December 20283, the Group has obtained the
property ownership certificates for all buildings (2022: the
buildings with carrying amount of RMB73,715,000 is in the

process of obtaining the certificates).

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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R-TE-_=F+-A=+—8 " £&
EARmFENARE 220,199,000
T (ZZE==F : AR®107,138,000
) M AREE225,000L (===
F: AR¥303,000) METFEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

15.

LEASES 15. #HE
The Group as a lessee REBIEREBA
The Group has lease contracts for items of office premises AEBBRELEFRARNIDEREE
and plant used in its operations. Lump sum payments were HEFIVHESGH - AEBERRAZE
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners FWEHBASOFMEE T HER —
with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments RERR - BreREZSI0HEE
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases ERERFEN - MAMEREE
of office premises and plant generally have lease terms RHEI—RE N F2255F -
between 2 and 5 years.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) (EAEEE
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and the RAFEE  FRAEEENERT
movements during the year are as follows: BEREBMNT :
Office
premises Leasehold
and plant land Total
WAV
REE HELH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T AR®ET T
As at 1 January 2022 R-_ZT-_—_F—H—H 58,440 21,975 80,415
Additions NE 23,100 = 23,100
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BB BT B N &) 558 79,762 80,320
Depreciation charge wESH (30,574) (625) (31,199)
Early termination of leases RAIKRIEEE (306) - (306)
As at 31 December 2022and R-_ZT-_—#F+—A
1 January 2023 =t+—HR=ZZE=_=F
—HA—H 51,218 101,112 152,330
Additions NE 24,966 - 24,966
Depreciation charge WweEZH (31,667) (2,614) (34,281)
Early termination of leases RARIEHE (7,301) - (7,301)
As at 31 December 2023 RZZE=—=F+=A
=+—A 37,216 98,498 135,714
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has respectively
obtained the land use right certificates for all
leasehold lands except for the leasehold land
with a carrying amount of RMB4,024,000 (2022:
RMB4,134,000) in which the Group is in the process
of obtaining the certificates.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
leasehold land with an aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RMB89,079,000 (2022:
RMB85,385,000) were pledged to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 27).

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

15.

HE (&)
AEEERFRA (H)

(a)

(b)

(L E (&)
RZEZ=Ff+=ZRA=+—
B AEEESRIREHMER
E b+ E AR - R
EEAARK4,024,00070 (=
T-=F : AR¥4,134,000
J0) MAEE i (REE EEH
BEE)BRIN -

R-B-_ZF+=—A=+—
H AEEREFEEBEOA
R#89,079,000t (===
F: ARM85,385,0007T0) &9
ETHETHEAEREEAM
BERITIERAEAR (H5E27) -

RERN - HERENKREEBR
ZET

2023 2022

—E-=HF B F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BREREAE 39,153 40,807

New leases e 24,966 23,100

Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— R B A7) - 544
Accretion of interest recognised F N FI S0

during the year 1,627 1,902

Payments BN (27,635) (27,038)

Early termination of leases AR LS (8,100) (162)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—AMEKAE 30,011 39,153

Analysed into: RUTEB D :
Current portion BHERER 5 17,849 19,938
Non-current portion JEBNEREE 2 12,162 19,215

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 40 to the financial statements.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

15.

16.

LEASES (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

15.

HE (%)
REBERFBRA ()
) HEERBEZEIANSHEN

to leases are as follows: T~
2023 2022
—E_=H —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEGEFR 1,627 1,902
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREBERES H 34,281 31,199
(Gain)/loss on early termination of leases  (RAIARIFAE R (W), EHiE (799) 144
Expense relating to short-term leases HGHRERENAY 9,772 8,412
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ~ RIBERAIELE 44,881 41,657

(d) The total cash outflows for leases are disclosed in
note 33(c) to the financial statements.

(d) FHEMRSHHAERIER
KUF5E33(c) WE o

GOODWILL 16. BHE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHK AR RREFE 138,010 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy BE — R BT B A A - 138,010
Cost and net carrying amount R+—A=+—B&
at 31 December A K BR BB 138,010 138,010
Impairment testing of goodwill AR ERR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is FBREBAHWENEESREER

allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of Luyi
Chengming Business for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the Luyi Chengming Business
CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets or forecasts approved by senior management
covering a five-year period. The long-term growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the period is
based on the estimated growth rate of the unit taking into
account the industry growth rate, past experience and the
medium or long-term growth target of the CGU.

EmEBHREELEN ([REESE
B ) EITRERIE ©

Ruu%ﬁkﬁfﬁ?iiﬁl_z—ﬂﬁ@
i%ﬁﬁgﬁ"@éﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁfzm B5t& Ty

RESREREI EN O F R BTE
X FRAELHNBESRETAANSEE -
AREEEERSRENRIPERE
DEREBUNG[FTERE - E9E
BETHEERX  BAELBRLAZRE
EABUNTRIERAERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following table set forth the pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections, the forecasted
average sales growth rate and gross profit margin used to
prepare cash flow projections and long-term growth rate
used for the dates indicated:

mE (|

AR R ()
TREFIR S BT ARADATILER
- ARRERSRERANERT
SRR EREMNELRARAR
BRI RE -

Average sales Average gross

growth rate

profit margin

(during the (during the
five-year five-year Long-term Pre-tax
period) period) growth rate discount rate

FHHEE

BRE FHERE
(EEHRE) (RFEHE) REOBERE BiAIBEIR =
31 December 2022 —E-—#+-A=+—H 15.3% 19.3% 2.3% 20.1%
31 December 2023 —E-=#+-A=1+—H 13.6% 23.9% 2.2% 19.3%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
Luyi Chengming Business CGU as at 31 December 2022
and 2023. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill of Luyi
Chengming Business CGU:

Budgeted sales amounts — The budgeted sales amounts
are based on the historical sales data and market outlook
perceived by management.

Budgeted gross margins — The bases used to determine
the values assigned to the budgeted gross margins are the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, adjusted for expected efficiency
gains and expected market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate reflect specific
risks relating to the CGU.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE

R-_E-_—FR-_T-_ZF+-A=
+—H 3 ;:f‘ﬁﬂﬁuuif&ﬁfﬁ\gi
BUNEREERERTRR -
Jl‘EEL EREANARES M=ETEA Tf?x
PRMEBKRSELEBMETEHER
BEARNZEIZMR

EHEHE - REHEEIAELH
%%%&aﬁ%ﬁm%mﬁmﬁ%%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16. ®E (&)
The values assigned to the key assumptions on market SEZEERARMAEBRCEEEMNT
development of the Luyi Chengming Business CGU and HERNFERZMNEE NI ESR
discount rate are consistent with external information INERE LR — B o
sources.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any RRARESZRE - AT RESEMKE
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on MEEZERENTAEEAEEEET
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause SEYEARMERRSELESEMD
the carrying amount of the Luyi Chengming Business CGU EHEBHAR-Z-_=F+=-H=
to exceed its recoverable amount as at 31 December 2023. +—HKAA K E S -
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HtBEEEE
Software Trademarks Patent rights Total
0y [i5p:d =R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr AR®ETT AR®T R AR®T
31 December 2023 —E_=5+ZA=+—H
Costat 1January 2023, netof R-ZT-_=F—HF—HH
accumulated amortisation B - HBR R AT 4,331 56,544 189 61,064
Additions NE 6,465 - - 6,465
Amortisation provided FREHEBE
during the year (3,548) (5,730) (18) (9,296)
At 31 December 2023 i S—:
+=-A=+—~H 7,248 50,814 171 58,233
At 31 December 2023: i
+=-A=+—8:
Cost A 18,509 57,065 190 75,764
Accumulated amortisation EHE: 3 (11,261) (6,251) (19) (17,531)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,248 50,814 171 58,233
31 December 2022 ZEZZHf+ZA=1+—H
Costat 1January 2022, netof R-ZT-—_F—H—HMHK
accumulated amortisation A Bk RETEE 5,964 99 - 6,063
Additions NE 1,242 21 . 1,263
Acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—HEME AR 392 56,944 190 57,526
Amortisation provided during  FREEEE
the year (3,267) (520) (1) (3,788)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+=-A=1+—8~ 4,331 56,544 189 61,064
At 31 December 2022: i
TZA=t—H:
Cost AR 12,044 57,065 190 69,299
Accumulated amortisation EGE it (7,713) (521) (1) (8,235)
Net carrying amount FREFE 4,331 56,544 189 61,064
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REEZEQATNRE
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEF T
Share of net assets ELEEFE 2,070 2,000
Particulars of the associate are as follows: B NRIMEBIT ¢

Proportion of
nominal value

of registered Proportion
Place of capital held of voting Principal
Name incorporation by the Group power held activity
REE i
EMER P
=g AR SZ 3t 26 E{E A RERELL A FEXK
Henan Maojiu Xiaopu Business PRC 20% 20% Management
Management Co., Ltd. service
AEE B NEEEERRRAR P E EIRRTE
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of Group’s RZEBZ=F+ZA=+—H &%
investment in an associate was RMB2,070,000 (2022: ER—HEEARNKREREEAA
RMB2,000,000), which is not considered as material to R¥2070,000(ZEZ-F : AR
financial statements of the Group. #2,000,0007T) © ¥AREE W

RMELFEA -

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19. EERAAEBE:TAHEMZE

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE KR RERE
INCOME
2023 2022
—B-=5F —E o4&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRERE - RAAEE
J&T Global Express Limited (‘J&T Express”) BRIEFEIRKER A A
(MME%REIE]) 158,561 -
Subtotal /NET 158,561 -
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value EEMRERE - RANEE
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. (“Daixiaji”) ERIBELERMmARAR
(M| 1) 52,271 57,260
Lekou Xiamen Technology Co., Ltd. 20 (EM)BERAT
(“Lekou Xiamen”) (Tgo (EF) 1D 42,258 41,578
Subtotal 2N 94,529 98,838
Total #at 253,090 98,838
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated BRAEER R L RERE AR
at fair value through OCI as the Group considers these ME - MZFRET AR E I E R
investments to be strategic in nature. AABEFTAHEMEERE -
In October 2023, the Group acquired 11,060,000 shares of RZEBEZ=F+A  xAEBEEHEE
J&T Express which has been a Hong Kong listed company AER#123,047,000 T W BB %R R 3R IE
engaged in express delivery business, at a consideration of 11,060,000 A A A7 » 45 R 4RI /5 — =R
RMB123,047,000. REREXBHNEE LT RA °
20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HMERBEE
2023 2022
—EC-=F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETTT
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment #% - BiE &R & T 7K 18 22,273 24,141
Prepayment for other intangible assets HAb R A E B RIE 2,251 6,816
Total wat 24,524 30,957
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX 21. EERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are BEHEEERNFEMES T
as follows:
Losses
available for
offsetting
against Deductible
future advertising
taxable expenses in Lease
profits the future liabilities Accruals Total
AR SRR
PERBLFIE ARAHH
ZEB BEEEX HEAE &R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETR ARBT R ARBTR AR®T T
At 1 January 2023 RZE=Z=5—HA—H 75,321 307 9,788 37,898 123,314
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to  FRM4FABIER
the consolidated statementsof ~ (308%),/ 5t AH)
profit or loss during the year BEHE (46,948) (230) (2,285) 2,660 (46,803)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 RZEZ=F
December 2023 +ZRA=1+—H#
EERBEERE 28,373 77 7,503 40,558 76,511
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—%—F—H 145,147 1,985 10,202 27,296 184,630
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to  FRMFABER
the consolidated statements of (18,5t A4
profit or loss during the year BRI (69,826) (1,678) (414) 10,602 (61,316)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 i S
December 2022 +ZRA=+—Hf
ERERIBEERE 75,321 307 9,788 37,898 123,314

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses of RMB126,863,000
(2022: RMB83,973,000) arising in Chinese Mainland,
respectively, which will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the tax losses and deductible temporary differences
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21. EEHIE (&)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year BEFHTEBERNFENES T

are as follows:

Unrealised
gainsfrom  Unrealised
equity  gains from Asset
investments financial  revaluation
designated assetsatfair arisingfrom  Accelerated
Right-of-use  at fairvalue value through business tax
assets  through OCl profit orloss combinations  depreciation Total
BEEDA

BEFA  RAAEE

At2mEbsE  FAREN

HRERE THEE REBAHEL
ERREE NAZRYE HARRKE  NEEER MERERE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

At 1 January 2023 RZZ_=§-H-H 10,311 3,459 14,542 36,963 2,866 68,141
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to the ERRBARRE (GINA
consolidated statements of profitor 1B HELHE

loss during the year (3,372) - 5,496 (2,505) 7,204 6,823
Deferred tax charged to OCI REMZERENRE
BIERR - 7,801 - - - 7,801
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZZ=F
31 December 2023 TZA=+-Af/
‘FUR’IE’EF%%E 6,939 11,260 20,038 34,458 10,070 82,765
At 1 January 2022 W-E--%-F-H 11,039 500 = = = 11,539
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ﬁl’\] MraEREE L)/
the consolidated statements of NROELHIE
profit or loss during the year (728) = 14,542 (857) 2,866 16,823
Deferred tax charged to OC| REMZERENRE
ERERE = 2,959 = = = 2,959
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HHBAR - - - 37,820 - 37,820
Gross deferred tax liabilities at i —a
31 December 2022 TZA=t—AH
ERREaEER 10,311 3,459 14,542 36,963 2,866 68,141
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MEFNEMME  BETELERBEEE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statements REBREREE BRI EANEE -
of financial position. The following is an analysis of the AT Bt i smE B a8 A& ERE
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting HIREMRIEL R DT
purposes:
2023 2022
—Z=-= o4&
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RER S BTSN R R Y
consolidated statements of financial RIERIHE EIFE
position 60,160 116,534
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised inthe ~ R#&Ré& ﬁﬁxﬂkﬁ%ﬂ\]ﬁ@w
consolidated statements of financial RIERIE B EFRE
position 66,414 61,361
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

22.

23.

INVENTORIES 22. =&
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Raw materials AR 87,945 94,774
Finished goods UK o 632,313 956,528
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE (743) (3,898)
Total st 719,515 1,047,404
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the reversal of He—_Z-_=F+_A=+—HItHF
inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted to B REERARRNEFERE /A
RMB3,155,000 (2022: impairment of RMB3,898,000). R#3,155,0007T (ZE =% : /A
AR#3,898,0007T) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. ESZEWFEIE
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 61,565 139,335
Impairment BE (7,302) (5,010)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 54,263 134,325

Included in the Group’s trade receivables was amount due
from the related party of RMB4,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB10,357,000), which are recoverable within
one year.

Advance payment is normally required for the sale to
franchisees in Chinese Mainland except for direct sales
customers where credits are granted. The credit period
is generally one month, extending up to six months for
major direct sales customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to various diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. The
balances of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

g5 RWRIE (&)

RBER - BB REFIR (FNERE
BEE) REZAHNKREOTOT

2023 2022

—E=F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARBT T

Within 1 month 1MEAR 30,598 51,494
1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 5,291 80,681
3to 6 months 3&E6fEA 1,600 684
6to 12 months 6=1218A 16,771 1,182
1to 2 years 18224 8 284
Total st 54,263 134,325

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

B 5 & UK TR R (6 5 18 1k (s Y £ B 4D

trade receivables are as follows: T
2023 2022
—EC_=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
At beginning of year REA]) 5,010 426
Impairment loss, net (note 7) REEERFE (HE7) 2,292 4,584
At end of year RER 7,302 5,010

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for
all trade receivables. The Group overall considers the
characteristics of the shared credit risk and the days past
due of the trade receivables to measure the expected
credit losses. Majority of the receivables were neither
past due nor impaired and relate to diversified customers
for whom there was no recent history of default and in
general, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

7 £% B e P PR B 7 R e A R S 9 5%
RENBET AR RBEEBRTIR
B RIDERFRLATA B 5 R UGR
HEREHNEMEEERESE - £&
EREZEARCEERRNEHLE
SRWFIRH B HIRE - At ETRH
EEER - Ko BUKIAR &R
JRER(E - B BT B0 B HE R RC R
ZEEFER  —RME - HalB
B—FHBRETRBINITES - B
5 FE WK IR A W3S o
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. EZEWFIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk EEASERAREEMTENES
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a ERFBENEERBRERSTINT
provision matrix:
At 31 December 2023 RZB_=F+-_HA=+—H
Past due
g
Within 3to 6to 1to
Current 3 months 6 months 12 months 2years Total
BE AR 3Z6fA  6Z12{8R 182F i
Expected credit loss rate BHREEHEZ 1.04% 5.25% 12.01% 64.75% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEeE(ARETT) 30,655 7,004 19,255 993 3,658 61,565
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BREEHE(ARETT) 320 368 2,313 643 3,658 7,302
At 31 December 2022 RN-TE-_—_F#+-A=+—H
Past due
Within 3to 6to
Current 3months 6 months 12months  1to2years Total
IE 3EAM 3Z6fA  6Z12(8A 122F @zt
Expected credit loss rate BHEEFER 0.61% 3.33% 9.25% 36.91% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RELE(AREFT) 51,808 84,032 800 1,387 1,308 139,335
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BEEEER(ARETT) 314 2,802 74 512 1,308 5,010
24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. FEfFIE HttEWRERHE
OTHER ASSETS =
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Prepayments TR IR 246,385 230,092
Deposits e 26,656 28,124
Receivables due from online payment FEMWTEAR S S F &R
platforms 4,910 61,455
Recoverable VAT AR EIEER 104,170 61,800
Amounts due from related parties FE UG BRESE 5 SR IE 569 22,063
Others ) 25,978 36,580
Total @5t 408,668 440,114

Included in the Group’s prepayments, other receivables

and other assets are prepayments to the related

parties and deposits due from a related party of nil and
RMB569,000 (2022: RMB22,063,000 and nil), respectively,
which are recoverable within one year.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

24, PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24.

OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at the end of the
reporting period, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  25.

PROFIT OR LOSS

BANRE - HttEWRERE

b & & (&)

FH A LA L AR & BRE B ST S0 R
R B ERRSBNREHAE
Mo RIEMK - BERBEIES

E e

BARBEFABRENERE
E

2023 2022
—EBC-=F o4&
RMB’000 RM}B'OOO
AR®ET T ARET T
Current portion BREAER 2
Wealth management products (i) IBEAE M) 211,031 50,067
Non-current portion FEENHIER 2
Unlisted convertible redeemable FE LT AT iR Al iE mIB S AR (i)
preferred shares (ii) 209,861 187,875
Total 1ast 420,892 237,942
(i) The Group and the Company entered into a series of wealth (i) AEE R AN BER B AR TR S —

management products agreements with banks in Chinese
Mainland. The investments are principal guaranteed. The expected
rates of return ranged from 1.05% to 2.90% per annum during the
reporting period.

(ii) The Group held certain unlisted convertible redeemable preferred
shares, whereby the Group has the option to either convert
preferred shares into shares of the investee or withdraw funds
from the investee.

ROBMERGZ - ZFRERRAN
Ao NREHR - RERBEN FEF

1.05%%£2.90% °

(i) AEEFRAE T LA EARELEE
B Bt ARERRERELERE
BARIRE T RO IR E S B
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

26. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK 26. RHIBTER  RERBITLE

BALANCES AND RESTRICTED CASH SBRURZREIIRE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Long-term bank deposits RHISRITTER 453,871 526,208
Cash on hand and cash at bank FHELRRITES 1,173,274 694,954
Short-term bank deposits GHAIRTTIF X 244,322 =
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITEERR 1,417,596 694,954
Restricted cash ZRRFIRE 64,220 42,164

The long-term bank deposits, cash and bank balances
and restricted cash are denominated in the following

RHIRITHER - HERRITEHRNUR
ERHBEIATINEREHE -

currencies:
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMBYOOO
ARET T ARBT T
Long-term bank deposits REIRITIFR
RMB AR 453,871 526,208
Cash and bank balances denominated in AT EREHERR & RIRTTA %
RMB AR 1,024,909 692,016
UsD ETT 8 8
HK$ BT 392,679 2,930
1,417,596 694,954
Restricted cash ZRHIRE
RMB AR 64,220 42,164

Cash and bank balances earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank deposits
are made for varying periods of between one year and
three years depending on the cash management of the
Group. The bank balances and deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s restricted cash of
RMB64,220,000 (2022: RMB42,164,000) was reserved for
receipts in advance from prepaid cards in accordance with
relevant regulations issued by Ministry of Commerce of
PRC.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

27.

(ii)

(2022: RMB5,000,000) guaranteed by a close family member of a

director of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
of RMB60,083,000 were secured by certain property, plant
and equipment and right-of use assets with the carrying
amounts of RMB220,199,000 (2022: RMB107,138,000) and
RMB89,079,000(2022: RMB85,385,000), respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s secured other borrowings (ii)

of RMB191,000 (2022: RMB244,000) were secured by certain
property, plant and equipment of RMB225,000 (2022:

RMB303,000).

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. T ESITREMMER
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
ot it St 2
Effective Effective
interest interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
. ERA= . BIRI= e
(iR (%) IEKE  ARETR (%) IEeE  ARETR
Current il
Bark loans - secured A8 - KR 450-5.00 4 52088 500 2013 5,076
Bank loans - unsecured HITER - BER 4.40-450 202 20,000 450 2023 40,309
Other borrowings - secured Atz - A i 6.90 2024 5 690 2023 5
Total - current B - 04 72,135 95,438
Non-current #HH
Bank loans - secured R/ITEHN - RER i 5.00 2027 8,000 - - -
Other borrowings - secured Hftfest - HEA i 690  2025-2027 139 690 2024-2027 191
Total - non-current B85 - F0H 8,139 191
Total E 80,274 95,629
2023 2022
—ZE_-= &
RMB’000 RM/B'OOO
ARET T ARBT T
Analysed into: RATIER 24
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: AEENBTEREREY :
Within one year or on demand —FRFIRER 72,083 95,385
In the second year REZF 4,000 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FZERF
(EEREME) 4,000 =
Subtotal et 80,083 95,385
Other borrowings repayable: B EERER
Within one year —FRN 52 53
In the second year MRE_F 52 52
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FZ2ERF (FEEMF) 87 139
Subtotal NEF 191 244
Total #Et 80,274 95,629
(i) As at 31 December 2023, there were no secured bank borrowings (i) RZBZ=F+=-"A=+—8 ' #ER

AR BEEN— RO RERERRT
BER(ZZ =% : AR%5,000,000

JT) °

R—_EBE-_=ZF+_A=+—8 -
AEEMAEERRITERARE
60,083,0007C * D RIAKREERARE
220,199,000c (=T == : AR
107,138,0007T) & AR ¥89,079,000
T(ZT-—%: AR%¥85,385,000
TT)HETYE  BEREREARER
REEEEER -

R-ZZE-_=F+-A=+—H ~&£E
BHEFEMERARE191,0007T (=
T_—4F : AR¥244,0007T) AEE
AR¥E225,000L (ZF==F : AR
¥303,0007T) KB TH% - BE K&
EEEIR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EBEFEMNFIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end T ARBRERIEZEZEHEINN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as S RN FRIENRR DT
follows:
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREBT T
Within 1T month MEAR 404,909 531,637
1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 49,064 40,629
3to 6 months 3Z=6@A 1,325 1,891
6 months to 1 year 6fE A ZEF 900 1,362
Over 1 year A1 F 1,099 1,962
Total #Et 457,297 577,481
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally B RNFIAENTE - BERI0XA
settled within 30 days. KEE e
Included in the Group’s trade payables are amounts due to RZFBZ=F+ZA=+—H " 3A
a related party of RMB4,916,000 as at 31 December 2023 REBE 5 e OB & BREE T 3K
(2022: RMB7,083,000). HAEAR®L,916,000(ZE ==
F : AR¥7,083,0007T) °
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HMENRERETER
2023 2022
—EC-=HF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E AR®T T AREEF T
Staff salaries, bonuses and EEEMEE B4R
welfare payables el 97,084 115,829
Other payables for property, plant and Y% - B R
equipment H b FEIS K18 26,559 39,104
Other tax payables E oS RLIE 13,287 40,550
Contract liabilities BHAaE i 92,829 91,140
Deposits we i 133,487 111,525
Collection of the sales of franchised A0 B3 g U B N B2 TE Y
stores on behalf of franchisees HER iii 630 2,509
Receipt on behalf of franchisees for £ B2 7 R
prepaid cards TEfSRFKIE iv 169,292 118,223
Accrued expenses JEETE R 20,676 54,320
Other payables E b 5RIE 23,452 16,319
Total 4t 577,296 589,519

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29.
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

HtENREARETER (&)

(i) EHEBHEMAWMT :

2023 2022
—E_=F —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Short-term advances received B & BB 2 B # 50
from customers
Sale of home meal and other food HEERERERK
related products Etb R mIEREE R 21,930 22,190
Operational support service fee REEERBE 70,899 68,950
Total contract liabilities BHEERE 92,829 91,140

The contract liabilities changed during the year due

BHABERFAREMNEKREE

to fluctuation in operational support service fee
with advanced payments.

The balance represents the refundable initial
deposits received from franchisees upon entering
into franchise agreements.

The amount would normally be repaid to the
franchisees on a daily basis, subject to provisions
set out in the franchise agreements.

Receipt of sales proceeds from prepaid cards
represents the advance receipts from the end
customers who add value to their prepaid cards. The
Group receives the amount on behalf of franchisees
and such amount is settled when the end customers
use the cards to purchase goods in stores.

(iii)

(iv)

HRBBOEDTED -

IR RN BB A R AT R AT
LR A REVRRES

RBFHFEEHENRTE @ &
EFRABRRAEETINER
E;ﬁo

HEFEN R U B 35 & P 1S 30R
EERmEFRAEBNRFEE
B FEMIR - AEE K IR
WBGRIR - B R SRR R i
FaEEREREN REERM

B4 o

In=E=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. EIEIRA
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEF T
Government grants BT B 18,260 7,335
Movements in government grants of the Group during the REBERFANBTRHBIZEINT :
year are as follows:
2023 2022
—FE-=HF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
At beginning of year REH] 7,335 -
Government grants received ELUCER B BT # B 12,053 7,671
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERNGFTALGREIBRE
profit or loss during the year (1,128) (336)
At end of year RER 18,260 7,335
The Group received government grants for capital REERYE BMELKLBEAEED
expenditure incurred for property, plant and equipment. BEARASZWEBAEE - 25280
The amounts are deferred and amortised over the BB ERGET A F A F B RE R
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 8 ©

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2023 —E==F+=-A=+—H

31.

SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL 31.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital

is as follows:

B BHER
AATRANEBHHEEMT -

Number of Share
shares in issue capital
BRITRGEE [ &
Nofte RMB’000
=3 AR¥T T
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 _E::$+ A=+—H
kZZT-_=%—H—H - -
Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion BRARNDBRRRAET
into a joint stock company TR a 2,670,000,000 2,670,000
Issuance of new shares upon listing on the REBE R PT LR EITHR
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 77,360,400 77,360
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=f+_-A=+—H 2,747,360,400 2,747,360
Paid-in capital
BRHER
Nojce RMB’000
B3 ARET T
At 31 December 2022 and EA_§::¢+ R=+—Hk
1 January 2023 —T-=%—H—H 20,993
Issue of ordinary shares upon ERARNHABRARBEITLER
conversion into a joint stock company a (20,993)
As at 31 December 2023 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H -
(a) In February 2023, the Company was converted into a joint stock () RZZTZ=F_R ' ARAREF

company with limited liability under the Company Law of the PRC.
The net assets of the Company as of the conversion base date,
including paid-in capital and reserves, amounting to approximately
RMB2,678,174,000 were converted into 2,670,000,000 ordinary
shares of RMB1.00 each. The excess of the net assets converted
over the nominal value of the ordinary shares was credited to the

Company’s capital reserve.

BRArEZ2E ARMHERDA ° &
FEBEEAY  ARARHARE
2,678,174,000 THIFEE (BIEER
AR KfFE) BEi%A2,670,000,000
AR EEARY1.00TH L@ - &
BRENEEFERL T BRMENID
SEARRD RN E AN o
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity in financial statements.

(i) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
companies registered in the PRC are required to
allocate 10% of the statutory after tax profits to the
statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the
reserve reaches 50% of the companies registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, the statutory reserve may be used
to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the companies. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
equity holders of the PRC subsidiaries.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents
the excess of the consideration received for
subscription of the registered capital of the
Company and costs borne by the Controlling
Shareholders, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin
and Mr. Li Xinhua in prior years.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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AEBENFEIEZBRUMBRERN
RARnEHRAZY -

EERE

RIBHBERBE - 5 B
B R RIZBRRERR B IR A B R
0% BREEERHE  BER
BORRBEEDQREME
AH)50% ° FFHEARE Rt
R - RERE R AR T
fa] R T B 1R I8 N1 B HO RE A
B O XERBTAARAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB24,966,000 (2022:
RMB23,100,000), in respect of lease agreements.

In February 2023, the Company was converted
into a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC. The net assets
of the Company as of the conversion base date,
including paid-in capital and reserves, amounting to
approximately RMB2,678,174,000 were converted
into 2,670,000,000 ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each. The excess of the net assets converted over
the nominal value of the ordinary shares was
credited to the Company’s capital reserve.

33.

RERSRERME

(a)

FTEHRRERS

BHE-_T-_=F+=-A=+
—BLEFE  AEEEHEMA
EMENERAEESEREE
EEMNERESAREAARKE
24,966,000 (===
AFR#23,100,0007T) °

RZEBEZ=F=ZH &R
AR R B A R AR Hl A
BHBRAG - BHEEKR
AEEAH  KRARAHARKE
2,678,174,000 TR & EF A
(BREEARALMFEE) B8
#42,670,000,000 &R ™=
BEARE1.00THEEKE - &
RHEMEEFEBLTBRA
BEREDETARRBHERGE
f& o

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) WEIBHELEEBENEE
activities
Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities
BITR
HAibfER HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T AR%T R
At 1 January 2022 KR-ZT—_—4—A—H - 40,807
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREL 39,967 (27,038)
New leases FiHE - 23,100
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—FMERR 55,000 544
Accretion of interest recognised F AR TSI 0E
during the year 662 1,902
Early termination of leases RAIKRIERE - (162)
At 31 December 2022 and R_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8K
1 January 2023 —E-=%#—HF—H 95,629 39,153
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRER (19,564) (27,635)
New leases HEE - 24,966
Accretion of interest recognised F AR F) BILIE
during the year 4,209 1,627
Early termination of leases RAKRIEHEE - (8,100)
At 31 December 2023 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 80,274 30,011
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2023 —E==F+=-HA=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 33. RSB E&RERMET (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c)  Total cash outflow for leases (c) SRS B
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FAZERERERNEE
consolidated statements of cash flows is as follows: ML AATEINT ¢
2023 2022
—E-=F = =Sl =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Within operating activities KREEHN 9,772 8,412
Within financing activities RE )RR 27,635 27,038
37,407 35,450
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. FAEE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any RZBZ=F+=ZA=+—1H " K&&
significant contingent liabilities. B EEREARRALE -
35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEEHR
Details of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other REBUHEEEERNGT ERITRE
borrowings, which are secured by the assets of the Group, B R B E P B SRR 5T 27 o

are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

36. COMMITMENTS 36. &iE

The Group had the following contractual commitments at REBRREHARNELFRENT
the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022
—=E-= —ZE-
RMB’000 RM/B'OOO
AR¥F T AREF T
Contracted, but not provided for purchase MEEWE  WERREZITO
of property, plant and equipment BREEERIE 41,307 25,815

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.

The Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties:

BB LR 5
RAFEE  AEBEEBBIBENUTR

5

(a) EEEABESAIRS :

2023 2022
—EB-=HF —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Sale of goods HEEm
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (i) HERERmARATE) 5,237 33,107
5,237 33,107
Purchase of goods BESm
Luyi Chengming (ii) BRI - 252,631
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (i) LERERRERAT) 108,287 113,637
108,287 366,268
Purchase of services B B IR 7%
Luyi Chengming Industrial Zone BegEREXER
Management Co., Ltd. (“Chengming ERBRATR
Management”) (iii) (MEBAERR D) (i) 31 555

(i)

(iii)

Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. has been identified as
a related party of the Group as it was held by a supervisor
of Luyi Heyi, a subsidiary acquired by the Group in August
2021.

Luyi Chengming has been identified as a related party of
the Group as it was controlled by Ms Yang Tongyu, Mr.
Yang Mingchao’s close family member. Luyi Chengming
has been subsequently acquired by the Group in
November 2022 and became a subsidiary of the Group.

The sales to the related parties were made according
to the published prices and conditions offered to the
major customers. The purchases from the related parties
were conducted in the ordinary course of business and
based on commercial terms mutually agreed by the
counterparties.

Chengming Management was identified as a related party
of the Group from August 2022 to May 2023 as it was
controlled by Ms. Yang Mingchao’s close family member.
Chengming Management was subsequently disposed to
independent third parties in May 2023 and was ceased to
be a related party of the Group since then.

(i)

(iif)

HR LERERMERARR
REER-_T=—4F\AIKE
EF B R AR — PR — R E
EFHE  MRAABERERSK
SEHRER T ©

HREARABABERLZ LT
(BNiZABEERTRRE)
1l MR A TEREAASE
RS o FRARMBEER
—E - —F+— ARAEEK
B YRAREENKER
o

RIRAEE T EH M E E 2R IR
TERFESNEAMERRK
RATAETT - 2R B BARE TS MR
REFEBBEFEREGLT
H R TE HO R 2 (R TRAETT o

R ERAERHGABLER
ABRRBR _ZT_—_FN\AZE
T =Fh AE - A
RIEZ R REAAEED
RAE T c BEABEHBN T
CEFRARBETELE=S
B AR TEANEE
HREEE T o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37. BE(A R 5 (&)

(b)  Guarantees (b)

As disclosed in note 27 to financial statements,
the Group’s bank loans of RMB5,000,000 were
guaranteed by a close family member of a director
of the Company as at 31 December 2022. No such
guarantees as at 31 December 2023.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (c)
the Group

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group, which comprises the remuneration of
the directors, is disclosed in note 9 and note 10 to
financial statements.

R

BANEE Fs R SE 27 T ER -
RZBEZZF+ZH=+—
B A5ENRITERAR
# 5,000,000 TTAHA ARG K —
BEEN—ROBKBIRMHE
ReRZBZ=F+_A=+
—BYESBER -

REBMETEEEASHH

REFBFBEEEABEHTH (B
REFHI) N BRI
K10HFE -

(d)  Outstanding balances with related parties (d) EERFE S HIREEEH
2023 2022
—EBEC-=F = S
RMB’000 RM/B'OOO
AR%T ARBFIT
Trade receivables B 5 W IE
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. EEEERMERAT 4 10,357
Amounts due from related parties JE W RS 5 FRIE
(trade in nature) (BHHE)
Prepayments TEfT IR
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. LERERRARAT - 21,078
Chengming Management AR - 985
Deposits b
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. EBRHEREMAR AR 569 -
Total amounts due from related parties JRE W BB Bs 5 IR AR 569 22,063
Trade payables Z S FIE
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. EEEERMERAR 4,916 7,083

Amounts due from the related party were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit
terms, and amounts due to the related party were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 30
days.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR MYt

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. RERBIHNERMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REESRR  SERITANEREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as N
follows:
2023 —E-=F
Financial assets EHREE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets at
through fair value
profit or loss through OCI
RAAEE
RAREE FTAEAM
ATABE 2EKEER
SREE SREE
Financial
Equity assets at
Mandatorily investments  amortised cost Total
RBHEE AR
Bl RERE NEREE wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT

Equity investments designatedat ~ #EERALBEFAEBZEK

fair value through OCI R RERE - 253,090 - 253,090
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABENEREE

through profit or loss 420,892 - - 420,892
Long-term bank deposits REBHETEH - - 453,871 453,871
Trade receivables g5k - - 54,263 54,263
Financial assets included in STATFUE - B ERIR

prepayments, other receivables REMEENSREARE

and other assets - - 58,113 58,113
Restricted cash RRARE - - 64,220 64,220
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTES - - 1,417,596 1,417,596
Total mm 420,892 253,090 2,048,063 2,722,045

Financial liabilities Ea= =N

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBHR AR

Hemas

RMB’000

ARMT T

Trade payables B 5 eI 457,297
Financial liabilities included in SAHMENTIARESERN

other payables and accruals TRIBE 374,096

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMBR 80,274

Total #Et 911,667

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. ZERIZESsMEmIEA (&)

(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RWERR - SRR TANKEE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as IR (5E)

follows: (Continued)

2022 —TCF
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets at
through fair value
profit or loss through OCI
ROAEE
BROAERE STAEAM
FTABREN 2EYE
SRAE MemEE
Financial
Equity assets at
Mandatorily investments  amortised cost Total
REHERA
HEM
ey AR A SREE et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETR ARETFT ARETFT

Equity investments designated EERAABESARLEEZEK

at fair value through OCl mARER A - 98,838 - 98,838
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAEENEREE

through profit or loss 237,942 = = 237,942
Long-term bank deposits RERTER - - 526,208 526,208
Trade receivables BHRIHE - - 134,325 134,325
Financial assets included in FABARE - AtEKHIER

prepayments, other receivables HEENSREE

and other assets = = 126,159 126,159
Restricted cash ZRHIRES - - 42,164 42,164
Cash and bank balances ReRBTHEH - - 694,954 694,954
Total Fobs 237,942 98,838 1,523,810 1,860,590

Financial liabilities TREE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

| IREERR

TENSRARE

RMB’000

AREFT

Trade payables B S IER I 577,481
Financial liabilities included in SARMENTEREFEANERARE

other payables and accruals 341,999

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMER 95,629

Total FoH 1,015,109

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
management of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the board of directors. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the board of
directors for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values.

The fair value of long-term bank deposits has been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The carrying
amounts of long-term bank deposits approximate to their
fair values.

39.

ERMIEANAAREBERAIAE
EHER

EEECDHERE RRITESR  XR
HIRE - EHEFRIE - FEATRNK
H - HtREER A EEN SR
BE  RRITREMER  BEFHE
NE -~ FEARMEN KA REE
AnERmAEnNAREEREREE
HE - TEARZSFTANE R
EIAER

AEENEXMBEFAREES R
TARREEEENBRENIESR - &
EVBEGERRAYBEERESTS
ER - NBEHREEH - ERMBEEK
SMEMTAEENES  YEEM
EFERNEZRASE - AERY
ﬁ?@%ﬁ%’?&?ﬁt?& o [H{EBENE
TEEEETmAELFEM RS -

TREEMBBENANBELERA

#77 CRARBREERIN BRI S

‘:F‘EZIEEI’JTX?’;’ S BARR o AR
AREERERA TIIDEREBR °

RHRTERNAABEDNRAAR
BLUEK - EERREFSEIH B

TEZAEANBETAXE AR
RIBEREE - RERITFERAE
HEEEAABERS
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AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
unlisted convertible redeemable preferred shares and
wealth management products issued by banks in Chinese
Mainland. The fair value of the convertible redeemable
preferred shares is established by using option pricing
models. The Group has estimated the fair value of wealth
management products by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at
fair value through OCI, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives
as inputs to the valuation model.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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EE&R (&)
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M DA EE IR EA R AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2023

ERMIANDIABERAAE
EHER (&)

UWTTAEBR-_ZE-_=%+_-_HA=+—H
RZZE-_ 4T AFENEART
ARG ABERERE(LHRESD

and 2022: #r
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair value
technique unobservable input Range to the input
BEARAEE DNABEEHEA
fh{E R BWABE gE BENSRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Median EV/EBITDA 2023:13.86 5% increase/decrease in
investment at fair multiples multiple of peers multiple would result in
value through OCI increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,980,900
RAREBEFAEME AEREH RfT%(EE EBITDA —ZT==%: EEEE I, D 5% G E R
E R IE AR R 88 13.86 REEEM,OHDARE
®E 2,980,9007T
Average P/E multiple  2023: 35.35 5% increase/decrease in
of peers multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,112,900
BESZSF-E —Eo=%: fEBUE, B D5% IS ERA
35.35 SRBEEM A AR
2,112,9007T

Average P/S multiple  2022:1.06

5% increase/decrease in

of peers t0 3.98 multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB4,941,900
GESS SRS T F: BEEIN R 5% BER A
1.06%3.98 ABEEN,HDARE
4,941,9007T
Discount for lack 2023:15.7% 5% increase/decrease in
of marketability t0 20.5% discount would result in
(2022: 20.6%) decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB1,067,900
(2022: RMB1,282,200)
BR= mimnmIETE T =F PR hn R 5% E A
15.7%%20.5%  AEERD EBNARE
(ZZ——%F: 1,067,900 (ZFE -4 :
20.6%) AR 1,282,2007T)
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. £RIITEN A AABEEAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) BEER (&)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair value
technique unobservable input Range to the input
ERFAEHE RABEEHEA
fR{E WABE E HENBRE
Financial assets at Option pricing  Volatility 2023:51.21% 5% (2022: 5%) increase/
fair value through model t0 51.49% decrease in volatility
profit or loss- (2022:46.87% would result in increase/
unlisted convertible t0 50.98%) decrease in fair value
redeemable by RMB226,600/
preferred shares RMB2,304,500(2022:
RMB25,000/RMB161,000)
RAREBESAERN BREEERD K —E-=F: RGN, R E% (ZF =
CEEE —JELTA] 51.21% % 4 5%) HEBAREE
R EE LR 51.49% i, EA AR 226,600
- —— 7t/ ANR¥2,304,5007T (=
46.87% % T F : ARM25,000
50.98%) 7t/ AR¥161,00070)
Risk-free 2023: 4.00% 5% (2022: 5%) increase/
interest rate (2022: 3.89%) decrease in risk-free

interest rate would result
in decrease/increase in
fair value by RMB57,800/
RMB58,400(2022:
RMB210,000/RMB59,000)

R B = —Eo=8 ERABFREN,RD5% (=
4.00% T —F 5%) BEHA
(ZZE——f: REBERD S EIARE
3.89%) 57,8007T,/ AR#58,400

(=T AR
yg,oooﬁ/AE?ﬁ%g,ooo
70
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. £RTENAAEBEERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) BEE (&)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the RzmERBUETEEASERETE
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the B MER2EEEARATERE
Group that market participants would take into account BRISEEMTESEE -

when pricing the investments.

Fair value hierarchy AREBEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TREJIAEE R TANQAEBE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: AEER

Assets measured at fair value BRARBEENEE

As at t 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATHRRETAABEE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXUER EXFAEE

EEMSHRE BARE BARE
(£-ER) (E=ER) (B=ER) act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARMFT ARBTT

Equity investments designated at I8 RALBET AEA

fair value through OCI 2HMENRERE 158,561 - 94,529 253,090
Financial assets at fair value RAAEETABEN
through profit or loss SREE - 211,031 209,861 420,892
Total et 158,561 211,031 304,390 673,982
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERTIISEETAREBENE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EDNCIE 7 BAPAIBE

ERMIHRE BAZE BARE
(E—-ER) (B=ER) (B=ER) @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFL ARETTL ARETT AREFT

Equity investments designated at ~ JEERALBE AR

fair value through OCI 2ENENRERE - - 98,838 98,838
Financial assets at fair value BARBEAEEN
through profit or loss SREE - 50,067 187,875 237,942
Total fazt B 50,067 286,713 336,780
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. 2RI EMNAABERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) BEH (E)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FZEBHAABEBEFENTANEE)
during the year are as follows: mr
2023 2022
—E=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

At the beginning of year

Total gains recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss included in

BAREEFARSNERHEE

REH 187,875 129,708
R A B KRR ARMIKA
P EEE okl €

other income and gains, net 21,986 58,167
At end of year RER 209,861 187,875
Equity investments at fair value through OCl  EAAEEFT AEME S
MR E
At the beginning of year NS 98,838 95,750
Total gains recognised in OCI PO E At 2 T U B GR ) A M (4,309) 11,838
Transfer-out upon obtaining control through  RIBEEE HESIEHIEEZE L
business combination - (8,750)
At end of year RER 94,529 98,838
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RIEBRA - AEBEWEEEIRAS
at fair value during the reporting period. BEIENSHEE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REAR F—EREE_BR2MHEL
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no EARBEFEEER  TESANE
transfers into or out of Level 3. HE=ER -

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E=_=F+=-F=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other interest-bearing borrowings, long-term bank
deposits and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are carried out in Chinese
Mainland and most of the transactions are conducted
in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group does not have material
foreign currency risk. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
assets and liabilities denominated in HK$ were mainly
held by the Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Chinese Mainland which had currencies other than
RMB as their functional currencies. The Company and
those subsidiaries incorporated outside Chinese Mainland
also held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which
foreign currency exposures arise.

40.

MBEREEBERBE

AEENERZSHMTABERITRAE
st BER - RPRTHERARE S
KMIRITHESR - ZFEEMITANEER
MERARENEESREST - A&
BEZHAEMEREENIAE  NE
BREHEREELANESRUKEARE
SN TR -

AEEeRTAEENETERRSIN
KRR - FIXRER  EERBRNRE
BoRk  EFEEEHLREEEZX
FRERBROEEK - EBEWT -

SN LB

AEBEBXBRPBEAMWAR - K
MORGUAREET - AKEKX
MABEERABAARKE - A&
B \ERINMNERR R_T_=F
TZA=+—RH  XEENETE
BEENBEBEIEHARTRETH
B2 F) (P B A LA SN b & 5 il
o WAARBAINGEMERES
WeEE¥)BE - ARARRME AR
(R B At AN 8 SEMASZ) TR¥F
BUAARBTHEMRITAESR  EME
SN R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the HK$ and RMB exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

40.

B EEEE A FERBR (&)

S B (D)
TRIIFREEHAAEERBAF
BT RARBER 2D AL S
BB (A B B TE) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/RMB in profit
rate before tax

BT AR
EREFH R A1 Al 7
(TEk)  #m ORd)
% RMB’000
% AR®ET T

2023 —E =5

If the RMB weakens against the HK$ EANRBHEATRE 5 (19,548)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ BEARESBTHE (5) 19,548

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances, other than short-term and
long-term bank deposits, expose to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate. The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in respect of bank balances,
long-term bank deposits and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings is not significant as most of them are at
fixed interest rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year -end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. B¥EBREEEHEZERBEEK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZZE_=F+-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A8
BHEERR 2HEHEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RER FoRE HIRR |EH @ gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBT T ARBTR AR®T T
Trade receivables* JEWE B IR - - - 61,565 61,565
Financial assets included in FTATEFUE - Ef
prepayments, other receivables  EMHIBEREMEE
and other assets -Normal ** MEREE — EF+ 58,113 - - - 58,113
Long-term bank deposits RBFITER
- Not yet past due _—AaH 453,871 - - - 453,871
Restricted cash RRHAE
- Not yet past due — K8 64,220 - - - 64,220
Cash and bank balances Re RBITEH
- Not yet past due — K8 1,417,596 - - - 1,417,596
Total fat 1,993,800 - - 61,565 2,055,365
As at 31 December 2022 R =F+=-HA=+—~H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12[8 A8 ‘
BHEEER 2HBRHEERSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E10888 FRER £330 5l anzs Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARBETT
Trade receivables* BB 5B - - - 139,335 139,335
Financial assets included in FATEAFUR - it
prepayments, other receivables  EMFBREHMEE
and other assets -Normal ** MEREE —EF* 126,159 - - - 126,159
Long-term bank deposits REBBRITER
- Not yet past due _—XaH 526,208 - - - 526,208
Restricted cash XRHAS
- Not yet past due — K@ 42,164 - - - 42,164
Cash and bank balances RBe kBT
- Not yet past due — R 694,954 - - - 694,954
Total fast 1,389,485 = = 139,335 1,528,820
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified & MAEERRERBE LT ENE S

approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 23 to financial statements.

B The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

*k

WHIRM S - EREEHERENEENH

TR TE23 1 5 ©

FEABNRIE - AOBKHEREDE

ENSREENERESHERE

1 BB 47

BRILEE] TEBEBEBETEREE
MEERR B VAEREBEEMN -
BRI eWMEENEEEEREAIH

5] e
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. HM¥RMEEEZREBE (#)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk BN 4 B
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and REBERRERAEEEEERA
bank balances deemed adequate by management of the EHHIRE RRITHESBKT - LA
Group to finance the operations and mitigate the effects of BRNERABRRRE RN
fluctuations of cash flows. 2o
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RMEBAR - AEBZRELRMRA
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual FEENERAGIEMERAT -
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2023
—E-=F
Within 1 year 1to 5years Total
1R 1855 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T AR®ET T
Trade payables B S ERIE 457,297 - 457,297
Financial liabilities included in STAEM BN IR R E B
other payables and accruals HemasE 374,096 - 374,096
Interest-bearing bank and other 5T BIR7T M EABE K
borrowings 73,418 8,690 82,108
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,825 12,624 32,449
Total Bt 924,636 21,314 945,950
2022
B F
Within 1 year 1to5years Total
1R LS #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREF T ARBTT
Trade payables = AN 577,481 - 577,481
Financial liabilities included in BT A & (< 518 K e 5T &
other payables and accruals MeRalsE 341,999 - 341,999
Interest-bearing bank and other 5T BIR7T R E ALK
borrowings 96,448 226 96,674
Lease liabilities HEak 21,376 19,894 41,270
Total 5T 1,037,304 20,120 1,057,424

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+="-F=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise equity holders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to equity holders,
return capital to equity holders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is debt divided by the adjusted capital plus debt. Debt
includes interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the

40.

B EE A FERBER (&)

ErEE

AEEEAEENTIERBESHEDN
SENFEKLEENRERRRER
AREUXHEFER L BRESR
BAEBESZKIL -

AEEERBEERAE(CFEEE
ENRREHEENFAEERERS
REFSARERER  A5EgH
BRETEZFEANRE « RER
KTPERFEALBITHR - A5H
I 82 BERISNEDE AR TF SKATAIR o
RBEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HK
ZE_FF+ A=+ —BHLEEFE
REBWEHEAESENER « BUR
ST ELED -

AEEEREERBLXRERER
EERAELXRABKRUAKHARE
ALEBE - AEREEERME
EaE BEAEERRHEE ARGE

parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting wmeo REHRNEEAGBL RN
period were as follows: I
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMER 80,274 95,629
Lease liabilities HEAE 30,011 39,153
Debt B 110,285 134,782
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SAREE AERRER 3,262,177 2,594,448
Gearing ratio BEBRELE 3.3% 4.9%
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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31 December 2023 —E_=%+"H=+—H

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ZAATBERRAER
COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EC_=F T CF
+=ZA=+—-HB +=-—A=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERBE 17,532 8,091
Right-of-use assets ERERE 9,915 10,942
Other intangible assets HiEREAE 7,006 3,961
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 2,251 6,406
Investments in subsidiaries RIE A RINIIRE 864,835 738,620
Long-term bank deposits RERITER 453,871 526,208
Deferred tax assets BIETRIAEE 16,206 52,958
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 1,371,616 1,347,186
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 502,961 856,670
Trade receivables & 5 IR 929 6,079
Prepayments, other receivables and TR FRIE - H b fEWEIE R
other assets HihEE 305,966 202,539
Amounts due from subsidiaries LT B A R FIE 491,734 471,193
Financial assets at fair value through BRAAEBEFABENEREE
profit or loss 211,031 50,067
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTE R 1,185,523 565,133
Total current assets REBEEHAE 2,698,144 2,151,681
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B 5 e 58 395,478 452,641
Other payables and accruals HhpERRERESERA 70,636 138,568
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEFTITE A R FIA 192,507 113,380
Lease liabilities HEEE 6,567 5,467
Tax payables PR RETE 28,019 -
Total current liabilities REEEARE 693,207 710,056
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBAEFE 2,004,937 1,441,625
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERBERRBAE 3,376,553 2,788,811

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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41.

42.

43.

STAEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41.

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

AT MBRRE (])

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-_F
+=A=t-R +ZA=+-A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 2,877 4,422
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEMAE 2,877 4,422
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,373,676 2,784,389
EQUITY B
Share capital/Paid-in capital A EEHER 2,747,360 20,993
Reserves (note) EAAGED) 626,316 2,763,396
Total equity ERBE 3,373,676 2,784,389
Note: T -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREBRMET
Capital Statutory Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
B E EERE BEFE F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR®TR AR®TT AR%T T
Balance at 1 January 2022 T _F— A —BH0&H% 2,643,448 = (835,339) 2,308,109
Profit for the year FRFE - - 189,284 189,284
Equity-settled Award Interests  LAREzs & E 0042/
arrangement B 4,604 = - 4,604
Acquisition of a subsidiary I iE — M B AR 261,399 - - 261,399
At 31 December 2022 and RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H
1 January 2023 E—ZE_=#—HF—H 2,909,451 - (146,055) 2,763,396
Profit for the year FERFHE - - 184,397 184,397
Conversion into a joint stock iR SRHAERAE
company (2,808,272) - 159,265 (2,649,007)
Issuance of H shares upon REBB T LM%
listing on the Hong Kong BITHRR
Stock Exchange 327,530 - - 327,530
Transfer from retained profits A RTHET - 18,439 (18,439) -
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+=-A=+—8 428,709 18,439 179,168 626,316
d: P2
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. WEHESH
There were no significant events after the end of the WEHRE  BEOCAAER TEIMNE
reporting period that require additional disclosure or BAAENEASF -
adjustments.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. HUEMBRE

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.

BB RERN_ZE-_mME=A=-+\H
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

Year ended December 31,

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023
—E2oTE - —F - —E-=HF
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands
ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARET:R
Key Operating Results TEKEXERE
Revenue WA 2,964,743 3,957,804 7,173,457 6,094,104
Gross profit EF 329,259 355,284 1,248,961 1,350,941
Profit/(loss) before tax BERIFE,(&E) (43,183) (596,468) 332,042 363,425
Net profit/(loss) for the year FEFMNE(FE) (43,292) (460,861) 240,982 263,402
Profit/(loss) attributable to BREHEA
owners of the parent FE(RFIE (E518) (43,292) (461,990) 229,907 239,636
Non-IFRS measure BRI REERGE
Adjusted net profit/(loss) FELRAEFIE,(&B8)
for the year (ERBR B 15 mEERZT )
(non-IFRS measure) (26,877) (450,599) 256,785 317,972
At December 31,
R+=—A=+—8H
2020 2021 2022 2023
—TZTF T —F T CF —E-=HF
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
Key Financial Position FEHBHMR
Total non-current assets IERBEEMBE 106,673 762,556 1,671,642 1,776,353
Total current assets MENVEELRE 1,068,594 1,957,192 2,409,028 2,875,293
Total current liabilities BB EREE 488,016 583,358 1,303017 1,167,888
Total non-current liabilities IERBAEETE 16,872 21,664 88,102 104,975
Total equity AR 670,379 2,114,726 2,689,551 3,378,783

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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